CITY OF RYE
NOTICE
There will be a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rye on Wednesday, July 8,
2015, at 7:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at City Hall. The meeting will be preceded by an Audit
Committee Meeting beginning at 7:00 p.m. in the Mayor’s Conference room.
AGENDA
1.

Pledge of Allegiance.

2.

Roll Call.

3.

General Announcements.

4.

Draft unapproved minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council held June 10, 2015 and
the Special Meeting of the City Council held June 19, 2015.

5.

Issues Update/Old Business.

6.

Presentation on City Financials by Brendan K. Kennedy of the auditing firm of SaxBST LLP.

7.

Continuation of the Public Hearing to amend local law Chapter 177, “Taxation”, Article XII,
“Exemption for Historic Districts” by adding Section §177-82, “Historic Districts”, to
designate portions of downtown Rye as one historic district to allow property owners to
apply for the real property tax exemption.

8.

Public Hearing to amend local law Chapter 133, “Noise”, of the Rye City Code regarding
regulations on mechanical rock removal.

9.

Public Hearing to amend local law Chapter 197, “Zoning”, of the Rye City Code by
amending Section §197-2, “Districts, A: Residence Districts” to change the zoning
designation of a property at 120 Old Post Road from the B-4, Office Building, District to a
New RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District; and amending Section §197-86, “Tables of
Regulations: Table A, Residence Districts – Area Yard, Height and Miscellaneous
Regulations” to add the proposed RA-6 zone.

10.

Resolution authorizing the acceptance of funding through the NY Rising Community
Reconstruction Program and providing authorization for the Mayor and City Council to
Manager to enter into the following agreement and resolutions:
● NY Rising Community Reconstruction Program Subrecipient Agreement
● Resolution to adopt a Procurement Policy
● Resolution to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan
● Resolution to adopt an Affirmative Action Plan
● Resolution to adopt Section 504 Policies and Grievance Procedures

11.

Resolution to approve a Memorandum of Agreement between the City of Rye and the Rye
CSEA Local 1000 Clerical Unit.
Roll Call.

12.

Resolution to adopt the Climate Smart Communities Pledge.

13.

Residents may be heard on matters for Council consideration that do not appear on the agenda.

14.

Bid Award for the Annual Street Resurfacing contract (Contract #2015-04).
Roll Call.

15.

Consideration to amend the Resolution of acceptance for a grant from the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation for reimbursement for equipment purchased by
the Department of Public Works.

16.

Authorization for the City Manager to enter into an Agreement with the County of
Westchester for 2015-2016 Prisoner Transportation Services.
Roll Call.

17.

Authorization for the City Manager to enter into an Inter-municipal Agreement with
Westchester County for the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan for the Police Departments
of Westchester County.
Roll Call.

18.

Designation of one member to the Boat Basin Nominating Committee.

19.

Two appointments to the Rye Senior Advocacy Committee for a three-year term expiring
January 1, 2018, by the Mayor with Council approval.

20.

Consideration of request for permission to close a section of Purchase Street for the 63nd
annual celebration of the Halloween Window Painting Contest.

21.

Consideration of a request by the Leukemia and Lymphoma Society for use of city streets on
Saturday, November 1, 2014 from 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for their annual Light the Night
Walk event.

22.

Consideration of a request by Longford’s Ice Cream for the use of City streets for their 20th
Anniversary celebration on Sunday, August 6, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

23.

Miscellaneous communications and reports.

24.

New Business.

25.

Adjournment.
*********************

The Presentation of the 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan will be held on Monday,
August 3, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. The next regular meeting of the City Council will be held on
Wednesday, August 5, 2015 at 7:30 p.m.
** City Council meetings are available live on Cablevision Channel 75, Verizon Channel 39, and on
the City Website, indexed by Agenda item, at www.ryeny.gov under “RyeTV Live”.

* Office Hours of the Mayor by appointment by emailing jsack@ryeny.gov or contacting the City
Manager’s Office at (914) 967-7404.

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 4

DEPT.: City Clerk
CONTACT: City Clerk
AGENDA ITEM Draft unapproved minutes of the regular
meeting of the City Council held June 10, 2015 and the
Special Meeting of the City Council held June 19, 2015.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council approve the draft minutes.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: Approve the minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council held June 10,
2015 and the Special Meeting of the City Council held June 19, 2015, as attached.

DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES of the
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of
Rye held in City Hall on June 10, 2015 at 7:30 P.M.
PRESENT:
JOSEPH A. SACK Mayor
LAURA BRETT
KIRSTIN BUCCI
JULIE KILLIAN (Arrived at 7:35 p.m.)
TERRENCE McCARTNEY
RICHARD MECCA
RICHARD SLACK
Councilmembers
ABSENT:

None

The Council convened at 7:01 p.m. and Councilman McCartney immediately made a
motion, seconded by Councilman Mecca and unanimously carried, to adjourn into executive
session to discuss collective bargaining. Councilman McCartney made a motion, seconded by
Councilman Mecca and unanimously carried, to adjourn the meeting at 7:28 p.m.

1.

Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Sack called the meeting to order and invited the Council to join in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

2.

Roll Call

Mayor Sack asked the City Clerk to call the roll; a quorum was present to conduct official
city business.
3.

General Announcements by the Council

Announcements were made regarding various events and activities that may be of
interest to residents.
This Agenda item was taken at the start of the meeting.
3A.

Resolution appointing a City Manager effective August 11, 2015, establishing the terms
and conditions of employment, and authorizing the Mayor to sign an employment
agreement
Roll Call
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Mayor Sack announced that the City Council would be voting to hire Marcus Serrano as
the new City Manager. The Mayor summarized the search process that was utilized over the last
six months to select the new manager from many qualified candidates. The Mayor said that Mr.
Serrano has extensive experience in Westchester communities and has been referred to as “open,
fair, honest, communicative, proactive and friendly.” Councilwoman Brett said the City will
benefit from Mr. Serrano’s Westchester County experience. Councilwoman Killian said her
favorite comment about Mr. Serrano during a reference check was that he has “a private sector
mentality in the public sector”. Councilman Slack called Mr. Serrano a “genuine person who
people will like and respect”. Councilman McCartney said that he had written about Mr. Serrano
in an upcoming newspaper column. Councilman Mecca and Councilwoman Bucci agreed with
the other members of the Council.
Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett, to adopt the following
Resolution:
RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby authorizes the Mayor to enter
into an Employment Agreement with Marcus
Serrano to serve as the City Manager of the City of
Rye, effective August 11, 2015.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
None

The Resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote.
Mr. Serrano made brief remarks saying he was happy and excited to come to Rye and
called it the biggest honor he has had in his career. He said was looking forward to working for
the Council because they have the best interests of the residents in their hearts.
Mayor Sack offered thanks to Eleanor Militana for serving as the Interim City Manager
and said that she will return to the position of Assistant City Manager when Mr. Serrano arrives.

4.

Draft unapproved minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council held May 20, 2015
and the Special meeting of the City Council held June 1, 2015

Councilwoman Brett made a motion, seconded by Councilman Mecca and unanimously
carried to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of the City Council held on May 20, 2015
and the special meeting of the City Council held on June 1, 2015.
5.

Issues Update/Old Business
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Councilwoman Brett announced that the Site Plan and Wetland Permit for the Theodore
Fremd Avenue/North Street affordable housing project have been approved by the Planning
Commission.
Mayor Sack asked for an update on how the 25 mile per hour pilot program is going in
the “loop” area around Stuyvesant Avenue and Forest Avenue.
Councilwoman Killian asked for an update on the plan to remove the rocks from the
right-of-ways.
6.

Continuation of the Public Hearing to amend local law Chapter 177, “Taxation”, Article
XII, “Exemption for Historic Districts” by adding Section §177-82, “Historic Districts”,
to designate portions of downtown Rye as one historic district to allow property owners
to apply for the real property tax exemption
This Agenda item was deferred to the next City Council meeting.

7.

Public Hearing to amend local law Chapter 133, “Noise”, of the Rye City Code by
amending Section §133-8, “Construction work restricted to certain hours and days” to set
a moratorium on mechanical rock removal

Mayor Sack said that the Council wants to get something in place for the time period
when a new law regulating mechanical rock removal is being considered. Councilman Slack
reported on recommendations of the Study Group that should be made in a report in July. He
referred to a chart that compared the City’s current laws, the Study Groups Recommendations,
and the current Town of Mamaroneck Law in the following categories: duration hours; total
hours of chipping permitted; permit requirements; notice to neighbors; holiday restrictions;
school testing restrictions; restrictions on the number of chippers/hammers; and restrictions on
rock crushing on site. He said if the proposals of the Study Group were enacted by the Council
the City it would be a tremendous benefit to the community and could also be the most
restrictive durational law in Westchester.
Councilwoman Brett made a motion, seconded by Councilman Mecca and unanimously
carried, to open the public hearing.
Members of the public who commented on the proposed law included: Eric Bock, Lori
Fontanes, Bertrand De Frondville, Paul Varsames, Bob Marrow, Stanislav Kotyza, Tracy Stora,
Paul Fulenwidel, Emily Hurd, Paul LaBossier, John Mayo Smith, Alan Clark and Chris
McGuire. Comments were voiced both in favor and against the proposed moratorium. Those
commenting in favor stressed the disruption to their enjoyment of their properties and the health
and safety issues related to chipping and blasting and suggested that the moratorium should ban
rock chipping altogether. Those commenting against the proposed moratorium said the proposal
should be more balanced; could interfere with property rights and affect property values; and
pointed out issues faced by builders. There were also suggestions regarding including a waiver
process that would involve approval from neighbors and that the issue should be put to public
referendum.
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Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett and unanimously carried
to close the public hearing.
Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett, to adopt the following
local law:
CITY OF RYE
LOCAL LAW NO. 4 OF 2015
A Local Law adopting a six (6) month moratorium in the City of Rye temporarily
prohibiting Mechanical Rock Removal or use of explosives within the City of Rye for more
than a total of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days for the duration of this moratorium
from the day that Mechanical Rock Removal or the use of explosives begins.
WHEREAS, the extended period of Mechanical Rock Removal and the use of explosives
in the City can pose, among other things, quality of life impacts to the community; and
WHEREAS, in November 2014, the Mayor and City Council formed a Rock Chipping
Study Group to study, among other things, whether new or more restrictive limitations should be
placed on hours, duration, decibel levels, on-site crushing, and amounts which may be removed,
as well as whether greater efforts should be taken to control dust, noise, erosion, and water
runoff, and to enhance safety and make recommendations to the Rye City Council of ways to
address on a going-forward basis issues raised in City Council meetings concerning rock
chipping in Rye ; and
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to review the City’s
existing regulations relating to rock excavation to ensure that such activity does not negatively
impact the quality of life of its residents and businesses; and
WHEREAS, Mechanical Rock Removal and use of explosives, in the absence of
appropriate limitations, may have negative impacts on the City, its residents and the existing
businesses; and
WHEREAS, further analysis is needed in order to develop the regulations and mitigation
measures for Mechanical Rock Removal and the use of explosives; and
WHEREAS, the City expects that it may require up to six (6) months to engage in the
process for developing and considering the aforementioned regulations and mitigation measures.
NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Enacted by the City Council of the City of Rye as follows:
Section 1.

Purpose

In order to ensure appropriate limitations on the use of mechanical rock removal and/or the use
of explosives, there shall be a moratorium on any mechanical rock removal or use of explosives
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in excess of a total of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days during this moratorium period. Any
individual who intends to engage in mechanical rock removal or use explosives after this local
law is becomes effective shall notify the City Building Department in writing the date such
Mechanical Rock Removal or use of explosives will commence.
Section 2.

Authority

This moratorium is enacted by the City Council of the City of Rye pursuant to its authority to
adopt local laws under the New York State Constitution Article IX and Municipal Home Rule
Law § 10.
Section 3.

Enactment of Moratorium

1.

Any individual who intends to engage in Mechanical Rock Removal as defined by
§133-8(A) or use explosives in compliance with Chapter 98, Article VII on any
property in the City of Rye shall register with the City at least seven (7) calendar days
prior to the commencement of such activities.

2.

During the period of this moratorium all Mechanical Rock Removal or explosive use
shall cease on the 31st day after the commencement of such activity.

3.

If the owner of the property or the owner’s agent: a) commences Mechanical Rock
Removal or uses explosives without properly notifying the City Building Department
in writing of the commencement date; and/or b) engages in such activity more than a
total of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days from the date of commencement shall be
guilty of an offense and shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine of not
more than $1,000, an order to suspend construction work on the site, or by
imprisonment not exceeding 15 days, or any combination of such fine, suspension
and imprisonment. Each day of Mechanical Rock Removal and/or use of explosives
prior to sending in notice of the commencement date or in violation of the thirty (30)
day limit shall be construed as a separate offense.

Section 4.

Appeals/waiver

An aggrieved property owner may apply to the City Council for a waiver and the City Council
shall have the discretion to grant such waiver. The property owner shall have the burden of
demonstrating to the City Council that a waiver is warranted due to substantial hardship and that
such substantial hardship was not the result of an act or omission by the property owner.
In granting a waiver, the City Council must find that the waiver will not adversely affect the
purpose of this Local Law.
Section 5.

Early Termination or Extension of this Local Law

In the event any new Local Law which addresses the substantive issues set forth herein, should
be enacted and adopted by the City Council prior to the date that the moratorium imposed by this
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Local Law expires, then in that event, the moratorium imposed by this Local Law shall expire on
the date such new Local Law takes effect in accordance with § 27 of the Municipal Home Rule
Law.
In like manner, if more than six (6) months have passed since the implementation of this Local
Law, and it shall be determined by a finding of the City Council that an extension of this
moratorium is required, then the City Council by resolution, may extend this moratorium for
such a period of time as it deems necessary in order to further the purposes of this law up to and
including an additional six (6) months from the date of the original expiration of this Local Law.
Section 6.

Conflicts with State Statutes and Authority to Supersede

To the extent any provisions of this Local Law are in conflict with or are construed as
inconsistent with the provisions of New York State Law, this Local Law shall control.
Section 7.

Severability

If any part of this Local Law is deemed by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such
decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Local Law.
Section 8.

Effective Date

This Local Law shall take effect on June 17, 2015.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
None

The Local Law was adopted by a 7-0 vote.
8.

Consideration to set a Public Hearing for July 8, 2015 to amend local law Chapter 133,
“Noise”, of the Rye City Code regarding regulations on mechanical rock removal

Councilman Mecca made a motion, seconded by Councilman Slack, to adopt the
following Resolution:
WHEREAS, the Council wishes to consider amending Chapter
133, “Noise” of the Code of the City of Rye regarding regulations on
mechanical rock removal; and
WHEREAS, it is now desired to call a public hearing on such
proposed amendments to the law, now, therefore, be it
RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Rye as follows:
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Section 1. Pursuant to Section 20 of the Municipal Home Rule
Law and the Charter of the City of Rye, New York, a public hearing will
be held by the Council of said City on July 8, 2015 at 7:30 P.M. at City
Hall, Boston Post Road, in said City, for the purpose of affording
interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning such proposed
local law.
Section 2. Such notice of public hearing shall be in substantially
the following form:
PUBLIC NOTICE
CITY OF RYE
Notice of Public Hearing on a proposed local law to amend Chapter
133, “Noise” of the Rye City Code regarding regulations on
mechanical rock removal
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the
City Council of the City of Rye on the 8th day of July, 2015 at 7:30 P.M.
at City Hall, Boston Post Road, in said City, at which interested persons
will be afforded an opportunity to be heard regarding a proposed local law
to amend Chapter 133, “Noise” of the Rye City Code regarding
regulations on mechanical rock removal.
Copies of said local law may be obtained from the office of the
City Clerk.
City Clerk
Dated: July 1, 2015
9.

Discussion and Consideration to set a Public Hearing for July 8, 2015 to amend local law
Chapter 197, “Zoning”, of the Rye City Code by amending Section §197-2, “Districts, A:
Residence Districts” to change the zoning designation of a property at 120 Old Post Road
from the B-4, Office Building, District to a New RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District;
and amending Section §197-86, “Tables of Regulations: Table A, Residence Districts –
Area Yard, Height and Miscellaneous Regulations” to add the proposed RA-6 zone

Councilwoman Brett reviewed the proposal which has been before the Planning
Commission for many months. She said the Council needs to consider whether the proposed use
is appropriate for the site; the bulk and density of the proposed zoning; and community impacts
related to traffic and taxes. Jonathan Kraut, the attorney for the applicant, discussed a prior
proposal from the applicant for a hotel at the location; the reduction in the value of the property
over the last several years; and the current proposal for the location.
Councilwoman Brett, made a motion, seconded by Councilman Mecca, to adopt the
following Resolution:
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WHEREAS, the Council wishes to consider the application from
Old Post Road Associates, LLC to amend the City Zoning Code and
change the district designation for an approximately 7.0 acre property
located at 120 Old Post Road from the B-4 Office Building District to a
new RA-6 Active Senior Resident District to provide for the construction
of age-restricted apartments; and
WHEREAS, it is now desired to call a public hearing on such
proposed amendments to the law, now, therefore, be it
RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Rye as follows:
Section 1. Pursuant to Section 20 of the Municipal Home Rule
Law and the Charter of the City of Rye, New York, a public hearing will
be held by the Council of said City on July 8, 2015 at 7:30 P.M. at City
Hall, Boston Post Road, in said City, for the purpose of affording
interested persons an opportunity to be heard concerning such proposed
amendment.
Section 2. Such notice of public hearing shall be in substantially
the following form:
PUBLIC NOTICE
CITY OF RYE
Notice of Public Hearing on the application from Old Post Road
Associates, LLC to amend the City Zoning Code and change the
district designation for an approximately 7.0 acre property located at
120 Old Post Road from the B-4 Office Building District to a new
RA-6 Active Senior District to provide for the construction of
age-restricted apartments
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the
City Council of the City of Rye on the 8th day of July, 2015 at 7:30 P.M.
at City Hall, Boston Post Road, in said City, at which interested persons
will be afforded an opportunity to be heard regarding an application from
Old Post Road Associates, LLC to amend the City Zoning Code and
change the district designation for an approximately 7.0 acre property
located at 120 Old Post Road from the B-4 Office Building District to a
new RA-6 Active Senior District to provide for the construction of agerestricted apartments.
Copies of documents pertaining to this application may be
obtained from the office of the City Planner.
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City Clerk
Dated: July 1, 2015

10.

Presentation on the S.A.F.E. Program (Stuffed Animals for Emergencies, Inc).

Rachel Cohen and Sofia Wilmer made a presentation regarding the S.A.F.E. program that
was started in the Village of Mamaroneck, whereby stuffed animals are provided to the Police
Department and emergency response teams to distribute to children caught in traumatic
situations. They would like to expand the program into the City of Rye and have met with
Councilwoman Killian and members of the Rye Police Department.

11.

Discussion on improvements in the Forest Avenue corridor

Kristan Watson and Katie Schmitz made a presentation requesting that the Council fund a
study in the 2016 Budget for the extension of sidewalks on Forest Avenue from Apawamis
Avenue to Manursing Avenue and along Manursing Avenue from Forest Avenue to Davis
Avenue in order to enhance safety for pedestrians. The request is for a sidewalk on one side of
the street only. So far 372 people have signed a petition requesting the study. Councilman
Mecca inquired if anyone had considered turning this section of Forest Avenue into a one-way
street in order to reduce the amount of road width required so the remaining area can be
dedicated for sidewalks. Brian Dempsey, Chair of the Traffic & Pedestrian Safety Committee
(TPS) said that TPS has not looked at Mr. Mecca’s suggestion but said making that section of
Forest Avenue one-way would push more traffic onto Midland Avenue where there are already
traffic issues related to Midland School. Mr. Mecca suggested this could be included in a traffic
study for the proposed capital improvements to the Five Points Intersection at Midland Avenue.
Mr. Dempsey said the cost of surveying the area of Forest Avenue would be about $20,000. A
conceptual study would cost from $15,000 to $25,000 and full design plans would cost another
$15,000 to $25,000. Mayor Sack said there is a process for any public works project and
suggested that the proposal be sent to City staff so it can be considered for inclusion in the
Capital Improvement Program.
12.

Presentation of the City of Rye Stormwater Management Program 2014 Annual Report

City Engineer Ryan Coyne said the City has been required for the last 12 years by the
Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) to increase its stormwater awareness through
the following categories: Public Education and Outreach; Public Involvement; Illicit Discharge
Detection and Elimination; Construction and Post Construction; and Municipal Operations.
These requirements are accomplished through such ways as: issuing the Resident’s Guide to
Public Works; this annual presentation to the Council; the work of the Planning Commission,
CC/AC and Sustainability Committee in connection with stormwater issues; tracing nonstormwater in the stormwater flows in order to eliminate them; Building Department and
Planning Department erosion control measures for construction projects; sweeping the streets;
cleaning catch basin, and the DPW, Recreation Department and Golf Club. He added that the
City is on track with meeting the requirements.
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13.

Presentation by the Sustainability Committee on the Climate Smart Communities Pledge

Sara Goddard, Chair of the Sustainability Committee, said that the Committee would like
the City to consider becoming a Climate Smart Community (CSC). This is a New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) program which is a network of communities
committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and improving climate resilience. Councilman
Mecca said the initiative reminds communities when they are planning to look for resources that
would assist in slowing the use of energy. CSC communities are given extra points when
applying for grants. Ana Hagerup a representative of CSC said that ten pledge elements that
communities can take are included in a model Resolution. She said that in order to become a
Climate Smart Community the Council would adopt a Resolution and submit it to the DEC.
Corporation Counsel Wilson was asked to review the Resolution before it is put on an agenda
for a vote.
14.

Residents may be heard on matters for Council consideration that to not appear on the
agenda
There were no residents wishing to speak under this Agenda item.

15.

Resolution to amend the City of Rye’s FOIL procedures

Mayor Sack said the proposed change to the FOIL procedures would make the
Corporation Counsel the initial reviewer of FOIL requests and the City Manager the person who
will decide appeals. It will remove the City Council from a formal role in the process.
Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett, to amend the City of
Rye’s FOIL procedures as follows:
Procedures for Public Access to the Records of the City of Rye

Section 1.

Purpose and Scope

(a)

These regulations are established pursuant to Article 6 of the Public Officers Law,
known as the Freedom of Information Law.

(b)

These regulations provide the procedures by which records of the City of Rye may be
obtained.

(c)

Personnel of the City of Rye shall furnish to the public the information and records
required by law and those which were furnished to the public prior to the enactment of
the Freedom of Information Law, subject to the conditions contained in subdivision 2 of
Section 87 of the Freedom of Information Law, or other provisions of Law.

Section 2.

Designation of records access officer.
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(a)

The Corporation Counsel shall be the Records Access Officer responsible for assuring
compliance with the FOIL regulations.

(b)

The records access officer shall be responsible for assuring appropriate responses to
public requests for access to records. The records access officer shall assure that
appropriate personnel are adequately instructed in and properly perform the functions
described in Sections 6 and 7 of these regulations and shall supervise the administration
of these regulations.

Section 3.

Designation of fiscal officer.

The City Comptroller is designated the fiscal officer, who shall certify the payroll and respond to
requests for an itemized record setting forth the name, address, title and salary of every officer or
employee of the City of Rye.
Section 4.

Location.

Records shall be available for public inspection and copying at the office of the records access
officer at City Hall, Boston Post Road, Rye, New York, or at the location where they are kept.
Section 5.

Hours for public inspection.

Requests for public access to records shall be accepted and records produced during all hours
City Hall is regularly open for business except that all records must be returned to their proper
custodian at least 30 minutes before closing time.
Section 6.

Request for public access to records.

(a)

Requests for records shall be in writing (hard copy or electronically) in accordance with
New York Public Officers Law. The custodian of the records has discretion to waive the
requirement for written requests in appropriate circumstances.

(b)

If records are maintained on the internet, the requestor shall be informed that the records
are accessible via the internet and in printed form either on paper or other information
storage medium.

(c)

Officials shall respond to a request for records no more that five (5) business days after
receipt of the request. This response will acknowledge receipt of request and indicate
that the requestor will receive a response within twenty (20) business days unless
otherwise noted. Any electronic requests received after 5:00 P.M. will be considered
received by the City on the next business day.

(d)

A request for access to records should be sufficiently detailed to identify the records.
Where possible, the requestor should supply information regarding dates, titles, file
designations or other information which may help identify the records.
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(e)

1.
A current list, by subject matter, of all records produced and retained in
accordance with the Department of Education’s State Archives Schedule MU-1, shall be
maintained by the City Clerk and shall be available for public inspection and copying.
The list shall be sufficiently detailed to permit the requestor to indentify the file category
of the records sought.
2.
The subject matter list shall be updated periodically and the date of the most
recent updating shall appear on the first page. The updating of the subject matter list
shall not be less than semiannual.
3.
A duplicate copy of such current subject matter list shall be filed by each
department with the City Clerk who shall consolidate and maintain all such current lists.

(f)

Appropriate personnel of the City of Rye shall assist the requestor in identifying
requested records.

(g)

Upon locating the requested records, the appropriate personnel of the City of Rye shall,
as promptly as possible, and within the time limits set in subsection (b) above, either:
(1)
Make the records available by either, (i) indicating a time and date when the
records are available for review and inspection, or (ii) send the records electronically if
the request was for electronic copies and the records can be sent electronically, or
(2) Deny access in whole or in part, and explain in writing the reasons therefore.

(h)

Upon failure to locate records, the appropriate official shall certify that:
1.

The City of Rye is not the legal custodian of the requested records; or,

2.

The requested records, after diligent search, cannot be found.

Section 7.

Inspection and copying of records.

(a)
A person who has requested access to the public records of the City of Rye shall
be given full opportunity to see and inspect such records unless access is denied as
provided in Section 8 herein.
(b)
The requestor may also make a copy of the records he/she inspects. No record
may be removed from the office where it is located without written permission of the
person in charge of the office at that time.
(c)
Upon request and payment of the established fee, if any, the appropriate officer or
employee shall prepare and deliver a transcript of such records.
(d)

Upon request and payment of the established fee, if any, an appropriate official of
the City of Rye shall certify as correct a transcript prepared by the custodian of
the records.
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Section 8.

Denial of access to records.

(a)

Denial of access to records shall be in writing stating the reason(s) therefore and advising
the requestor of the right to appeal to the City Manager within thirty (30) days of the
denial. Appeals heard by the City Manager are final determinations.

(b)

If requested records are not provided promptly, as required in Section 6 (c) of these
regulations, such failure shall also be deemed a denial of access. In such cases, appeals
must be filed within thirty (30) days of the date by which the records were to be made
available.

(c)

The time for deciding an appeal by the City Manager shall commence upon receipt of a
written appeal identifying:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

The date of the appeal.
The date and location of the original record request.
The records to which the requestor was denied access.
Whether the denial of access was in writing or by failing to provide
records in accordance with the applicable time periods.
A copy of the written denial, if any.
The name and return address (or email address) of the requestor.

(d)

The appeal shall be determined by the City Manager within ten (10) business days of the
receipt of the appeal. If the appeal is submitted via email, any emails received after 5:00
P.M. will be considered received on the next business day. Written notice of the
determination shall be served upon the person requesting the record and the Committee
on Open Government.

(e)

A person requesting an exception from disclosure, or an agency denying access to record,
shall in all appeal proceedings have the burden of proving entitlement to the exception.

(f)

A proceeding to review an adverse determination upon appeal may be commenced
pursuant to Article 78 of the Civil Practice Law and Rules in accordance with all
applicable provisions of the law.

Section 9.
(a)

Fees.

Except as otherwise specifically authorized by law, or by established practice prior to
September 1, 1974, there shall be no fee charged for:
1.
2.
3.

Inspection of records;
Search for records;
Any certification pursuant to this part.
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(b)

The fee for a photocopy transcript of records shall be 25 cents per single sided page for
pages not exceeding 9 by 14 inches. The City has the authority to redact portions of a
paper record in accordance with the Public Officers Law and does so prior to the
disclosure of the record by making a photocopy from which the proper redactions are
made.

(c)

The fee for photocopies of records exceeding 9 by 14 inches per page or any non-paper
format (such as computer disk, microfilm, etc.) shall be the actual costs of reproduction,
which shall be deemed to be the average unit cost for making such a photocopy,
excluding fixed costs such as operator salaries, except when a different rate is otherwise
prescribed by statute.

(d)

The fee for a transcript that is typed, handwritten, or otherwise prepared by hand shall
cover the clerical time involved in making the transcript, including comparison for
accuracy.

(e)

The fee the City may charge for a copy of any other record is based on the actual cost of
reproduction and may include only the following:
(1)

an amount equal to the hourly salary attributed to the lowest paid employee who
has the necessary skill required to prepare a copy of the requested record, but only
when more than two hours of the employee’s time is necessary to do so; and

(2)

the actual cost of the storage devices or media provided to the person making the
request in complying with such request; or

(3)

the actual cost to the agency of engaging an outside professional service to
prepare a copy of a record, but only when an agency’s information technology
equipment is inadequate to prepare a copy, and if such service is used to prepare
the copy.

(f)

The City shall inform a person requesting a record of the estimated cost of preparing a
copy of the record if more than two hours of an agency employee’s time is needed, or if it
is necessary to retain an outside professional service to prepare a copy of the record.

(g)

A person requesting a record shall pay the City the required fee for copying or
reproducing the record in advance of the City preparing such copy.

Section 10.

Public Notice.

A notice containing the job title or name and business address of the records officer and the
appeal body shall be posted in the Office of the City Clerk. A copy of these rules will be kept in
the custody of the records officer and be made available for inspection upon request.
Section 11.

Severability.
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If any provision of these regulations or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is
adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not affect or impair
the validity of the other provisions of these regulations or the application thereof to other persons
and circumstances.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
and Mecca
None
Councilman Slack

The Resolution was adopted by a 6-0 vote.
16.

Bid Award for the Rye Free Reading Room Interior Renovations contract
Roll Call.

Chris Shoemaker, Director of the Rye Free Reading Room, said this project was included
in the 2012 Bond Referendum.
Councilman McCartney made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett, to adopt the
following Resolution:
RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby awards the bid for the Rye Free
Reading Room Interior Renovations to Optimus
Installation in the amount of two hundred fiftyseven thousand, four hundred seventy-four dollars
($257,474.00).
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
None

The Resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote.
Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Killian, to adopt the following
Resolution:
RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby waives Building Department
fees of approximately $8,000 in connection with the
Rye Free Reading Room Interior Renovations
project.
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ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
None

The Resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote.

17.

Resolution to amend the 2015 Adopted Fees and Charges for the Rye Golf Club
Enterprise Fund
Roll Call

Councilman McCartney explained that the reason for the amendment is due to an issue
with turf failure at the Golf Club which is requiring the use of temporary greens. This
Resolution will reduce guest fees during the period that the temporary greens are in use and
reduces golf cart fees.
Councilman McCartney made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Bucci, to adopt the
following Resolution:
RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby approves a temporary
amendment to the 2015 Adopted Fees and Charges
for the Rye Golf Club Enterprise Fund as follows:
Guest fees are reduced to $35.00 and Golf Cart fees
are reduced to $10.00 for Regular Cart fee and
$5.00 for Senior Cart fee.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
None

The Resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote.
18.

Consideration of a request by Wendy Baruchowitz for the use of City streets for a 1 mile
run/walkathon for the Dysautonomia International Fund on Sunday, October 4, 2015
from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Councilwoman Brett made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Killian and
unanimously carried, to adopt the following Resolution:
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RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby approves the request of Wendy
Baruchowitz for use of City streets for a 1 mile
run/walkathon for the Dysautonomia International
Fund on Sunday, October 4, 2015 from 10:00 a.m.
to 12:00 p.m.
19.

Appeal of denial of FOIL request by Timothy Chittenden

Councilwoman Brett said that documents were requested “reviewing the alleged
misconduct committed by Lt. Falk in the Caspi litigation.” The request was denied under POL
87(2)(a) because it was a Police internal affairs matter not subject to disclosure and also because
it was not subject to disclosure under Section 50A of the New York Civil Rights Law.
Additionally some communications were inter-agency and attorney/client privileged
communications. Ms. Brett said she also believed that documents related to an investigation into
police misconduct would be part of a personnel file where a personal privacy exemption would
apply. Corporation Counsel Wilson said that she had spoken with Labor Counsel Vince
Toomey, who was involved in the investigation and he believed that the Civil Rights law was the
most applicable State statute that would prevent disclosure (Section 87(2)(a) under FOIL) and
the emails between Counsel and the client would be exempt as well as attorney/client privileged
communications. Councilman Slack says the problem is the way the request is made because it
asks for materials that the lawyer reviewed that would be subject to the attorney client privilege
or the work product privilege with respect to an investigation.
Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Brett, made the following
Resolution:
RESOLVED, that the appeal of the denial of a FOIL request made
by Timothy Chittenden for “All documents, including but not limited to, all
depositions, all correspondence, all e-mails, all reports and any other records
reviewed by City Manager Culross, Police Commissioner William Pease,
Corporation Counsel Kristen Wilson, Labor Counsel Vincent Toomey, any
member of the Rye Police Association of the City of Rye, Inc. and any other City
of Rye employee, appointed official or elected official with regard to the review
into the alleged misconduct committed by Lt. Robert Falk in the Caspi litigation.
All correspondence including e-mails to and from City Manager Culross, Police
Commissioner William Pease, Corporation Counsel Kristen Wilson, Labor
Attorney Vincent Toomey, any member of the Rye Police Association of the City
of Rye, Inc and any other City of Rye employee, appointed official or elected
official with regard to this review” is hereby denied under POL Sections 87(2)(a)
and 87(2)(g); and Section 50-a of the New York Civil Rights Law.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, Killian, McCartney,
Mecca and Slack
None
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ABSENT:

None

The Resolution was adopted by a 7-0 vote.

20.

Miscellaneous communications and reports
There was nothing reported under this Agenda item.

21.

New Business
There was nothing reported under this Agenda item.

22.

Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss Councilwoman Brett made a motion, seconded
by Councilman Slack and unanimously carried, to adjourn the meeting at 10:45 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Dawn F. Nodarse
City Clerk

DRAFT UNAPPROVED MINUTES of the
Special Meeting of the City Council of the City of
Rye held in City Hall on June 19, 2015 at 8:00 A.M.
PRESENT:
JOSEPH A. SACK Mayor
LAURA BRETT
KIRSTIN BUCCI
TERRENCE McCARTNEY
Councilmembers
ABSENT:
JULIE KILLIAN
RICHARD MECCA
RICHARD SLACK
Councilmembers

1.

Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Sack called the meeting to order and invited the Council to join in the Pledge of
Allegiance.
2.

Roll Call
Mayor Sack called the roll; a quorum was present to conduct official city business.

3.

Resolution to amend the 2015 Adopted Fees and Charges for the Rye Golf Club
Enterprise Fund
Roll Call

Interim City Manager Eleanor Militana explained that the request to amend the fee
change is due to an issue with turf failure at the Golf Club which is currently requiring the use of
temporary greens. Rye Golf Club Manager Jim Buonaiuto thanked the Councilmembers for their
time to consider the request and reviewed the steps previously taken for members including
reducing guest and cart fees and providing opportunities to play at other golf clubs. Jim said that
the request to allow golf-only memberships limited use of the pool was not being moved
forward. The resolution to allow weekday Golf memberships to play on the weekend without an
additional fee was being requested. Jim noted that since the RGC is at 60% play capacity with
the temporary greens this will not create overcrowding on the course. Councilmembers Bucci
and McCartney, liaisons to the Rye Golf Club Commission, acknowledged their approval of the
request. Mayor Sack said that while no refunds are being offered to the membership, this is an
important accommodation for members.
Councilman McCartney made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Bucci, to adopt the
following Resolution:
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RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Rye hereby approves a temporary
amendment to the 2015 Adopted Fees and Charges
for the Rye Golf Club Enterprise Fund as follows:
Weekday Golf memberships will be allowed to play
on the weekend at no additional fee.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

Mayor Sack, Councilmembers Brett, Bucci, and McCartney
None
Councilmembers Killian, Mecca and Slack

The Resolution was adopted by a 4-0 vote.
4.

Adjournment

There being no further business to discuss Mayor Sack made a motion, seconded by
Councilman McCartney and unanimously carried, to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Eleanor M. Militana
Interim City Manager
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June 29, 2015

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Rye, New York:
Submitted herewith is the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Rye, New York (“City”) as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2014.
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management
of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect
the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this comprehensive annual financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.
The City’s financial statements have been audited by SaxBST LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, are
fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The independent auditor’s
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.
Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditor.
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Profile of the City of Rye, New York
The City is located in Westchester County, New York, on the Long Island Sound, approximately twentyfive miles north of New York City. Founded in 1660, it became a village in 1904, and was incorporated as
a city in 1942. The City’s gentle and sophisticated country setting, conveniently located near a major
metropolis, has earned it the reputation of being a highly desirable place to live. The City consistently
makes the list of Worth Magazine’s “250 Richest Towns”, and its amenities have been featured in The
New York Times.
The City maintains 71 miles of streets and roads, 53 miles of sanitary sewer lines; 6 pump stations, and
30 miles of storm drains within the borders of its six square miles. City-owned buildings include city hall,
a police station, two firehouses, recreation facilities including a recreation center and other buildings,
public works facilities consisting of offices, garages, and material storage buildings, a museum, a nature
center, an arts center, marina offices and garages, and several buildings belonging to our golf club,
including a historic “castle” (circa 1858) overlooking the golf course and Long Island Sound. The City
prides itself in its maintenance and preservation of open space, with several parks and playgrounds for
both passive and active recreation.
The City’s population count as of 2013 was reported at 15,960.
On November 3, 1959, an amendment to the City Charter was approved by public referendum to create
the position of City Manager. Since that time, the City has operated under the Council-Manager form of
government. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the City Council, which consists of the
Mayor and six other members. The City Council appoints the City Manager and the Corporation Counsel;
supervises the work of all boards, commissions and officers appointed by the City Council, and awards all
contracts for public works requiring competitive bidding. The Mayor serves as head of the City
government; appoints City judges subject to approval by the City Council; designates chairpersons of
boards and commissions, and unless otherwise provided by law or the City Council, executes deeds,
contracts and other documents. City Council members, including the Mayor, each serve a four-year term
of office, and are elected to office by registered voters authorized to vote in City elections.
The City Manager is the chief administrative officer of the City, and is responsible for all city affairs placed
in his or her charge. The City Manager appoints all department heads and their subordinates, with the
exception of the Corporation Counsel and police officers. With the advice and assistance of the City
Comptroller, the City Manager prepares and submits to the City Council the annual tentative budget. The
City Manager has control and supervision over purchasing, except for competitive bidding as required by
law. The City Manager serves at the pleasure of the City Council for an indefinite term.
The City Comptroller serves at the pleasure of the City Manager for an indefinite term. All other
department heads and employees serve terms subject to various laws, employment contracts, labor
agreements and/or the provisions of Civil Service Law.
The City provides a full range of services. General government services include vital statistics (birth and
death certificates); business and occupational licenses, and a variety of other permits and licenses
required under state or local law. Public safety is provided through a full-time police department; a fire
department comprised of paid and volunteer firefighters, an ambulance/EMS services contracted through
a local volunteer ambulance corps and building inspections provided by the building department.
Transportation services include engineering, street maintenance and administration, snow removal, street
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lighting, and off-street parking. Recreational services include recreation activities (camps, athletics,
tennis, youth and adult activities), parks and playgrounds, marina services, a golf course, a municipal
pool, and a nature center. Home and community services includes community planning, conservation,
emergency disaster, maintenance of sewers and drains, street cleaning, solid waste and recycling,
community beautification and shade tree maintenance. Cultural services include library services
contracted through a local library, an art center owned by the City but operated by an independent notfor-profit organization, and two government access cable television channels operated by the City.
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All departments
of the City are required to submit requests for appropriations, revenue estimates for the forthcoming year,
and a forecast of current year revenues and expenditures to the City Comptroller, on or before August 31
of each year. The City Comptroller reviews these submissions with the departments to ensure that the
current forecasts are reasonable, and that the forthcoming year’s appropriation requests and revenue
estimates are clearly understood. The finance department, under the direction of the City Comptroller,
completes the forecasts, appropriations, and revenue estimates for those items not specifically
associated with a department, such as general revenues, internal service fund charges, inter-fund
charges, and debt service requirements. When all of this information has been compiled and reviewed,
the City Comptroller submits the entire set of requests and estimates to the City Manager, usually within
the second week of September. The City Manager will meet with departments and the City Comptroller
throughout the months of September and October to review the submissions, making adjustments as
required or desired to meet the objectives that may have been expressed or implied by the City Council.
In accordance with §C21-2 of the City Charter, the City Manager must present a tentative budget to the
City Council on the first Wednesday in November. Prior to a public hearing on the tentative budget, the
City Council may make any changes to the tentative budget by a vote of at least four council members.
After considering the tentative budget, the City Council publishes a notice of public hearing on the
tentative budget to be held no later than the first Wednesday in December of the current year, and with at
least ten days’ notice. After the public hearing, the City Council may adopt the budget without
amendment, or, may continue to amend the budget, except for those items required by law or for debt
service. Amendments that would increase the estimated revenues or total appropriations require five
affirmative votes of the City Council. The City Council must adopt the budget and set the property tax
rate for the forthcoming year on or before December 31 of the current year. If the City Council fails to
adopt the budget by December 31, the tentative budget as amended by the City Council becomes the
adopted budget. If no amendments to the tentative budget had been made by the City Council, the
tentative budget as submitted by the City Manager becomes the adopted budget.
Throughout the year, the City Manager is authorized to make amendments between any accounts within
a fund, provided that the amendments do not increase total estimated revenues or total appropriations.
Amendments between funds or those that would increase total estimated revenues or appropriations
must be made by resolution of the City Council. The original budget; the budget as amended by fiscal
year end; actual results, and variances between the amended budget and actual results for the
governmental funds are presented in the governmental funds subsection of this report. It should be noted
that multi-year, rather than annual budgets, are adopted for the Capital Projects Fund. This report
includes a project-length schedule for all projects within the Capital Projects Fund, including project
budget, current year revenues and expenditures, project inception-to-date revenues and expenditures,
and available project balance remaining at the end of the current fiscal year.
Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered in light of
the specific environment in which the City operates.
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Local Economy
In 2014, the City’s revenues continued the upward trend of the past two years, with 2 major exceptions.
In 2014, General Fund revenues were roughly $526,000 less than 2013 revenues. Property tax revenues
increased about $197,000. Building department revenues increased about $550,000, or 29.1%, over
2013. Sales and use tax revenue increased $73,000. In 2013, mortgage tax revenue increased almost
$895,000 as compared to 2012. 2014 mortgage tax came in $645,000 less than 2013. In 2013, the City
received over $700,000 in Federal and State emergency aid for Super-storm Sandy. Thankfully there
were no natural disasters in 2014, therefore no Federal and State emergency aid. The City is cautiously
optimistic that revenues will remain near 2014 levels. Based on the positive results in 2013, the City used
$850,000 of General Fund unassigned fund balance for capital project expenditures in 2014, after having
funding of $235,000 in 2013 and no funding in 2012.
Taxable assessments rose slightly, increasing 0.22% (from $138,095,192 to $138,401,162), and our tax
base is not dependent upon any single industry or taxpayer. The top ten principal taxpayers of the City
represent roughly 7.3% of the tax roll, with public utilities representing 2.8%, commercial establishments
1.8%, and residential properties representing the remaining 2.7%.
Residential home sales reflect the upscale nature of our community. The City Assessor reported that 196
homes in the City were sold in 2014. Of these, 76% sold for $1 million or more and 35% sold for $2
million or more. The median home sales price increased by 7.8% from $1,450,000 in 2013 to $1,563,000
in 2014, while the average home sales price fell by 3.4% from $1,920,000 to $1,856,000. The highest
2014 sales price reported for a single-family home was $5,925,000.
Major employers with facilities located in the City enhance its economic strength by providing a wide
variety of industries, including business services, electric and gas utilities, social services, primary metal
industries, educational services, insurance services, investment banking and miscellaneous retail
operations. The distribution of the assessment roll for the current fiscal year, five years’ and ten years’
previous demonstrates a relative economic stability of the City over time:

Assessment Roll Classification
Class
Residential
Business
Other
Total

2014

2009

2004

73.04 %
12.24
14.72

71.85 %
12.96
15.19

69.90 %
13.87
16.23

100.00 %

100.00 %

100.00 %

Note: Residential includes one to three-family homes, condominiums, cooperative apartments,
and apartments. Business includes commercial, industrial, and recreational facilities. Other
includes agriculture, vacant land, community service, utility, wetland and parkland, most of which
is exempt from property taxes.
Access to employment in New York City is readily available by car or mass transit (train or bus), with
Interstate Route 95, Interstate Route 287, U.S. Route 1, and the Metro-North commuter train line
intersecting in the City. Westchester County Airport is a short drive from the City. Two major international
airports (John F. Kennedy and LaGuardia) are located within 30 miles and Newark International Airport
lies within 45 miles of the City.
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Economic data for the City from the United States Census Bureau’s American Community Survey (20062010) compares quite favorably against the Westchester County, New York State, and national figures:

Data Item
Per Capita
Median Household

City of Rye
$

91,839
150,556

Westchester
County
$

47,984
81,946

New York
State
$

32,382
58,003

United
States
$

28,184
52,250

The 2014 unemployment rate for Westchester County was 4.5% and continues to remain favorable
against the 2014 rates for New York State (5.8%) and the United States (5.6%).
Long-term Financial Planning
The City publishes documents that assist in its long-term financial planning, including a five-year Capital
Improvement Plan. This document is available for review in City Hall, in the Rye Free Reading Room,
and on the City’s website (http://www.ryeny.gov). The City’s Finance Committee is currently working on
updating a 4 Year General Fund Plan.
Building department revenues reached a high point compared to the last five years and sales tax
revenues have exceeded levels prior to the recession. In 2013, mortgage taxes also returned to prerecession levels. This shows signs of continued stabilization in the economy.
Over the past several years, the Federal Funds rate has maintained a low point of less than one percent.
This will continue to have a significant impact on the City’s interest earnings. General fund interest
earnings were over $902,000 in 2007 prior to the recession and were just $47,000 in 2014.
While State aid for the time being is projected to remain flat, it may also be further reduced as the State
attempts to close its own budget shortfalls. The volatility of commodity markets could mean that broad
and sweeping changes in our assumed costs of materials and supplies could increase our costs. Market
liquidity, interest rates, and consumer confidence could have a profound effect on our outlook for sales
and use taxes, mortgage taxes, and building permit revenues.
Effective for local government fiscal years beginning in 2015, the Adopted New York State Budget
includes a proposal to effectively “freeze” property taxes for two years on the primary residences of
homeowners with annual incomes at or below $500,000 in local governments and school districts that
stay within the tax cap there will be a property tax freeze for taxpayers, which requires the City to stay
under the property tax cap. In order for homeowners in their jurisdictions to receive the property tax
credit in the second year, the local government must certify that it has stayed within the tax cap (and
there is no local override law in place), as well as develop (or participate in the development of) a stateapproved “Government Efficiency Plan” that features shared services, cooperation agreements, mergers
and/or efficiencies that, when implemented, will achieve savings for taxpayers.
We believe that 2015 is a year that requires responsible planning for 2016 and beyond, with an eye
towards evaluating and possibly reducing core services, while preserving capital for future needs.
Relevant Financial Policies
The City has adopted a Comprehensive Financial Policy Document, which is available in City Hall, the
Rye Free Reading Room, and on the City’s website. This document contains all of the City’s adopted
financial policies, including budget, cash management and investment, capital assets, debt management,
revenues and expenditures, operating position, and procurement/purchasing. This document is reviewed
at least annually and as needed to incorporate applicable recommended practices.
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The City prepares its budgets, capital improvement plans, and forecasts with the various financial policies
in mind, and operates in compliance with the policies. The City does not foresee any issues with its
ability to comply with the current policies in the implementation of its near and long-term initiatives.
Major Initiatives
The reconstruction of the retaining wall along Theodore Fremd Avenue is expected to be delayed until
2016. This structure, along with the Central Avenue Bridge, was destroyed in the Nor’easter of April 15,
2007. It is anticipated that this project will approach or exceed $1 million in costs, a majority of which will
also be reimbursed with Federal, State and County grants.
The City passed a bond referendum in 2012. Infrastructure improvements to be financed with the
proceeds of this bond include: major safety improvements to the Smith/Elm/Purchase streets intersection,
reconstruction of portions of Smith Street to address a dangerous "sinkhole" beneath the paved surface,
rebuilding a portion of the retaining wall along the Boston Post Road between Thistle Lane and Purdy
Street, replacing an old and decaying sewer siphon on Locust Avenue and an assortment of sidewalk
and pedestrian safety improvements city-wide, primarily around school zones.
The 2015 Budget calls for $1.9 million in capital projects. In addition to the annual street, sidewalk and
sewer maintenance programs, planned projects include the Brevoort Lane Force Main Replacement, and
the Five Point Intersection Improvement.
Awards and Acknowledgements
The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. This was the eighteenth consecutive year that the City
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City had to
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
The City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its fiscal 2014 annual
budget document, making it the fourteenth consecutive year that the City received the award. In order to
qualify for this award, the City’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a
financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.
The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated services of all City
departments concerning information specific to their operations. Our gratitude is extended to our Mayor
and City Council, who continuously strive to enhance the quality of life for our citizens. We appreciate the
input from our independent auditor, SaxBST and we commend them on their timely and professional
completion of their initial audit of the City of Rye.
Most importantly, our thanks go to the citizens and residents, for giving us the opportunity to serve our
fine City.
Respectfully submitted,

Joseph S. Fazzino, Jr.
Deputy City Comptroller
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Financial Section

Independent Auditor’s Report
The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rye, New York
Rye, New York
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rye, New York
(City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP);
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rye, New York
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rye, New York as of December 31, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress - other postemployment benefits on pages
4-13 and 56, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information listed in the
accompanying table of contents, and the introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the other supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.
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Other Matters - Continued
Supplementary Other Information - Continued
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29,
2015, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

New York, New York
June 29, 2015

City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
As management of the City of Rye, New York (“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found at the
beginning of this report.
Financial Highlights
 On the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the most recent fiscal year by $57,393,379. Of this amount, the unrestricted portion for
governmental activities is a deficit of $6,538,045. This deficit results primarily from the accrual of
certain operating liabilities pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
Statement No. 34, which will be satisfied in future years, including tax certiorari claims,
compensated absences and the accrual of the City’s annual other post-employment benefit cost
in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45.
 The City’s total net position decreased by $3,653,681.
 Excluding the Capital Projects Fund, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $13,872,574, of which $5,245,938 is unassigned and available for spending at
the City’s discretion.
 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$5,245,938 or 16.0%, of total General Fund expenditures, down from $5,942,286 or 18.2% of
expenditures in the prior year, with an increased use of fund balance to fund capital items in
2014.
 The City’s total bonded debt decreased 9.1% from $18,010,000 to $16,370,000 during the
current fiscal year, representing $1,640,000 in principal payments made during the year.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three components: government-wide financial statements; fund
financial statements, and notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the City’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing changes in the City’s net position during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for
example, uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave and other post-employment benefit
obligations).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are governmental
activities (those principally supported by taxes and revenues from other governments) and functions of
the City that are business-type activities (those that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, transportation, culture and recreation, and home and community services. The
business-type activities of the City include the DePauw Municipal Boat Basin and the Rye Golf Club. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on the pages immediately following this MD&A.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.
Governmental Funds
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.
The City maintains five individual governmental funds: the General Fund, the Cable TV Special Revenue
Fund, the K.T. Woods Permanent Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the Capital
Projects Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds. Information from the other nonmajor
governmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual information on each of
these funds is provided in the form of combining statements and schedules found elsewhere in this
report. The City adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, Cable TV Fund, K.T. Woods Permanent
Fund and Debt Service Fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for these funds to
demonstrate compliance with their budgets. Multi-year budgets are adopted for the Capital Projects
Fund, and a project-length schedule that provides information concerning these projects and their
budgets is included elsewhere in this report.
Proprietary Funds
The City maintains two types of proprietary funds - enterprise funds and internal service funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its marina (the
DePauw Municipal Boat Basin) and golf course (the Rye Golf Club) operations. Internal service funds are
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses
internal service funds to account for its general liability insurance coverage (the Risk Retention Fund),
and the acquisition, operation, maintenance and disposition of its buildings and vehicles (the Building and
Vehicle Maintenance Fund). These services have been classified as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements because they predominantly benefit governmental, rather than
business-type functions.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Boat Basin
Fund and the Golf Club Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds of the City. Conversely,
both internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements are
presented in this report.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support City programs. The City maintains only one type of fiduciary fund
that is known as an agency fund. The City holds resources in this fund purely in a custodial capacity. The
activity in this fund is limited to the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of resources to the
appropriate individual, organization, or government. The agency fund financial statements are presented
in this report.
Notes to Financial Statements
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of those statements and provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.
Other Information
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the nonmajor governmental funds and the
two internal service funds are presented immediately following the basic financial statements. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found elsewhere in this report.
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position.
December 31,
Business-type Activities
2014
2013

Governmental Activities
2014
2013
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net

$

$ 30,707,588
76,973,395

$ 29,496,766
78,041,312

93,584,812

93,647,026

14,096,171

13,891,052

107,680,983

107,538,078

Deferred Outflows
Of Resources

398,735

491,110

52,166

64,251

450,901

555,361

Current Liabilities
Long-tem liabilities
Total liabilities

4,945,878
42,714,604
47,660,482

5,505,644
38,307,024
43,812,668

656,628
2,421,395
3,078,023

223,198
3,010,513
3,233,711

5,602,506
45,135,999
50,738,505

5,728,842
41,317,537
47,046,379

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

50,856,162
2,004,948
(6,538,045)

51,028,225
2,698,735
(3,401,492)

9,104,264
1,966,050

9,324,839
1,396,753

59,960,426
2,004,948
(4,571,995)

60,353,064
2,698,735
(2,004,739)

11,070,314

$ 10,721,592

$

46,323,065

$ 50,325,468

$

$

2,645,767
11,245,285

$ 26,850,999
66,796,027

Total net position

3,401,051
10,695,120

2013

27,306,537
66,278,275

Total assets

$

Total
2014

$ 57,393,379

$ 61,047,060

For the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities by $57,393,379 at the close of
the most recent fiscal year. Of this amount, $59,960,426 reflects the City’s investment in capital assets
(land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, construction-in-progress, and infrastructure),
net of depreciation and any related outstanding debt. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate the debt.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Government-wide Financial Analysis - Continued
An additional portion of the City’s net position, $2,004,948 represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is a
deficit of $4,571,995. This deficit does not mean that the City does not have resources available to meet
its obligations in the ensuing year. Rather, it is the result of having long-term commitments, including
claims payable of $1.8 million, compensated absences of $1.5 million and OPEB obligations of $25.1
million that are greater than currently available resources. Payments for these liabilities will be budgeted
in the year that actual payment will be made.
Governmental Activities
Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $4,002,403.
included:

Major revenues received

$21,184,086 in real property taxes
$2,295,447 in sales and use taxes
$170,924 in hotel occupancy taxes
$435,247 in utilities gross receipts taxes
$63,946 from interest and investment income
$2,745,606 in state aid not restricted to specific programs including $1,208,024 in State Revenue
Sharing and $1,537,582 in Mortgage Tax Revenue
 $1,043,185 in other revenues







Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Unrestricted
State Aid
9%
Other
3%

Taxes
63%

Charges for
Services
16%

Operating
Grants
3%

Capital
Grants
6%

Revenues from charges for services were $6,297,496. Governmental programs received $114,805 in
operating grants, and $368,125 in capital grants, representing State Aid (CHIPS) for road improvements.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Governmental Activities - Continued
Governmental Activities
2014
2013
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Real property taxes
Non-property taxes
Unrestricted use of money and property
Gain on sale of capital assets
Unrestricted state aid
Other revenues
Total revenues

December 31,
Business-type Activities
2014
2013

Totals
2014

2013

$ 6,297,496
114,805
368,125

$ 6,163,893
1,098,398
2,208,204

$ 5,387,340
17,989
-

$ 6,724,029
559,942
-

$ 11,684,836
132,794
368,125

$ 12,887,922
1,658,340
2,208,204

21,184,086
2,901,618
63,946
2,745,606
1,043,185
34,718,867

20,860,358
2,791,836
48,667
470,967
3,390,946
562,540
37,595,809

4,343
5,409,672

2,311
7,286,282

21,184,086
2,901,618
68,289
2,745,606
1,043,185
40,128,539

20,860,358
2,791,836
50,978
470,967
3,390,946
562,540
44,882,091

EXPENSES
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Interest
Boat basin
Golf club
Total expenses

4,860,285
17,459,935
4,771,873
4,726,153
6,357,900
545,124
38,721,270

3,966,979
18,064,524
4,266,362
4,149,577
6,376,814
506,947
37,331,203

974,711
4,115,080
5,089,791

895,996
5,700,251
6,596,247

4,860,285
17,459,935
4,771,873
4,726,153
6,357,900
545,124
974,711
4,115,080
43,811,061

3,966,979
18,064,524
4,266,362
4,149,577
6,376,814
506,947
895,996
5,700,251
43,927,450

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(4,002,403)

264,606

319,881

690,035

NET POSITION, beginning of year

50,325,468

50,060,862

10,721,592

10,031,557

61,047,060

60,092,419

$ 46,323,065

$ 50,325,468

$ 11,041,473

$ 10,721,592

$ 57,364,538

$ 61,047,060

NET POSITION, end of year

(3,682,522)

954,641

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $348,722.
Revenues from charges for services were $686,471 from marina operations and $4,700,869 from golf
club operations. Business operating grants of $17,989 represents additional FEMA aid for the 2007
marina dredging project received by the City in 2014. Combined, the business-type activities earned
$4,343 in interest and investment income.
Offsetting these revenues were expenses of $974,711 for marina operations and $4,086,239 for golf club
operations.
Expenses and Program Revenues
Business-type Activities
$7,000,000
$6,000,000

Expenses

$5,000,000

Revenues

$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$Marina

Golf Club
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Excluding the Capital Projects Fund,
the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,872,574, an increase of
$765,220 (5.8%) from the prior year. Approximately 38% ($5,245,938) of the total ending fund balance
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s discretion. The
remainder of fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted or assigned in accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 54.
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance was $5,245,938, representing 40% of the total General Fund balance of $13,059,255. Two
useful measures of liquidity are the percentage of unassigned fund balance to total expenditures and total
fund balance to total expenditures. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General Fund showed a
16.0% unassigned fund balance to total expenditures and other financing uses and a 39.8% total fund
balance to total expenditures and other financing uses.
The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $695,964 during the current fiscal year. Of this amount,
transfers out of the General Fund exceeded transfers in by $1,123,199. The transfers out were as
follows: $273,199 to the Debt Service Fund for long-term debt principal and interest requirements,
$750,000 to the Capital Projects Fund for annual infrastructure projects and $100,000 to the Building and
Vehicle Fund for vehicle and equipment purchases. There were no transfers in from other funds in 2014.
Operating revenues of the General Fund exceeded operating expenditures of that fund by $1,819,163.
Major changes in specific revenues and expenditures in comparison to the prior year are as follows:
 Real property tax revenues increased $196,922 (0.95%) from $20,731,859 to $20,928,781, which
reflects our tax rate increase and additional PILOT payment of $30,000, offset by refunds to
taxpayers due to tax certiorari and small claims assessment review settlements.
 Non-property taxes increased $109,782 (3.9%) from $2,791,836 to $2,901,618, due to increases
in sales and use tax of $72,702 and utility taxes of $32,934.
 Charges for services decreased $39,655 (2.2%) from $1,816,289 to $1,776,634 with decreases
in Recreation fees of $46,358 and parking meter fees of $32,297 offset by increases in planning
review fees and fees in lieu of parkland of $47,336.
 Interest and investment income increased slightly, from $46,744 to $47,637 due to continued
decreased interest rates, coupled with slightly higher cash balances available for investment.
 Licenses and permit revenues increased $606,647 (22.0%) from $2,762,894 to $3,369,541 which
can be attributed predominantly to increases in building permit revenue of $550,395 and street
opening permit revenue of $27,690 and resident parking permits of $19,802.
 Fines and forfeitures increased $49,657 (9.7%), from $510,819 to $560,476, mostly due to
increased parking violations of $55,920.
 Miscellaneous revenues decreased $56,518 (23.8%) from $237,681 to $181,163, due to a
decrease in refund of prior year expenditures (workers’ compensation premium refunds) of
45,211 and Medicare Part D subsidies of $14,019.
 Workers compensation recoveries increased $62,539 from $224,074 to $286,613 and police
overtime reimbursements increased $34,871.
 Mortgage tax revenues decreased $645,340 from $2,182,922 to $1,537,582. State revenue
sharing remained flat. State aid for navigation decreased $50,508.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds - Continued
Governmental Funds - Continued
 Federal emergency disaster aid received in 2014 was down $691,297 reflecting FEMA payments
to reimburse expenditures related to both Hurricane Irene and Super-storm Sandy in 2013.
 Overall Salaries and wages remained the same from $12,741,969 in 2013 to $12,740,403 in
2014.
 Equipment purchases increased $105,689 (49.6%) from $213,277 to $318,966, reflecting the
purchase of Fire Fighter Scott Pacs in 2014.
 Materials and supplies decreased $103,057 (4.6%) from $2,232,848 to $2,129,791. This can be
attributed to decreases in tax certiorari payments of $183,004 (with large settlements to
Westchester Country Club, 411 Theodore Fremd Avenue 120 Old Post Road in 2013), and
decreases in licenses and permit fees of $66,780 and tree maintenance $18,211 (due to Superstorm Sandy in 2013) offset by increases in electricity costs (rate increases and the harsh winter)
of $42,697, uniform purchases of $21,371 and sand, salt and deicing costs of $20,278.
 Contractual costs were down $83,555 (1.1%) from $7,461,294 to $7,377,739, with decreases in
inter-fund service charges of $196,514, offset by increases in contract agency expenses (mostly
related to the funding of the Rye Free Reading room) of $63,587 and miscellaneous service
contracts of $55,571
 Employee benefits and taxes decreased $471,620 (4.93%) from $9,560,607 to $9,088,987.
Decreases in hospitalization and medical costs of $498,959 (as the City’s insurance broker was
able negotiate a decrease in the rates resulting in a negative adjustment to the City’s health
insurance premium for the 2014-2015 year) retirement costs of $27,906 (with contribution rates
stabilizing after years of large increases), and increased workers’ compensation costs of $85,794
contributed to the decrease.
The Capital Projects Fund closed the fiscal year with a fund balance of $1,266,469. Capital Projects
Fund revenues of $565,767, expenditures of $1,124,651 and other financing sources and uses of
$750,000 (net) represent only the current fiscal year’s portion of total project activity. An itemized projectlength schedule of all projects is presented elsewhere in this report.
Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information found in the governmentwide financial statements, but in greater detail.
Total net position of the Boat Basin Fund at year-end was $2,207,272, a decrease of $217,808 from the
prior year. The net investment in capital assets was $1,599,127 and unrestricted net position of $608,145
represented the balance of net position. The operating loss of the Boat Basin Fund was $236,584
(operating revenues of $686,471 offset by $923,055 of operating expenses, including $422,264 in
depreciation). Interest income of $912 and interest expense $125 and state and federal aid of $17,989
(Aid related to the 2007 dredging of the marina) made up the balance of total net income.
Total net position of the Golf Club Fund at year-end was $9,039,586, an increase of $595,159 from the
prior year. The net investment in capital assets was $7,473,101 with unrestricted net position of
$1,566,485 representing the balance of net position. Golf Club Fund operating expenses of $4,049,999
offset operating revenues of $4,700,869 to arrive at operating income of $650,870. Changes in overall
revenues and expenditures relate to the City outsourcing the restaurant operations at the Golf Club.
Interest income of $3,431 offset by $59,142 of interest expense related to long-term debt made up the
balance of total net income.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
At the end of 2014 the difference between the operating appropriations originally budgeted and the
amended budget for the General Fund was $775,474 ($33,589,349 vs. $34,364,823), a change of 2.3%.
This can be attributed to the appropriation of prior year encumbrances carried forward of $341,771,
$330,200 in carry forward balances of recreation special event and surcharges from the end of 2013 and
budget resolutions to appropriate fund balance for additional road repairs of $100,000 and $3,500 for
police uniforms. Actual expenditures and encumbrances at December 31, 2014, were $1,327,293 less
than 2014 amended budget. The largest differences in budget compared to actual were in Salaries and
Benefits.
At year-end, there is no difference between the original and amended budget for the General Fund
estimated operating revenues ($31,977,764). However, the actual revenues realized for the year ended
December 31, 2014 exceeded the anticipated amount in the final budget by $1,497,280. The most
significant were as follows: sales and use tax revenues, utility gross receipts tax revenues, fees in lieu of
parkland, increased building permit revenues, street opening permit revenues, filming permit revenues,
police overtime reimbursement, workers’ compensation recoveries, and State revenue sharing.
Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
The City’s investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities at December 31,
2014, net of $53,244,415 of accumulated depreciation, was $76,973,395. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, construction-in-progress, and
infrastructure.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
General vehicle and equipment additions totaled $339,900, including an administrative passenger vehicle
for a purchase price of $34,278, 3 Police vehicles for a total cost of $114,363, a fire department vehicle
for $39,954, miscellaneous DPW equipment of $69,663, a recreation department sports utility vehicle for
$28,477 and a passenger bus for the recreation department for the price of $53,165.
 Final costs were incurred on the Central Avenue Bridget reconstruction and the project was
added to the City’s infrastructure in 2014. The final cost of the project was $1,996,209.
Capital Assets

Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Less - accumulated depreciation
Total (net of depreciation)

December 31, 2014
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities
$ 4,561,755
2,155,744
16,506,163
4,846,416
10,649,821
69,070,951
(41,512,575)
$ 66,278,275

$

1,700,408
14,277
11,759,480
7,698,031
1,254,764
-

Total
$

6,262,163
2,170,021
28,265,643
12,544,447
11,904,585
69,070,951

(11,731,840)

(53,244,415)

$ 10,695,120

$ 76,973,395

December 31, 2013
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities
$ 4,561,755
3,904,471
16,506,163
4,672,224
10,103,018
67,062,881
(40,014,485)
$ 66,796,027

$

1,700,408
78,703
11,759,480
7,361,215
1,254,764
-

Total
$

(10,909,285)
$ 11,245,285

6,262,163
3,983,174
28,265,643
12,033,439
11,357,782
67,062,881
(50,923,770)

$

78,041,312

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3c in the notes to financial
statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Long-Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $16,370,000. As
required by New York State Law, all bonds issued by the City are general obligation bonds, backed by
the full faith and credit of the City. As a policy, principal and interest on debt issued by the enterprise
funds must be repaid solely from revenues of those funds. Of the $16,370,000 bonded debt outstanding
at fiscal year-end, $1,545,000 represented debt of the Golf Club Enterprise Fund.
Known as the “constitutional debt limit”, and pursuant to New York State Local Finance Law §104, the
City must limit total outstanding long-term debt to no more than 7% of the five-year average full valuation
of real property. At December 31, 2014, the City had exhausted 3.10% of its constitutional debt limit,
providing an available debt margin of 96.90% with the authority to issue an additional $457 million of
general obligation long-term debt.
City Charter §C21-9 specifies the amount of debt that can be authorized solely on the adoption of a
resolution by the City Council; the amount that can be raised by resolution of the City Council but subject
to permissive referendum, and the amount requiring a mandatory referendum. At December 31, 2014,
the amount of debt that could be authorized by City Council resolution alone was $437,322 and the
amount that could be authorized by City Council resolution subject to a permissive referendum was
$2,339,495. The authorization of all other long-term debt, unless otherwise specifically exempt by law,
requires a mandatory referendum.
In 2013 (when the City refunded its 1998 Series B and 2005 PISB), Moody’s Investor Service assigned its
highest credit rating (“Aaa”) to all City debt.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3g in the notes to financial
statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
According to the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, the 2014 unemployment rate for Westchester
County was 4.5%. This compares favorably with the rate of 5.8% for New York State and the 5.6%
national unemployment rate. The slight increase in the Consumer Price Index, not seasonally adjusted,
for the area (New York-Northern New Jersey-Long Island, NY-NJ-CT-PA) from 2013 to 2014 was roughly
the same compared to the increase recorded for the U.S. city average for the same period.
Home financing and refinancing rates continued to be low in fiscal 2014 and as a result there were
dramatic increases in revenue from mortgage taxes and building activity. Taxable assessed value of real
property in the City showed a marginal increase of 0.22% (from $138,095,192 in 2013 to $138,401,162 in
2014).
The median home sales price had an increase of 7.8% from $1,450,000 in 2013 to $1,563,000 in 2014
and the average home sales price decreased from $1,920,000 in 2013 to $1,856,000 in 2014 (3.4%).
City management has taken the approach that 2015 will continue to be a transitional period in City
budgeting. Expenditures such as health insurance and employee pension contributions are expected to
increase. Although revenues other than property taxes have returned to pre-recession levels, we cannot
expect these revenues to continue to keep increasing at these levels.
The City appropriated the use of $1,867,452 of fund balance from the General Fund for spending in fiscal
2015 to fund the acquisition of capital assets and equipment. $660,000 of fund balance was appropriated
for operations. The use of this fund balance was within the City’s policy of maintaining an unassigned
General Fund balance of at least 5% of annual appropriations. Combined with all other revenue sources,
the fiscal 2015 real property tax rate of $155.11 per $1,000 of taxable assessed value provides funding
for all General Fund appropriations. The tax rate increase from 2014 to 2015 is 3.14% ($150.38 to
$155.11).
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City of Rye, New York
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in those finances. Questions and comments concerning any of the information provided in this
report should be addressed to Joseph S. Fazzino, Deputy City Comptroller, City of Rye, 1051 Boston
Post Road, Rye, New York 10580.
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City of Rye, New York
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Deposits
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Due from fiduciary fund
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable
Deposits
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues
Non-current liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Capital projects
Permanent fund
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Special purposes
Police
Fire
Parks
Recreation programs
WWI memorial
9/11 memorial
Council chambers
Debt service
Risk retention
Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 20,783,880
1,681,070
1,195,576
28,500
2,280,831
120,809
8,550
1,207,321

December 31, 2014
Business-type
Activities
$

2,879,656
31,501
554,586
(120,809)
14,510
41,607

Total
$ 23,663,536
1,681,070
1,227,077
28,500
2,835,417
23,060
1,248,928

6,717,499
59,560,776
93,584,812

1,714,685
8,980,435
14,096,171

8,432,184
68,541,211
107,680,983

398,735

52,166

450,901

575,678
1,146,627
87,271
135,038
698,692
1,753,762
548,810

43,716
187,863
11,877
22,715
-

619,394
1,334,490
99,148
135,038
698,692
1,776,477
548,810

2,252,855
40,461,749
47,660,482

390,457
2,421,395
3,078,023

2,643,312
42,883,144
50,738,505

50,856,162

9,104,264

59,960,426

1,266,469

-

1,266,469

190
20,000

-

190
20,000

5,309
2,000
99,659
356,745
4,151
250
26,038
47,593
176,544
(6,538,045)
$ 46,323,065

1,966,050
$ 11,070,314

5,309
2,000
99,659
356,745
4,151
250
26,038
47,593
176,544
(4,571,995)
$ 57,393,379

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Activities

Functions/Programs
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government activities
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Interest
Total governmental activities

Expenses

$

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Boat basin
Golf club
Total business-type activities
Total government

$

4,860,285
17,459,935
4,771,873
4,726,153
6,357,900
545,124
38,721,270

Charges for
Services

$

562,980
3,115,025
1,347,354
1,058,347
213,790
6,297,496

974,711
4,115,080
5,089,791

686,471
4,700,869
5,387,340

43,811,061

$ 11,684,836

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Program Revenue
Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Assets
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Governmental
Business-type
Contributions Contributions
Activities
Activities
Total

$

43,684
2,099
69,022
114,805

$

17,989
17,989
$

132,794

GENERAL REVENUES
Real property tax and related tax items
Non-property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Utilities gross receipts taxes
Unrestricted use of money and property
Governmental aid not restricted to specific programs
Other revenues
Total general revenues

368,125
368,125

$

$

368,125

$

-

-

$

(270,251)
585,789
315,538

(4,297,305)
(14,301,226)
(3,056,394)
(3,665,707)
(6,075,088)
(545,124)
(31,940,844)

(270,251)
585,789
315,538

$

(31,940,844)

$

315,538

$

(31,625,306)

$

21,184,086

$

-

$

21,184,086

2,295,447
170,924
435,247
63,946
2,745,606
1,043,185
27,938,441

NET POSITION, beginning of year

319,881

50,325,468
$

46,323,065

2,295,447
170,924
435,247
68,289
2,745,606
1,043,185
27,942,784

4,343
4,343

(4,002,403)

Change in net position

NET POSITION, end of year

(4,297,305)
(14,301,226)
(3,056,394)
(3,665,707)
(6,075,088)
(545,124)
(31,940,844)

(3,682,522)
61,047,060

10,721,592
$

11,041,473

$

57,364,538

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2014
Non-Major
Funds
Major Funds
Other
Capital
Governmental
Funds
General
Projects
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenditures
Total assets
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Retainage payable
Deposits
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues
Total liabilities

$

$

1,681,070
518,803
1,673,194
1,037,494
1,060,569

1,470,298

$

25,734
1,208,740
-

740,583

$

97,443
2,355
5,300

14,190,721
1,681,070
616,246
1,701,283
2,246,234
1,065,869

$

17,950,970

$

2,704,772

$

845,681

$

21,501,423

$

395,831
823,420
698,692
351,589
1,752,668
548,810
4,571,010

$

94,318
22,480
1,320,411
1,094
1,438,303

$

385
1,050
30,927
32,362

$

490,534
824,470
22,480
698,692
1,702,927
1,753,762
548,810
6,041,675

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

11,979,840

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

320,705

-

-

320,705

4,891,715

1,438,303

32,362

6,362,380

2,079,435
1,874,294
3,859,588
5,245,938
13,059,255

1,266,469
1,266,469

25,300
58,072
729,947
813,319

2,104,735
3,198,835
4,589,535
5,245,938
15,139,043

17,950,970

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

$

2,704,772

$

845,681

$

21,501,423
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City of Rye, New York
Reconciliation of the Total Fund Balances Shown in
the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
December 31,
2014
Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$ 15,139,043

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds.

44,530,479

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Real property taxes

320,705

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

40,593

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of building maintenance, vehicle maintenance, and risk to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

17,048,262

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Accrued liabilities
Bonds payable
Claims payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefit obligations payable

(155,453)
(4,913,507)
(1,823,694)
(22,870)
(1,370,109)
(22,470,384)
(30,756,017)

Net position of governmental activities

$ 46,323,065

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Capital
Non-Major
Projects
Governmental
Fund
Funds

General
REVENUES
Real property taxes and related items
Non-property taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation
for loss
lnterfund revenues
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
Public safety
Transportation
Home and community services
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year

$ 20,928,781
2,901,618
1,776,634
86,150
59,337
3,369,541
560,476

$

58,975
-

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

125,390
363,599
1,310
1,007
-

$ 21,054,171
3,265,217
1,777,944
86,150
60,344
3,428,516
560,476

366,397
444,409
2,790,693
9,849
181,163
33,475,048

368,125
57,994
80,673
565,767

51,353
542,659

366,397
444,409
3,158,818
67,843
313,189
34,583,474

3,659,719
15,393,247
3,458,207
3,832,209
5,312,503

-

343,219
-

3,659,719
15,393,247
3,458,207
4,175,428
5,312,503

-

-

262,291
141,092

262,291
141,092

31,655,885

11,188
714,599
398,864
1,124,651

746,602

11,188
714,599
398,864
33,527,138

1,819,163

(558,884)

(203,943)

1,056,336

(1,123,199)
(1,123,199)

975,582
(225,582)
750,000

273,199
273,199

1,248,781
(1,348,781)
(100,000)

695,964

191,116

69,256

956,336

12,363,291

1,075,353

744,063

14,182,707

$ 13,059,255

$ 1,266,469

813,319

$ 15,139,043

$

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds
to the Change in Net Position Shown in the Statement of Activities
Year Ended
December 31,
2014
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in
the current period. This amount is less than the total capital outlay since
capital outlay includes amounts that are under the capitalization threshold
or were repairs and maintenance and, therefore, were not capitalized.
Capital outlay expenditures capitalized
Depreciation expense
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds - real property taxes.
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Principal paid on bonds
Amortization of loss on refunding bonds and issuance premium
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:
Self-insured health benefits
Claims
Accrued interest
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefit obligations payable
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
building maintenance, vehicle maintenance, and risk to individual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities.
Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

$

956,336

397,487
(417,006)
(19,519)
129,915

262,291
(2,670)
259,621

107,776
(717,861)
1,423
23,442
(4,635,962)
(5,221,182)

(107,574)
$ (4,002,403)
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City of Rye, New York
General Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Final
Budget

Actual

21,136,130
2,550,000
1,724,605
84,045
50,700
2,149,520
551,200

$ 21,136,130
2,550,000
1,724,605
84,045
50,700
2,149,520
551,200

$ 20,928,781
2,901,618
1,776,634
86,150
59,337
3,369,541
560,476

81,000
440,509
3,042,705
167,350
31,977,764

81,000
440,509
3,042,705
167,350
31,977,764

366,397
444,409
2,790,693
9,849
181,163
33,475,048

285,397
3,900
(252,012)
9,849
13,813
1,497,284

72,144
464,838
168,416
288,278
101,534
164,431
242,016
50,218
436,962
355,419
52,484
48,522
278,665
334,529
37,232
366,519
300,000
3,762,207

122,144
665,921
168,416
318,278
101,534
164,431
339,725
50,218
436,962
369,334
49,492
51,514
434,982
334,529
37,232
382,179
4,026,891

71,997
626,514
147,847
265,646
93,671
159,656
309,170
49,044
391,252
348,361
45,104
50,166
430,590
280,217
33,969
356,515
3,659,719

50,147
39,407
20,569
52,632
7,863
4,775
30,555
1,174
45,710
20,973
4,388
1,348
4,392
54,312
3,263
25,664
367,172

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes and related items
Non-property tax
Charges for services
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation
for loss
lnterfund revenues
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
City Council
City manager
Finance administration
General accounting
Accounts payable
Payroll
Treasury
Parking Violation Bureau
Assessor
City clerk
Records management
Parking administration
Law
Human resources
Elections
Information technology
Contingent account
Total general government

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

$

(207,349)
351,618
52,029
2,105
8,637
1,220,021
9,276
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City of Rye, New York
General Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Final
Budget

Actual

1,329,016
6,580,390
885,248
143,630
276,317
185,061
247,460
4,993,909
24,359
574,932
221,748
15,462,070

1,272,719
6,490,875
1,009,059
143,750
276,317
197,354
242,315
5,370,429
34,224
575,877
221,748
15,834,667

1,175,115
6,364,278
940,996
118,692
271,066
196,812
179,280
5,352,332
24,149
548,779
221,748
15,393,247

97,604
126,597
68,063
25,058
5,251
542
63,035
18,097
10,075
27,098
441,420

Transportation
Public works administration
Engineering
Street maintenance
Snow removal
Street lighting
Off-street parking
Total transportation

1,288,944
514,654
861,326
294,390
358,587
244,781
3,562,682

1,224,973
522,064
872,162
401,577
408,194
244,781
3,673,751

1,148,725
503,119
773,951
401,579
404,153
226,680
3,458,207

76,248
18,945
98,211
(2)
4,041
18,101
215,544

Culture and recreation
Recreation administration
Parks and playgrounds
Recreation center
Recreation programs
Camps
Athletics
Tennis
Special events
Adult recreation
Rye youth council
Rye town park
Southeast consortium
Rye free reading room
Square house museum
Rye arts center
Special facilities administration
Rye nature center
Total culture and recreation

376,566
611,125
299,481
173,109
530,176
270,883
115,187
137,581
123,996
40,000
50,000
21,789
1,170,000
106,981
5,743
18,236
31,420
4,082,273

364,967
609,593
289,766
153,125
531,757
270,618
118,898
169,408
123,496
42,099
50,000
22,749
1,175,358
103,785
5,743
18,236
31,420
4,081,018

336,411
569,409
288,048
152,990
494,218
255,066
114,895
102,876
107,435
42,099
14,587
22,501
1,175,358
100,917
5,743
18,236
31,420
3,832,209

28,556
40,184
1,718
135
37,539
15,552
4,003
66,532
16,061
35,413
248
2,868
248,809

EXPENDITURES - Continued
Public safety
Police administration
Police patrol
Police investigations
Police marine patrol
Parking enforcement
School crossing guards
Traffic control
Fire prevention and suppression
Animal control
Building
Ambulance service
Total public safety

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
General Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Final
Budget

Original
Budget

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

EXPENDITURES - Continued
Home and community services
Planning
Sanitary sewers
Storm drains
Refuse and garbage
Recycling
Street cleaning
Community beautification
Rodent and insect control
Shade tree maintenance
Conservation
Total home and community
services

330,425
394,639
272,092
2,373,449
831,118
62,984
761,297
11,862
678,426
3,825

325,026
398,733
278,092
2,361,450
842,631
62,984
854,838
11,862
678,058
3,834

305,190
362,821
161,930
2,134,352
811,218
60,820
825,047
10,327
636,964
3,834

19,836
35,912
116,162
227,098
31,413
2,164
29,791
1,535
41,094
-

5,720,117

5,817,508

5,312,503

505,005

Total expenditures

32,589,349

33,433,835

31,655,885

1,777,950

(611,585)

(1,456,071)

1,819,163

3,275,234

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

(1,000,000)

(930,988)

Net change in fund balances

(1,611,585)

(2,387,059)

12,617,111

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year

$

11,005,526

$

(1,123,199)

192,211

695,964

3,467,445

12,363,291

12,363,291

-

9,976,232

$ 13,059,255

$

3,467,445

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2014
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Boat
Golf
Basin Fund
Club Fund
Total

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Deposits
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment·
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

479,380
950
2,915
554,586
11,686
1,049,517

$

2,400,276
30,551
11,595
29,921
2,472,343

$

2,879,656
31,501
14,510
554,586
41,607
3,521,860

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds

$

6,593,159
579,330
28,500
332,049
34,597
141,452
7,709,087

408
341,930
3,973,528
73,388
(2,784,787)

1,700,000
11,417,550
3,724,503
1,181,376
14,277
(8,947,053)

1,700,408
11,759,480
7,698,031
1,254,764
14,277
(11,731,840)

4,561,755
16,506,163
5,053,319
10,356,844
23,326
(14,753,611)

1,604,467
1,604,467

9,090,653
9,090,653

10,695,120
10,695,120

21,747,796
21,747,796

2,653,984

11,562,996

14,216,980

29,456,883

-

52,166

52,166

358,142

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds - Continued

Boat
Basin

December 31, 2014
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Golf
Club
Total

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Compensated absences
Capital lease obligation
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities

$

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable, less current portion
Compensated absences, less current portion
Capital lease obligation, less current portion
Other postemployment benefit obligations
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds
Net position of business-type activities

833
3,254
26,653
984
3,208
1,311
36,243

$

42,883
8,064
11,877
94,157
21,731
5,670
6,554
375,000
565,936

$

43,716
11,318
11,877
120,810
22,715
8,878
7,865
375,000
602,179

$

85,144
343,248
64,401
112,558
201,046
7,192
46,205
1,053,214
1,913,008

28,869
4,029
377,571
410,469

1,215,856
51,034
20,142
722,608
2,009,640

1,215,856
79,903
24,171
1,100,179
2,420,109

9,267,183
64,724
142,004
1,556,388
11,030,299

446,712

2,575,576

3,022,288

12,943,307

1,599,127
608,145

7,473,101
1,566,485

9,072,228
2,174,630

11,239,190
5,632,528

9,039,586

11,246,858

$ 16,871,718

2,207,272

$

(176,544)
$ 11,070,314

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Boat
Basin Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Materials and supplies
Contractual costs
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

$

190,670
147,675
46,780
115,666
422,264
923,055

Income (loss) from operations

Transfers in
Transfers out
Change in net position

$

5,386,744
596
5,387,340

$

4,343,866
227,340
4,571,206

666,485
707,732
1,044,566
943,962
1,024,673
4,387,418

622,029

385,445

183,788

3,431
(30,301)
(26,870)

17,989
4,343
(30,426)
(8,094)

30,956
3,602
(402,785)
(368,227)

(217,808)

595,159

377,351

(184,439)

(217,808)

595,159

377,351

383,904
(335,668)
(136,203)

8,444,427

10,869,507

2,425,080

NET POSITION, beginning of year

$

1,320,226
812,717
1,085,679
961,067
822,206
5,001,895

17,989
912
(125)
18,776

Income (loss) before transfers

4,700,273
596
4,700,869

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds

1,129,556
665,042
1,038,899
845,401
399,942
4,078,840

(236,584)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State and federal aid
Interest income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

NET POSITION, end of year

686,471
686,471

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Golf
Club Fund
Total

2,207,272

$

9,039,586

$

11,246,858

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds

$

377,351

CHANGE IN NET POSITION, business-type activities

$

17,007,921
$

16,871,718

(28,629)
348,722

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Boat
Golf
Basin Fund
Club Fund
Total
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to vendors

$

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State and federal aid
Transfers in
Transfers out

$

17,989
17,989

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Payments on capital lease obligation
Interest paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital lease obligation

(12,426)

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

491,806
$

479,380

$

$

5,366,998
(2,015,770)
(2,269,628)
1,081,600

4,343

463,823

451,397

1,936,453

2,428,259
$

2,879,656

4,569,603
(1,147,083)
(2,182,883)
1,239,637

30,956
383,904
(335,668)
79,192

(237,170)
(365,000)
(3,182)
(46,433)
(750)
(652,535)

3,431

2,400,276

$

17,989
17,989

(196,059)
(365,000)
(2,652)
(46,433)
(625)
(610,769)

912

Net change in cash and equivalents

4,679,503
(1,714,741)
(1,893,601)
1,071,161

-

(41,111)
(530)
(125)
(41,766)

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest income

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, end of year

687,495
(301,029)
(376,027)
10,439

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds

(375,947)
(1,012,709)
(18,694)
(315,406)
(4,408)
(1,727,164)

3,602
(404,733)
6,997,892
$

6,593,159

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds - Continued
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Boat
Golf
Basin Fund
Club Fund
Total
RECONCILIATION OF INCOME (LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Due from other governments
Other post employment benefit obligations
Compensated absences
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

$

(236,584)

$

622,029

$

385,445

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds

$

183,788

422,264

400,291

822,555

1,024,673

1,024
(2,915)
3,365
(396)
(4,660)
(212,986)
(649)
40,498
1,478
247,023

(21,366)
(7,014)
17,341
56,976
(78,945)
(41,311)
9,604
(7,612)
102,723
18,445
449,132

(20,342)
(9,929)
20,706
56,976
(79,341)
(45,971)
(203,382)
(8,261)
143,221
19,923
696,155

(202,775)
195,691
(7,049)
(169,902)
(87,267)
69,863
5,481
223,615
3,519
1,055,849

10,439

$

1,071,161

$

1,081,600

$

1,239,637

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Fund
Trust and
Agency
December 31,
2014
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Employee payroll deductions
Total liabilities

$

310,832
1,293
1

$

312,126

$

231,297
23,060
57,769

$

312,126

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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City of Rye, New York
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The City of Rye, New York (City) was incorporated in 1942 and operates in accordance with its
Charter and the various other applicable laws of the State of New York. The City functions under a
City Council/Manager form of government. The City Council is the legislative body responsible for
overall operation. The City Manager serves as the Chief Administrative Officer, and the City
Comptroller serves as the Chief Financial Officer. The City provides the following services to its
residents: public safety, transportation, culture and recreation, home and community services, and
general and administrative support.
The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America (U.S. GAAP) as applicable to governmental units and the Uniform System
of Accounts as prescribed by the State of New York. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the City’s more significant accounting
policies:
a. Financial Reporting Entity
The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government which is the City,
b) organizations for which the City is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth by GASB.
In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the City’s
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. Based upon the application of these criteria, there are no
other entities that would be included in the financial statements.
The City participates in a joint venture for the operation of the Rye Town Park (Park). The Park
was established in 1907 by the New York State Legislature pursuant to Chapter 711 of the Laws of
1907. The Park provides recreational activities to the public and is governed by a Commission,
which has full charge and supervision over the capital improvements, operations, and maintenance
of the Park. The Commission consists of six members: the Supervisor of the Town of Rye, the
Mayor of the City of Rye, the Mayor of the Village of Port Chester, the Mayor of the Village of Rye
Brook, one Commissioner appointed by the City Council of the City of Rye, and one Commissioner
appointed by the Town Board of the Town of Rye. The City of Rye does not have an equity interest
in the Park. The City has an ongoing financial responsibility in that the annual income or loss
resulting from the Park’s activities is shared proportionally by the City of Rye and the Town of Rye,
using a calculation based on their equalized assessed valuation. The City’s share of the Park’s
loss reflected in the City’s 2014 financial statements is $14,587. Complete separate financial
statements for the Park may be obtained from the Town of Rye, 10 Pearl Street, Port Chester, New
York 10573.
b. Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the City as a whole. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, except for interfund
services provided and used. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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City of Rye, New York
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
b. Government-Wide Financial Statements - Continued
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the City at the end of its fiscal year.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment, and (3) interest earned on grants that is
required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items not identified as
program revenues are reported as general revenues. The City does not allocate indirect expenses
to functions in the statement of activities.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise
funds and the internal service funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for
the enterprise funds and the internal service funds include the cost of services, administrative
expenses, depreciation costs, and benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting the
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
c.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance
related legal and contractual provisions. The City maintains the minimum number of funds
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund financial
statements is on major funds as that term is defined in professional pronouncements. Each major
fund is to be presented in a separate column, with non-major funds, if any, aggregated and
presented in a single column. The City maintains internal service and fiduciary funds, which are
reported by type. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental
activities column, a reconciliation is presented on the pages following, which briefly explains the
adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental
activities column of the government-wide presentation. The City’s resources are reflected in the
fund financial statements in three broad fund categories, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, as follows:
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City of Rye, New York
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
c.

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most general government
functions are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and
the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The following are the City’s
major governmental funds.
General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the City and is
used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another
fund.
Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets, other
than those financed by proprietary funds.
The City also reports the following non-major governmental funds:
Cable TV Special Revenue Fund - The Cable TV Special Revenue Fund is used to account for
the receipt and use of revenues received from the franchise holder for public access cable
television programming.
K.T. Woods Permanent Fund - The K.T. Woods Permanent Fund is used to report resources
that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be used for
purposes that support the City’s programs, namely the funding of certain expenditures in the
Rye Nature Center.
Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest,
and for financial resources that are being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in
future years.
Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private enterprises or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that provide services to
the public. Internal service funds are used to account for operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies of the government, or other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.
The operations of the Boat Basin and Golf Club Funds are recorded as major enterprise funds.
The City has established its Risk Retention and Building and Vehicle Maintenance Funds as
internal service funds.
Fiduciary Funds - (not included in government-wide financial statements) - The Fiduciary funds are
used to account for assets held by the City in an agency capacity on behalf of others. The Agency
Fund is used to account for employee payroll tax withholdings and various other deposits that are
payable to other jurisdictions or individuals.
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City of Rye, New York
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being
measured, such as current financial resources (current assets less current liabilities) or economic
resources (all assets and liabilities). The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The Agency Fund
has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers property tax revenues to be available if
collected within sixty days of the fiscal year end. A ninety-day availability period is used for
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Property taxes associated with the
current fiscal period as well as charges for services and intergovernmental revenues are
considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Fees and other similar revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are
not measurable until received in cash. If expenditures are the prime factor for determining
eligibility, revenues from Federal and State grants are accrued when the expenditure is made.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims, compensated
absences, and other post-employment benefit obligations are recorded only when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
e. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Fund Balances
Deposits and Risk Disclosure
Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand deposit
accounts, time deposit accounts, and certificates of deposit with original maturities of less than
three months.
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State statutes govern the City’s deposit and investment policies. The City has adopted its own
written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured commercial banks
or trust companies located within the State. The City is authorized to use demand deposit
accounts, time deposit accounts, and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New
York State or its political subdivisions. Accordingly, the City’s policy provides for no credit risk on
investments.
Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts, and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The City has entered
into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold its deposits. These agreements
authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obligations include, among other
instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies, and obligations of the State and its
municipal and school district subdivisions.
The City utilizes a pooled investment concept for governmental and proprietary funds to facilitate its
investment program. Investment income from this pooling is allocated to the respective funds
based upon the sources of funds invested.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as exposed to custodial
credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are either
uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department but not in the
City’s name. The City’s aggregate bank balances that were not covered by depository insurance
were not exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2014.
Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property when levied.
City property taxes are levied by the City on February 1st and collected by the City in one
installment in February, and are due and payable without penalty during the month of February.
County property taxes are levied by the County on April 1st and collected by the City in one
installment in May, and are due and payable without penalty during the month of May. Rye Neck
Union Free School District property taxes are levied by the school district on September 1st and
collected by the City in two installments: the taxes for the period July 1st to June 30th are due on
September 1st, with the first half payable without penalty until September 30th, and the second half
payable without penalty until November 30th. The Rye City School District is responsible for the
levy and collection of Rye City School District taxes until July 1st of the following year, after which
collection becomes the responsibility of the City. In accordance with Westchester County Finance
Law, the City guarantees the full payment of the County, Rye City School District, and Rye Neck
Union Free School District warrants, and assumes the responsibility for uncollected taxes. The City
also has the responsibility for conducting in-rem foreclosure proceedings.
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The City functions in both a fiduciary and guarantor relationship with the County of Westchester
and the school districts with respect to the collection and payment of real property taxes levied by
such jurisdictions. The County Charter provides for the City to collect County taxes. The City must
remit to the County sixty percent (60%) of the amount levied by May 25th, and the balance of forty
percent (40%) on October 15th. With respect to school district taxes, New York State law and the
County Charter provide that the City satisfy the warrant of the school districts by July 1st of the
fiscal year for which such taxes were levied. Thus, the City’s fiduciary responsibility for school
district taxes is from the date of the levy until the respective due dates, at which time the City must
satisfy its obligations to the school districts, regardless of the amounts collected. Since the County
tax warrant must be paid in full by October 15th, uncollected County taxes have been accounted for
in a manner similar to City taxes. The collection of school district taxes is deemed a financing
transaction until the warrants are satisfied.
Other Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuals for services provided by the City. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized
as earned or as specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are recorded
when appropriate.
Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the City has numerous
transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services, and construct assets.
Balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the fund financial
statements to the extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as
of December 31st. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal
balances.
Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods, and are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of
employee retirement, workers’ compensation insurance, and other costs which have been satisfied
prior to the end of the fiscal year, but represent items which have been provided for in the
subsequent year’s budget and will benefit such periods. Reported amounts in governmental funds
are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that these amounts do not
constitute “available spendable resources” even though they are a component of current assets.
Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City defines
capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $15,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.
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In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date
or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets
through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be
capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or
estimated acquisition year).
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives is not capitalized.
Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated.
Property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:
Asset
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Prior to January 1, 1995

Subsequent to January 1, 1995

45
20
5-15
20

50
5-20
5-10
25-50

The costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets is shown as capital
outlay expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are not shown
on the governmental fund balance sheets.
Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied. In the government-wide financial statements, unearned
revenues consist of revenue received in advance and/or amounts from grants received before the
eligibility requirements have been met.
Unearned revenues in the fund financial statements are those where asset recognition criteria
have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City has
reported unearned revenues of $548,810 for parking permit and building permit fees received in
advance in the General Fund. Such amounts have been deemed to be measurable but not
“available” pursuant to U.S. GAAP.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.
The City has reported deferred outflows of resources of $398,735 and $52,166 for a deferred loss
on refunding bonds in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position,
respectively. These amounts result from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt
and its reacquisition price. These amounts are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life
of the refunded or refunding debt.
The City has reported deferred inflows of resources of $320,702 for real property taxes in the
General Fund. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amount becomes available.
Long-Term Liabilities - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
expensed as incurred.
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as Capital Projects
Fund expenditures.
Compensated Absences - The various collective bargaining agreements provide for the payment of
accumulated vacation and sick leave upon separation from service. The liability for such
accumulated leave is reflected in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as
current and long-term liabilities. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds
only if the liability has matured through employee resignation or retirement. The liability for
compensated absences includes salary related payments, where applicable.
Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted when
there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. Net position on the statement of net position include net investment in capital assets,
restricted for capital projects, permanent fund, special purposes, debt service, and risk retention.
The balance is classified as unrestricted.
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Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and
deferred outflows of resources and current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. In the fund
financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Under this standard, the fund balance
classifications are as follows:
Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term receivables) or they are legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact (the corpus of a permanent fund).
Restricted fund balance is reported when constraints placed on the use of the resources are
imposed by grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments or imposed by law
through enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a legally enforceable requirement
that these resources be used only for the specific purposes as provided in the legislation. This
fund balance classification is used to report funds that are restricted for debt service obligations
and for other items contained in the General Municipal Law of the State of New York.
Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to formal action of the entity’s highest level of decision making authority. The City
Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City that can, by the adoption of
a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, these
funds may only be used for the purpose specified unless the City removes or changes the
purpose by taking the same action that was used to establish the commitment. This
classification includes certain amounts established and approved by the City Council.
Assigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts constrained either by policies
of the City Council for amounts assigned for balancing the subsequent year’s budget or the City
Comptroller for amounts assigned for purchases on order, police purposes, fire purposes,
parks, recreation programs, WWI memorial, and tax certiorari.
Unlike commitments,
assignments generally exist temporarily, in that additional action does not normally have to be
taken for the removal of an assignment. An assignment cannot result in a deficit in the
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund. Assigned fund balance in all other
governmental funds represents any positive remaining amount after classifying nonspendable,
restricted, or committed fund balance amounts.
Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that
would report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds other
than the General Fund, unassigned fund balance would necessarily be negative, since the
fund’s liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, together with amounts already classified as
nonspendable, restricted, and committed would exceed the fund’s assets and deferred outflows
of resources.
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In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted and unrestricted fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. When both restricted and unrestricted
amounts of fund balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For
unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund balance in the following
order: committed, assigned, and unassigned.
f.

Encumbrances

In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end
are reported as assigned fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
g. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
h. New Accounting Pronouncements
GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.
This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government
combinations and disposals of government operations. Government combinations include a variety
of transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. This statement
provides specific accounting and financial reporting guidance for combinations in this environment
and improves the decision usefulness of financial reporting by requiring that disclosures be made
by governments about combination arrangements in which they engage and for disposals of
government operations.
GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by
state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. This
statement provides financial reporting and disclosure guidance to those governments that extend
and receive nonexchange financial guarantees, thereby enhancing comparability of financial
statements among governments.
There was no significant impact to the City’s financial statements as a result of adopting of GASB
Statements No. 69 and No. 70 as of January 1, 2014.
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i.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

The City has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition or disclosure through June 29,
2015, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
a. Budgetary Data
The City generally follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:
a) On or before the seventh day of November, the City Manager submits to the City Council a
tentative budget presenting a financial plan for conducting the affairs of the City for the
ensuing fiscal year.
b) Upon receipt of the Manager’s tentative budget and prior to a public hearing, the City
Council may, by a vote of at least four members of the City Council, make changes in the
tentative budget.
c)

After considering the tentative budget, but not later than the first Wednesday in December
and with a public notice published ten days in advance, the City Council holds a public
hearing on the proposed budget.

d) After the public hearing, but not later than December 31st, the City Council adopts the
budget presented at the public hearing as submitted or amended. Amendments made
between the time of the public hearing and the date of adoption, which increase total
estimated revenues or total appropriations, require an affirmative vote of at least five
members of the City Council.
e) Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device
for General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.
f)

Budgets for General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are legally adopted
annually on a basis consistent with U.S. GAAP. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on
a project basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the proprietary funds.

g) The City Manager may, at any time during the fiscal year, transfer part or all of any
unencumbered appropriation balance among programs or accounts within a department,
office, or agency under his/her supervision, and such transfers are reported to the Council
at or prior to the next City Council meeting. The City Council may, by resolution, transfer
part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance among programs or accounts of a
Board or commission or within a department, office, or agency, or from one Board,
commission, department, office, or agency to another. No appropriation for debt service
may be reduced or transferred, and no appropriation may be reduced below any amount
required by law to be appropriated or by more than the amount of the unencumbered
balance thereof.
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h) Appropriations in General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds lapse at the end of
the fiscal year, except that outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the
succeeding year pursuant to the Uniform System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of
the State Comptroller.
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. Individual
amendments for the current year were not material in relation to the original appropriations that
were amended.
b. Property Tax Limitation
The City is not limited as to the maximum amount of real property taxes which may be raised.
However, on June 24, 2011, the Governor signed Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011 (Tax Levy
Limitation Law). This applies to all local governments.
The Tax Levy Limitation Law restricts the amount of real property taxes that may be levied by a
City in a particular year, beginning with the 2012 year. It expires on June 16, 2016.
The following is a brief summary of certain relevant provisions of the Tax Levy Limitation Law. The
summary is not complete and the full text of the Tax Levy Limitation Law should be read in order to
understand the details and implementations thereof.
The Tax Levy Limitation Law imposes a limitation on increases in the real property tax levy, subject
to certain exceptions. The Tax Levy Limitation Law permits the City to increase its overall real
property tax levy over the tax levy of the prior year by no more than the “Allowable Levy Growth
Factor,” which is the lesser of one and two-one hundredths or the sum of one plus the Inflation
Factor; provided, however that in no case shall the levy growth factor be less than one. The
“Inflation Factor” is the quotient of: (i) the average of the National Consumer Price Indexes
determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period ending sixmonths prior to the start of the coming fiscal year minus the average of the National Consumer
Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period
ending six months prior to the start of the prior fiscal year, divided by (ii) the average of the National
Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor with the result
expressed as a decimal to four places. The City is required to calculate its tax levy limit for the
upcoming year in accordance with the provision above and provide all relevant information to the
New York State Comptroller prior to adopting its budget. The Tax Levy Limitation Law sets forth
certain exclusions to the real property tax levy limitation of the City, including exclusions for certain
portions of the expenditures for retirement system contributions and tort judgments payable by the
City. The City Council may adopt a budget that exceeds the tax levy limit for the coming fiscal year,
only if the City Council first enacts, by a vote of at least sixty percent of the total voting power of the
City Council, a local law to override such limit for such coming fiscal year.
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c.

Capital Projects Fund Project Deficits

The following capital projects reflect deficits at December 31, 2014, due to expenditures exceeding
current financing on the projects. These deficits will be eliminated with the subsequent receipt or
issuance of authorized financing.
Kirby Land Sanitary Sewer
Annual Sidewalk Replacement Program
14B Locust Avenue Sewer
Boston Post Road Rock Stabilization
13 Upper Blond Brook Study

$

405,555
166,979
11,000
9,771
4,014

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds
a. Taxes Receivable
Taxes receivable at December 31, 2014, consisted of the following:
City taxes, current
City taxes, delinquent
School district taxes, current

$ 1,234,389
244,802
201,879
$ 1,681,070

School district taxes are offset by liabilities to the school district, which will be paid no later than
July 1, 2015. Taxes receivable are also partially offset in the fund financial statements by deferred
tax revenues of $320,705, which represents an estimate of the receivable that will not be collected
within the first sixty days of the subsequent year. School and County taxes receivable in the
amount of $1,018,866 are also classified as nonspendable fund balance in the fund financial
statements, which represents an estimate of taxes receivable that will not be collected within the
subsequent year.
b. Due From/To Other Funds
The balances reflected as due from/to other funds at December 31, 2014, were as follows:
Receivable Fund
General Fund

Payable Fund
Cable TV Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Boat Basin Fund
Golf Club Fund
Building and Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Amount
$

30,927
1,320,411
26,653
94,157
201,046
1,673,194

Capital Projects Fund

General Fund

25,734

Golf Club Fund

Payroll Fund

11,595

Boat Basin Fund

Payroll Fund

2,915

Payroll Fund

General Fund

Cable TV Fund

Payroll Fund

Building and Vehicle Maintenance Fund

General Fund
Payroll Fund

1
2,355
325,854
6,195
332,049
$ 2,047,843
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The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that
(1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions
are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.
c. Capital Assets
Changes in the City’s capital assets are as follows:
Balance
January 1,
2014

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

4,561,755
3,904,471
8,466,226

Additions

$

385,626
385,626

Balance
December 31,
2014

Deletions

$

(2,134,353)
(2,134,353)

$

4,561,755
2,155,744
6,717,499

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Infrastructure
Total depreciable capital assets

16,506,163
4,672,224
10,103,018
67,062,881
98,344,286

174,192
546,803
2,008,070
2,729,065

-

16,506,163
4,846,416
10,649,821
69,070,951
101,073,351

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation

3,440,437
2,558,081
7,760,083
26,255,884
40,014,485

328,924
203,453
548,707
417,006
1,498,090

-

3,769,361
2,761,534
8,308,790
26,672,890
41,512,575

Net depreciable capital assets

58,329,801

1,230,975

-

59,560,776

Total net capital assets governmental activities

$ 66,796,027

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

Balance
January 1,
2014

$

1,700,408
78,703
1,779,111

1,616,601

$

Additions

$

9,111
9,111

(2,134,353)

Balance
December 31,
2014

Deletions

$

$ 66,278,275

73,537
73,537

$

1,700,408
14,277
1,714,685

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total depreciable capital assets

11,759,480
7,361,215
1,254,764
20,375,459

336,816
336,816

-

11,759,480
7,698,031
1,254,764
20,712,275

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

5,086,437
4,580,435
1,242,413
10,909,285

205,812
613,655
3,088
822,555

-

5,292,249
5,194,090
1,245,501
11,731,840

9,466,174

(485,739)

-

8,980,435

73,537

$ 10,695,120

Net depreciable capital assets
Total business-type capital assets
water activities

$ 11,245,285

$

(476,628)

$
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Capital Assets - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to the City’s functions and programs as follows:
Governmental activities
Public safety
Transportation
Home and community services
Capital assets held by the government's internal
service fund are charged to the various functions
based on their usage of the assets

$

25,182
158,905
232,919
1,081,084

Total depreciation expense for governmental
activities

$ 1,498,090

Business-type activities
Boat Basin
Golf Club

422,266
400,289

Total depreciation expense for business-type
activities

$

822,555

d. Capital Lease Obligations
The City has a capital lease for the acquisition of a telephone system.
A summary of the net book value of the assets acquired under this capital leases is as follows:
The lease term calls for monthly payments totaling $4,506, including imputed interest of 4.43%.
The lease matures in July 2019.
A summary of the City’s future maturities under this capital lease obligation are as follows:
2014
Payments required under capital lease obligation
Less amount representing interest

$

243,316
23,071
220,245
54,070

$

166,175

Less current portion
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Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2014, were as follows:
BusinessType
Activities

Governmental
Activities
Payroll and employee benefits
Claims

f.

$

Total

824,470
322,157

$

187,863
-

$ 1,012,333
322,157

$ 1,146,627

$

187,863

$ 1,334,490

Unpaid Claim Liabilities

The Risk Retention Fund reflects general liability claim liabilities. The government-wide statement
of net position reflects health benefit claim liabilities. The liabilities are based upon estimates of the
ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported, but
not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which
such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Because actual claim
costs depend on such complex factors, such as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and
damage awards, the process used in computing claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. Using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques, claim liabilities are
recomputed periodically to produce current estimates. These estimates reflect recent settlements,
claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation
of estimated future claim costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on
actual historical data that reflect past inflation and other factors that are considered to be
appropriate modifiers of past experience.
An analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2014
General
Health
Liability
Benefits
BALANCE, beginning of year
Provision for claims and claim adjustment
expenses
Claims and claims adjustment expenses paid

$

BALANCE, end of year

$

382,000

$

216,823
(255,575)
343,248

263,229
1,517,209
(1,624,985)

$

155,453

The liability for health claims is reflected in the government-wide financial statements within
accrued liabilities. In the fund financial statements, payments in excess of deposits by the claims
administrator have been reflected as accrued liabilities.
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g. Pension Plans
The City participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and
the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) (Systems). These
Systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The Systems provide
retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Contributions required of employers and
employees, and benefits to employees, are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Systems. That report may be obtained
by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York
12224.
Funding Policy - The Systems are non-contributory except for employees in tiers 3 and 4 that have
less than ten years of service, who contribute 3% of their salary, employees in tier 5 who also
contribute 3% of their salary without regard to their years of service and employees in tier 6 who
contribute between 3% and 6% depending on salary levels and also without regard to years of
service. Contributions are certified by the State Comptroller and are expressed as a percentage of
members’ salary. Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership tier
and plan. Contributions consist of a life insurance portion and regular pension contributions.
Contribution rates for the plans’ year’s ended March 31, 2015, are as follows:
Tier/Plan/
Option

ERS

PFRS

Rate

2 751/41J
3 A14/41J
4 A15/41J
5 A15/41J
6 A15/41J1

26.2
21.0
21.0
16.9

2 384D
5 384D
6 384D

28.4
22.7
16.0

11.4

h. Pension Plans
Contributions made to the Systems for the current and two preceding years were as follows:

2014
2013
2012

ERS

PFRS

$ 1,434,857
1,235,540
1,146,257

$ 1,835,604
1,753,871
1,232,738

These contributions were equal to the 100% of the actuarially required contributions for each
respective fiscal year.
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h. Pension Plans - Continued
The current ERS contribution for the City was charged to various departments within the funds
identified below. The current PFRS contribution was charged to the General Fund.
Fund

Amount

General
Cable TV
Boat Basin
Golf Club
Building and Vehicle Maintenance

$ 1,153,808
30,742
27,261
93,765
129,281
$ 1,434,857

The City also provides benefits to those police officers that retired from service prior to the
inception of PFRS. Benefits are calculated pursuant to Section 192 of the Retirement and Social
Security Law. It is the policy of the City to fund any benefits from the General Fund Police
Department budget. These pension costs for the year ended December 31, 2014, were $3,027.
The pension benefit obligation of this plan is not significant to the City.
i.

Long-Term Liabilities

The changes in the City’s long-term liabilities were as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Maturities
Balance
New Issues/
and/or
December 31,
Additions
Payments
2014

Balance
January 1,
2014
Governmental activities
Bonds payable
Plus unamortized premium on bonds
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$ 16,100,000
472,048
16,572,048

Other non-current liabilities
Capital lease obligations
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefit obligations
payable
Total depreciable capital assets
Governmental activities long-term liabilities
Business-type activities
Bonds payable
Plus unamortized premium on bonds
Less unamortized discount on bond

-

$

$

14,825,000
408,904
15,233,904

$

1,320,000
1,320,000

206,903
898,477
125,877

18,694
180,616
145,800

188,209
1,823,694
1,442,025

38,652
750,000
144,203

19,167,195
21,734,976

6,926,382
8,157,639

2,066,805
2,411,915

24,026,772
27,480,700

932,855

$

8,157,639

$

$

$

-

$

$

1,275,000
63,144
1,338,144

1,105,833
1,461,948

$ 38,307,024

Other non-current liabilities
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefit obligations
payable
Total other non-current liabilities
Business-type activities long-term liabilities

$

Due Within
On Year

1,910,000
78,697
(4,000)
1,984,697

3,750,059

365,000
29,189
(348)
393,841

$

$

42,714,604

1,545,000
49,508
(3,652)
1,590,856

$

2,252,855

$

375,000
375,000

68,858

35,218
-

3,182
19,923

32,036
88,781

6,579
8,878

956,958
1,025,816

294,132
329,350

150,911
174,016

1,100,179
1,220,996

15,457

3,010,513

$

329,350

$

567,857

$

2,811,852

$

390,457
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i.

Long-Term Liabilities - Continued

The liability for compensated absences and other post-employment benefit obligations is liquidated
by the General, Cable TV, Boat Basin, Golf and Building, and Vehicle Maintenance Funds. The
General Fund liquidates claims liabilities. The City’s governmental fund indebtedness for bonds is
satisfied by the Debt Service Fund, which is funded by the General Fund.
Bonds Payable
Bonds payable at December 31, 2014, are comprised of the following individual issues:
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original
Issue
Amount

Year of
Issue

Purpose

EFC - Land Acquisition
Refunding Bonds
Public Improvements
EFC - Kirby Lane Sewer
Refunding Bonds

2004
2010
2010
2010
2013

$

Final
Maturity

1,708,013
8,965,000
3,534,000
2,373,374
5,175,000

August 2024
September 2021
September 2030
April 2039
December 2025

Amount
Outstanding
at
December 31,
2014

Interest
Rates

4.061 to 4.964
3.000 to 4.000
2.000 to 4.000
1.414 to 4.603
0.625 to 2.500

$

945,000
6,090,000
3,020,000
2,020,000
4,295,000

$ 16,370,000

Interest expenditure/expense of $141,092 and $402,785 was recorded in the fund financial
statements in the Debt Service Fund and the Internal Service Fund, respectively. Interest expense
of $545,124 was recorded in the government-wide financial statements for expense of $545,124
was recorded in the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities. Interest
expense of $59,267 was recorded in the fund financial and government-wide financial statements
for the business-type activities.
Payments to Maturity
The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding, including interest of $3,674,951
as of December 31, 2014, are as follows:
Bonds
Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

Year
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039

$

1,320,000
1,340,000
1,385,000
1,435,000
1,480,000
4,820,000
1,930,000
670,000
445,000

$

14,825,000

$

471,501
435,140
405,832
375,345
332,563
987,670
395,127
122,306
39,328

$ 3,564,812

Business-type Activities
Principal
Interest
$

Total
Principal

375,000
380,000
390,000
400,000
-

$

40,813
32,713
24,113
12,500
-

$

1,695,000
1,720,000
1,775,000
1,835,000
1,480,000
4,820,000
1,930,000
670,000
445,000

$ 1,545,000

$

110,139

$

16,370,000

Interest
$

512,314
467,853
429,945
387,845
332,563
987,670
395,127
122,306
39,328

$ 3,674,951

The above general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full faith and
credit are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable real property within the City.
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Long-Term Liabilities - Continued

Advance Refunding
In prior years, the City defeased certain debt obligations, whereby the proceeds of the new
obligations were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the
defeased obligations. At December 31, 2014, approximately $4,295,000 of such defeased
obligations were outstanding. The assets and liabilities related to these obligations are not
reported in the accompanying financial statements.
Claims Payable
Claims payable reflects a liability of $1,073,694 for tax certiorari refunds, which were not due and
payable at year-end. This amount represents likely tax certiorari refunds based upon proceedings
pending against the City to reduce assessments upon which taxes had been levied. This amount
has been recorded as an expense in the government-wide financial statements.
Compensated Absences
Vacation time is generally taken in the year subsequent to the year in which it is earned, although
employees may be granted permission to carry over unused vacation time beyond one year.
Employees may be paid up to 36 days of unused vacation time upon separation of service. Full
time administrative employees and full-time employees who are members of the Civil Service
Employees Association (CSEA) Clerical Unit hired prior to January 1, 1977, may accrue a
maximum of 365 sick leave days, and those hired on or after January 1, 1977, may accrue a
maximum of 250 sick leave days. Full-time employees who are members of the CSEA Public
Works Unit hired prior to January 1, 1977, may accrue a maximum of 365 sick leave days, and
those hired on or after January 1, 1977, may accrue a maximum 200 sick leave days. The City will
pay accrued sick time to all full-time administrative employees at the daily rate of pay for each day
of accrued sick leave in excess of 165 days, to a maximum of 35 days. The City will pay accrued
sick time to all full-time CSEA Clerical Unit employees who have 20 years of service with the City at
the daily rate of pay for each day of accrued sick leave in excess of 165 days, to a maximum of 35
days. The City will pay accrued sick time to police officers who retire and have accumulated sick
leave in excess of 220 days, in an amount equal to two day’s pay per year of service to a maximum
of 40 days. There is no payment of accrued sick time upon retirement to firefighters. The value of
the compensated absences has been reflected as a liability in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements, and as restricted fund balance in the governmental fund financial
statements.
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations Payable
In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care benefits for retired
employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The various collective bargaining
agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of contribution. Contributions by
the City may vary according to the length of service. The cost of providing postemployment health
care benefits is shared between the City and the retired employee. Substantially all of the City’s
employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while
working for the City. The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as expenditure as claims
are paid in the fund financial statements. The City has recognized revenues and expenditures of
$46,754 for Medicare Part D payments made directly to its health insurance carrier on behalf of its
retirees.
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Long-Term Liabilities - Continued

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution, (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition, and display of the expenses and liabilities for retirees’ medical
insurance. As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilities will no longer be done under the “payas-you-go” approach. Instead of expensing the current year premiums paid, a per capita claims
cost will be determined, which will be used to determine a “normal cost,” an “actuarial accrued
liability,” and ultimately the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
over a period not to exceed thirty years.
Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. In addition, the assumptions and
projections utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future.
The actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.
The City is required to accrue on the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements
the amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined, which is equal to the balance
not paid by plan members. Funding for the Plan has been established on a pay-as-you go basis.
The assumed rates of increase in postretirement benefits are as follows:
Healthcare
Cost
Trend Rate %
Year ended December 31,
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018+

9.00
8.00
7.00
6.00
5.00

The amortization basis is the level dollar method with an open amortization approach with 24
years remaining in the amortization period. The actuarial assumptions also include a 4%
investment rate of return, a 2.5% inflation rate, and a 2.5% annual payroll growth rate. The
City currently has no assets set aside for the purpose of paying postemployment benefits. The
actuarial cost method utilized was the projected unit credit method.
The number of participants as of December 31, 2014, was as follows:
Active employees
Retired employees

147
119
266

Page 49

City of Rye, New York
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014
Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued
i.

Long-Term Liabilities - Continued

Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations Payable - Continued
Governmental
Funds
Amortization component
Actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2014
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL")

Enterprise
Funds

$

73,656,554

$

4,172,167

$

77,828,721

$

73,656,554

$

4,172,167

$

77,828,721

Funded ratio

0.00%

Covered payroll (active plan members)

$

10,962,472

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

0.00%
$

671.90%

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligation

$

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

6,546,138
760,959
(924,773)
6,382,324
(1,494,732)
4,887,592

$

24,026,772

0.00%

634,572

$

657.48%
$

19,139,180

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

Total

671.11%

294,132
44,007
(54,829)
283,310
(168,104)
115,206

$

984,973
$

11,597,044

6,840,270
804,966
(979,602)
6,665,634
(1,662,836)
5,002,798
20,124,153

1,100,179

$

25,126,951

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the current and two preceding years is as follows:
Fiscal
Year Ended
December 31,

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

Annual
OPEB Cost

2014
2013
2012

$

6,665,634
5,597,857
5,353,525

24.95%
35.69%
32.77%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$

25,126,951
20,124,153
16,524,152

The schedule of funding progress for the OPEB plan immediately following the notes to financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan
assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the benefits over
time.
j.

Significant Commitments - Encumbrances

As discussed in Note 2a, Budgetary Data, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent
necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective
cash planning and control. At December 31, 2014, the amount of encumbrances expected to
be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year are as follows:
Fund
General
Non-Major Governmental - Cable TV
Total

$

258,442
32,217

$

290,659
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k. Revenues and Expenditures
Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers are defined as the flow of assets (such as cash or goods and services) between
funds of the City without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a requirement for
repayment. Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, are as follows:
Capital
Projects

Transfers Out
General
Capital Projects

Transfers In
Non-Major
Governmental

Internal
Service

Total

$

750,000
225,582

$

273,199
-

$

100,000
-

$ 1,123,199
225,582

$

975,582

$

273,199

$

100,000

$ 1,348,781

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the Debt
Service Fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due and 2) move
unrestricted General Fund revenues to finance various programs that the government must
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided
as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs.
l.

Net Position and Fund Balance

The components of net position are detailed below:
Net Investment in Capital Assets - the component of net position that reports the difference
between capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of
debt, excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.
Restricted for Capital Projects - the component of net position that reports the amounts restricted
for capital projects, exclusive of unexpended bond proceeds and unrestricted interest earnings.
Restricted for Permanent Fund - the component of net position that reports the difference between
the assets and liabilities of the non-expendable trust with constraints placed on their use by an
external party.
Restricted for Special Purposes - the component of net position that reports the difference between
assets and liabilities of certain police department, fire department, parks, recreation, and WWI
memorial programs with constraints placed on their use by external parties.
Restricted for Debt Service - the component of net position that reports the difference between the
assets and liabilities of the Debt Service Fund with constraints placed on their use by New York
State Local Finance Law.
Restricted for Risk Retention - the component of net position that provides for the payment of selfinsured general and liability claims pursuant to New York State Law.
Unrestricted - all other amounts that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”
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l.

Net Position - Continued
December 31, 2014
Capital
Non-Major
Projects
Governmental
Fund
Funds

General
Fund
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenditures
Long-term receivables
Permanent Fund
Total nonspendable
Restricted
Compensated absences
Police purposes
Fire purposes
Parks
Recreation programs
WWI memorial
9/11 memorial
Council chamber
Capital projects
Permanent Fund
Debt service
Total restricted
Assigned
Purchases on order
General government support
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Other
Subsequent year's expenditures
Tax certiorari
Cable TV
Total assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

$

1,060,569
1,018,866
2,079,435

$

-

$

5,300
20,000
25,300

Total
$

1,065,869
1,018,866
20,000
2,104,735

1,380,142
5,309
2,000
99,659
356,745
4,151
250
26,038
1,874,294

1,266,469
1,266,469

10,289
190
47,593
58,072

1,390,431
5,309
2,000
99,659
356,745
4,151
250
26,038
1,266,469
190
47,593
3,198,835

119,235
68,953
35,863
18,907
15,484
258,442

-

32,217
32,217

119,235
68,953
35,863
18,907
47,701
290,659

2,527,452
1,073,694
-

-

697,730

2,527,452
1,073,694
697,730

3,859,588

-

729,947

4,589,535

5,245,938

-

-

5,245,938

$ 13,059,255

$ 1,266,469

$

813,319

$

15,139,043
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Certain elements of fund balance are described above. Those additional elements which are not
reflected in the statement of net position but are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet
are described below.
Prepaid expenditures represents workers’ compensation insurance, retirement, and other costs
paid in advance. The amount is classified as nonspendable to indicate that funds are not
“available” for appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.
Long-term receivables have been classified as nonspendable to indicate the long-term nature of
taxes receivable collected for other governments. These funds are not “available” for appropriation
or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.
Amounts restricted for compensated absences represent funds set aside for the payment of
accumulated vacation and sick leave in accordance with various collective bargaining agreements
and the General Municipal Law of the State of New York. These funds are not “available” for
appropriation or expenditure.
Amounts restricted for workers’ compensation represents funds set aside to be used for a specific
purpose in accordance with Section 6-j of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York.
Purchases on order are assigned and represent the City’s intention to honor the contracts in
process at year-end. The subsequent year’s appropriations will be amended to provide authority to
complete the transactions.
Other assignments of fund balance are not legally required segregations but represent intended
use for a specific purpose. At December 31, 2014, the City Council has assigned the above
amounts to be appropriated for the ensuing year’s budget, police purposes, fire purposes, the
acquisition and/or embellishment of parks and playgrounds, recreational programs, WWI memorial,
and tax certiorari settlements.
Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as nonspendable,
restricted, or assigned.
Note 4 - Commitments and Contingencies
a. Litigation
The City is a part to various legal proceedings, including negligence suits, some of which involve
serious inquiry. Many of these actions arise in the normal course of the City’s operations. The City
records accruals for claims liability to the extent that management concludes their occurrence is
probable and the related damages are estimable. If the range of the liability is probable and
estimateable, the City accrues the amount most likely to be paid. Changes in the City’s claim
liability from 2013 to 2014 are shown in footnote 3f.
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a. Litigation - Continued
The City is also a defendant in numerous pending tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which
cannot be determined at this time. Any refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be funded in
the year in which the payments are made.
Certain other claims cannot be estimated as they involve complex issues. Often these issues are
subject to substantial uncertainties and, therefore, the probability of loss or an estimation of
damages cannot be determined.
b. Contingencies
The City participates in various Federal grant programs. These programs are subject to program
compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act. The amount of expenditures/expenses that
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City
anticipates such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
c. Risk Management
The City purchases various conventional insurance policies to reduce its exposure to loss. The
general liability, law enforcement, and public officials policies maintained provide coverage up to $1
million per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate, with a self-insured retention level of $50,000
per occurrence. The City also maintains an umbrella liability policy which provides coverage up to
$10 million. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Accrued liabilities in the Risk Retention Fund include
provisions for claims reported and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR’s).
The City, along with other municipal entities, participates in the Municipal Employee Benefits
Consortium (MEBCO). MEBCO is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and health insurance program for its members. MEBCO was formed in April 1988
pursuant to an act of the Board of Legislators of the County of Westchester. This act provides
cities and villages throughout Westchester County with an opportunity to participate in a
cooperative program for providing health benefits to municipal employees by entering into an
intermunicipal agreement pursuant to Article 5-G of the General Municipal Law of the State of New
York. The purpose of the pool is to stabilize the cost of medical benefits provided to employees
(see unpaid claim liabilities). MEBCO functions primarily as a claims service whereby each
participating municipality retains its own risk. MEBCO does not transfer risk since charges to each
municipality are ultimately determined by their individual claims/loss experience. The City pays the
pool an annual provision for its health coverage.
Workers’ compensation insurance is secured with statutory coverage. Settled claims have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The primary objective
of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers
about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This statement replaces the
requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly
referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50
remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trusts covered by the scope
of this statement.
The scope of this statement also addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are
provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers through pension plans that
are administered through trusts that have certain characteristics as defined in the statement. It
establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this
statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments,
discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information
requirements about pensions also are addressed. This statement is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2014, with early implementation encouraged.
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. This statement addresses an
issue regarding the application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made
by a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined benefit
pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability. The
provisions of the statement are to be adopted simultaneously with Statement No. 68.
Management has not estimated the extent of the potential impact of these statements on the City’s
financial statements.
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Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Valuation
Date
1/1/2010
1/1/2012
1/1/2014

$

-

Accrued
Liability

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Payroll

Unfunded
Liability as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll

$ 59,721,315
65,316,988
77,828,721

$ 59,721,315
65,316,988
77,828,721

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

$ 11,306,689
10,653,528
11,597,044

528.2%
613.1%
671.1%

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Supplementary Information Capital Projects Fund - Project Length Schedule

Project
Number
533030
533032
533033
551061
551070
551077
551082
551084
551088
551091
551092
551093
551094
554118
554119
571041
571090
581201
581206
581219
581227
581229
581230
581428
581429
581430
581431
585403
585405
585406
585407
585408

Project Title
2009 ARRA Projects
Ridge Street Roundabout
CBD Streetscape Improvement
Peck Avenue Intersection
Central Avenue Bridge Reconstruction
Boston Post Road Rock Stabil
SRS - Boston Post Road
Pay Station Shelter
Annual Street Resurfacing Program
Safe Routes to School
Osborn Theall Corridor
Nature Center/BPR Realing
Street resurfacing
Annual Sidewalk Replacement Program
Annual Sidewalk Replacement Program
Recreation Master Plan
Disbrow Park Master Plan
Kirby Lane Sewer
Upper Dogwood Lane Sewer
Hewlett Avenue Pump Station
Cedar Place Sewer
Kirby Lane Sanitary Sewer
Locust Avenue Sewer
Old Milton Road Drainage
Annual Sewer Drainage Improvement Program
Annual Sewer Drainage Improvement Program
Annual Sewer Drainage Improvement Program
Theo Fremd Retaining Wall
Bowman Avenue Sluice Gate
Upper Blind Brook Study
Dearborn Seawall Construction
Blind Brook Wall Study

Year
Authorized
2009
2010
2014
2007
2007
2008
2010
2010
2013
2013
2013
2014
2014
2013
2014
2001
2014
2003
2007
2007
2009
2010
2014
2010
2011
2013
2014
2007
2008
2013
2012
2014

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Prior
Current
Years
Year
Total

Project
Budget

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Prior
Current
Years
Year
Total

Unexpended
Balance

$

898,792
587,400
968,579
400,000
2,248,600
378,200
131,400
40,000
614,937
263,952
150,000
50,000
827,100
308,041
100,000
75,409
57,164
2,466,773
150,000
690,866
144,083
17,315
250,000
253,885
159,774
135,957
113,003
1,758,660
2,095,821
237,754
28,576
50,000

$

822,501
46,407
219,500
2,001,418
78,200
92,264
31,550
569,858
200,838
68,245
2,449,012
135,022
307,394
132,222
422,870
246,733
137,689
134,144
121,192
1,319,720
8,740
23,985
-

$

40,993
11,188
13,707
9,771
39,136
8,450
42,168
20,540
582,484
24,182
15,358
7,164
6,387
11,861
11,000
22,085
1,813
103,325
203,877
167,564
510
6,670

$

822,501
87,400
11,188
219,500
2,015,125
87,971
131,400
40,000
569,858
42,168
20,540
582,484
225,020
15,358
75,409
2,449,012
135,022
313,781
144,083
422,870
11,000
246,733
159,774
135,957
103,325
121,192
1,523,597
176,304
24,495
6,670

$

76,291
500,000
957,391
180,500
233,475
290,229
45,079
221,784
150,000
29,460
244,616
83,021
84,642
57,164
17,761
14,978
377,085
(405,555)
239,000
7,152
9,678
1,637,468
572,224
61,450
4,081
43,330

$

822,501
87,400
400,000
2,374,614
78,200
131,400
40,000
614,937
40,000
150,000
50,000
75,409
2,456,978
150,000
477,866
135,000
17,315
253,885
159,774
135,957
431,864
1,533,181
28,576
-

$

88,577
15,341
50,000
827,100
8,042
100,000
57,164
9,083
113,003
50,748
172,291
50,000

$

822,501
87,400
88,577
400,000
2,389,955
78,200
131,400
40,000
614,937
40,000
150,000
50,000
827,100
58,042
100,000
75,409
57,164
2,456,978
150,000
477,866
144,083
17,315
253,885
159,774
135,957
113,003
431,864
1,583,929
172,291
28,576
50,000

$

16,652,041

$

9,569,504

$

1,350,233

$

10,919,737

$

5,732,304

$

10,644,857

$

1,541,349

$

12,186,206
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Non-Major Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds
The Cable TV Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the receipt and use of revenues received
from the franchise holder for public access cable television programming.

Permanent Fund
The K.T. Woods Permanent Fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs. ·

Debt Service Fund
The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest, and for financial resources that are
being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future years.

City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds

Cable TV
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Total assets

$

672,800

December 31, 2014
KT Woods
Debt
Permanent
Service
Fund
Fund
$

97,443
2,355
5,300

20,190

$

-

Total

47,593

$

-

740,583
97,443
2,355
5,300

$

777,898

$

20,190

$

47,593

$

845,681

$

385
1,050
30,927
32,362

$

-

$

-

$

385
1,050
30,927
32,362

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

20,000
190
20,190

5,300
10,289
729,947
745,536

$

777,898

$

20,190

47,593
47,593

$

47,593

25,300
58,072
729,947
813,319

$

845,681
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014
KT Woods
Debt
Permanent
Service
Fund
Fund

Cable TV
Fund
REVENUES
Real property taxes and related items
Non-property taxes
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Salaries and wages
Equipment
Materials and supplies
Contractual costs
Employee benefits
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

$

24
24

$

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
$

125,390
215
125,605

$

125,390
363,599
1,310
1,007
51,353
542,659

178,018
46,502
8,229
26,897
83,573
343,219

-

-

178,018
46,502
8,229
26,897
83,573
343,219

343,219

-

262,291
141,092
403,383

262,291
141,092
746,602

73,811

24

(277,778)

(203,943)

273,199

273,199

-

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, end of year

363,599
1,310
768
51,353
417,030

Total
Governmental
Funds

73,811

24

671,725

20,166

745,536

$

20,190

$

(4,579)

69,256

52,172

744,063

47,593

$

813,319
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual - Cable TV Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Non-property tax
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and recreation
Salaries and wages
Equipment
Materials and supplies
Contractual costs
Employee benefits
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year
FUND BALANCE, end of year

$

315,000
450
200
50,750
366,400

Final
Budget

$

315,000
450
200
50,750
366,400

Actual

$

363,599
1,310
768
51,353
417,030

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

48,599
860
568
603
50,630

181,231
55,000
19,595
72,766
94,181
422,773

188,477
56,205
19,638
73,266
100,289
437,875

178,018
46,502
8,229
26,897
83,573
343,219

10,459
9,703
11,409
46,369
16,716
94,656

(56,373)

(71,475)

73,811

145,286

629,746

671,725

671,725

-

573,373

$

600,250

$

745,536

$

145,286
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual - K.T. Woods Permanent Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Use of money and property

$

EXPENDITURES
Current - culture and recreation

Excess of revenues over expenditures
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), beginning of year
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), end of year

$

Final
Budget

25

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Actual

25

$

24

-

-

-

25

25

24

20,166

20,166

20,166

20,191

$

20,191

$

20,190

$

(1)

-

(1)
$

(1)
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual - Debt Service Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Final
Budget

Original
Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes and related items
Use of money and property
Total revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

125,391
125,391

$

125,391
125,391

Actual

$

125,390
215
125,605

262,291
141,093
403,384

262,291
141,093
403,384

262,291
141,092
403,383

(277,993)

(277,993)

(277,778)

273,199

273,199

273,199

Net change in fund balance

(4,794)

(4,794)

(4,579)

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year

52,148

52,172

52,172

FUND BALANCE, end of year

$

47,354

$

47,378

$

47,593

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

(1)
215
214

1
1
215

215
$

215
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Internal Service Funds
Internal Service Funds are used to account for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The internal
service funds of the City are as follows:


The Risk Retention Fund is used to account for general liability insurance and risk management
activities.



The Building and Vehicle Maintenance Fund is used to account for the acquisition, operation,
maintenance and disposition of the City’s buildings and vehicles which are not otherwise
accounted for in other funds.

City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Statement of Net Position - Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2014
Building
and Vehicle
Maintenance
Fund

Risk
Retention
Fund

Total

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Deposits
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Land
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment·
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

$

97,416
574,733
28,500
79,231
779,880

6,495,743
4,597
332,049
34,597
62,221
6,929,207

$

6,593,159
579,330
28,500
332,049
34,597
141,452
7,709,087

-

4,561,755
16,506,163
5,053,319
10,356,844
23,326
(14,753,611)

4,561,755
16,506,163
5,053,319
10,356,844
23,326
(14,753,611)

-

21,747,796

21,747,796

779,880

28,677,003

29,456,883

-

358,142

358,142
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Statement of Net Position - Internal Service Funds

December 31, 2014
Building
and Vehicle
Maintenance
Fund

Risk
Retention
Fund

Total

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Capital lease obligation
Compensated absences
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities

$

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Capital lease obligation, less current portion
Compensated absences, less current portion
Bonds payable, less current portion
Other postemployment benefit obligations
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

4,742
343,248
347,990

$

80,402
64,401
112,558
201,046
46,205
7,192
1,053,214
1,565,018

$

85,144
343,248
64,401
112,558
201,046
46,205
7,192
1,053,214
1,913,008

-

142,004
64,724
9,267,183
1,556,388
11,030,299

142,004
64,724
9,267,183
1,556,388
11,030,299

347,990

12,595,317

12,943,307

431,890

11,239,190
5,200,638

11,239,190
5,632,528

16,439,828

16,871,718

431,890

$

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
Page 64

City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position - Internal Service Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Building
Risk
and Vehicle
Retention
Maintenance
Fund
Fund
Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Materials and supplies
Contractual costs
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

$

760,219

Transfers in
Transfers out
Change in net position

183,788

30,956
3,350
(402,785)
(368,479)

30,956
3,602
(402,785)
(368,227)

(109,203)

(75,236)

(184,439)

(109,203)

383,904
(335,668)
(27,000)

383,904
(335,668)
(136,203)

541,093

NET POSITION, beginning of year
$

4,343,866
227,340
4,571,206

293,243

252
252

Income (loss) before transfers

$

666,485
707,732
1,044,566
943,962
1,024,673
4,387,418

(109,455)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State and federal aid
Interest income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

3,910,644
9,798
3,920,442

666,485
707,732
1,044,566
183,743
1,024,673
3,627,199

760,219

Income (loss) from operations

NET POSITION, end of year

433,222
217,542
650,764

431,890

16,466,828
$

16,439,828

17,007,921
$

16,871,718
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2014
Building
and Vehicle
Maintenance
Fund

Risk
Retention
Fund
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to vendors

$

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State and federal aid
Transfers in
Transfers out
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from other funds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Payments on capital lease obligation
Interest paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital lease obligation
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest income

Net cash from operating activities

4,130,951
(1,147,083)
(1,327,741)
1,656,127

$

4,569,603
(1,147,083)
(2,182,883)
1,239,637

-

30,956
383,904
(335,668)
79,192

30,956
383,904
(335,668)
79,192

-

(375,947)
(1,012,709)
(18,694)
(315,406)
(4,408)
(1,727,164)

(375,947)
(1,012,709)
(18,694)
(315,406)
(4,408)
(1,727,164)

3,350

3,602

(416,238)

11,505

(404,733)

513,654

6,484,238

6,997,892

$

97,416

$ 6,495,743

$ 6,593,159

$

(109,455)

$

$

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME (LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due from other governments
Other post employment benefit obligations
Compensated absences
Total adjustments

$

252

Net change in cash and equivalents

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, end of year

438,652
(855,142)
(416,490)

Total

(212,112)
(6,496)
(49,675)
(38,752)

(307,035)
$

(416,490)

293,243

183,788

1,024,673

1,024,673

9,337
195,691
(553)
(120,227)
(48,515)
69,863
5,481
223,615
3,519
1,362,884

(202,775)
195,691
(7,049)
(169,902)
(87,267)
69,863
5,481
223,615
3,519
1,055,849

$ 1,656,127

$ 1,239,637
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Fund
Balance
January 1,
2014
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Employee payroll deductions
Total Liabilities

Increases

Decreases

Balance
December 31,
2014

$

354,230
3,542

$ 17,562,263
17,133,550

$ 17,605,661
17,135,798

$

310,832
1,294

$

357,772

$ 34,695,813

$ 34,741,459

$

312,126

$

325,989
31,783

$

754,351
5,807,291

$

825,983
5,781,305

$

254,357
57,769

$

357,772

$

6,561,642

$

6,607,288

$

312,126
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Capital Assets Used in the
Operation of Governmental Funds

City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information - Schedule by Source
2014
Governmental Funds' Capital Assets
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress
Investment in Governmental Funds' Capital Assets
by Source - Capital Projects Fund
Less - Accumulated depreciation
Net Book Value

$

86,074
69,073,121
2,130,248
71,289,443
(26,758,964)

$ 44,530,479

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information - Schedule by Function and Activity
Machinery
and
Equipment

Function and Activity
PUBLIC SAFETY
Traffic signals

$

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT
Rights of way
Streets
Streetlights
Sidewalks
Bridges
Sanitary sewers
Pump stations
Storm sewers
Total community environment
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Cable TV equipment
Parks and playgrounds
Total culture and recreation
Total governmental funds
capital assets

$

-

Infrastructure

Construction
in
Progress

$

$

1,398,999

-

$

Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

1,398,999

$

(392,307)

Net Book
Value

$

1,006,692

-

21,301,087
14,319,310
441,162
976,585
2,452,814
12,155,337
1,392,648
11,444,119
64,483,062

142,617
74,226
1,913,405
2,130,248

21,301,087
14,461,927
441,162
976,585
2,452,814
12,155,337
1,466,874
13,357,524
66,613,310

(9,638,049)
(310,214)
(797,506)
(417,397)
(7,375,892)
(422,473)
(7,319,052)
(26,280,583)

21,301,087
4,823,878
130,948
179,079
2,035,417
4,779,445
1,044,401
6,038,472
40,332,727

86,074
86,074

3,191,060
3,191,060

-

86,074
3,191,060
3,277,134

(86,074)
(86,074)

3,191,060
3,191,060

86,074

$ 69,073,121

2,130,248

$ 71,289,443

$ (26,758,964)

$ 44,530,479

$

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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City of Rye, New York
Supplementary Information - Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

Function and Activity
PUBLIC SAFETY
Traffic signals
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT
Rights of way
Streets
Streetlights
Sidewalks
Bridges
Sanitary sewers
Pump stations
Storm sewers
Total Community Environment
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Cable TV equipment
Parks and playgrounds
Total Culture and Recreation
Total Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

Governmental
Funds Capital
Assets
January 1

$

1,398,999

Additions

$

Governmental
Funds Capital
Assets
December 31

Deletions

-

$

-

$

1,398,999

21,301,087
14,378,260
441,162
976,585
2,439,107
12,143,476
1,460,487
13,075,659
66,215,823

83,667
13,707
11,861
6,387
281,865
397,487

-

21,301,087
14,461,927
441,162
976,585
2,452,814
12,155,337
1,466,874
13,357,524
66,613,310

86,074
3,191,060
3,277,134

-

-

86,074
3,191,060
3,277,134

-

$ 71,289,443

$ 70,891,956

$

397,487

$

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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Statistical Section
This part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement Report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant revenue
source, the personal income tax.
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it
performs.
Sources: Unless otherwise notes, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports for the relevant years.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time. These schedules include:
Net Position by Component
Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds

City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Net Position by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental
Activities net position

$

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total business-type
Activities net position
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary government
Net position

$

13,348,301
1,762,703
9,079,270

2006(1)

$

44,227,627
1,660,467
11,059,645

2007

$

45,961,185
2,849,549
11,470,537

2008

$

48,067,286
2,697,494
4,933,791

2009

$

52,236,195
2,646,922
(320,838)

2010

$

52,620,335
2,761,748
(1,266,730)

2011

$

54,629,581
2,630,318
(6,349,164)

2012

$

54,209,854
3,237,805
(7,386,797)

2013

$

51,028,225
2,698,735
(3,401,492)

2014

$

50,856,162
2,004,948
(6,538,045)

24,190,274

56,947,739

60,281,271

55,698,571

54,562,279

54,115,353

50,910,735

50,060,862

50,325,468

46,323,065

8,450,054
3,265,525

8,450,126
3,723,916

8,265,309
4,437,719

9,073,386
4,335,879

9,740,758
2,951,808

9,620,669
1,630,040

9,637,370
833,265

9,097,824
933,733

9,324,839
1,396,753

9,104,264
1,966,050

11,715,579

12,174,042

12,703,028

13,409,265

12,692,566

11,250,709

10,470,635

10,031,557

10,721,592

11,070,314

21,798,355
1,762,703
12,344,795

52,677,753
1,660,467
14,783,561

54,226,494
2,849,549
15,908,256

57,140,672
2,697,494
9,269,670

61,976,953
2,646,922
2,630,970

62,241,004
2,761,748
363,310

64,266,951
2,630,318
(5,515,899)

63,307,678
3,237,805
(6,453,064)

60,353,064
2,698,735
(2,004,739)

59,960,426
2,004,948
(4,571,995)

35,905,853

$

69,121,781

$

72,984,299

$

69,107,836

$

67,254,845

$

65,366,062

$

61,381,370

$

60,092,419

$

61,047,060

$

57,393,379

(1) Includes a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle adjustment of $30,977,163,
representing the retroactive reporting of infrastructure assets.
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City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Changes in Net Position - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
Expenses
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Community environment
Transportation
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Interest
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Marina
Golf
Total business-type activities

$

3,285,497
10,379,989
6,836,952
3,558,305
333,563
24,394,306

2006

$

3,513,365
11,259,005
8,181,719
3,693,298
552,544
27,199,931

2007

$

4,287,175
10,763,060
8,215,438
3,700,558
725,075
27,691,306

2008(1)

$

4,852,832
14,573,551
5,105,678
4,201,625
5,177,171
657,980
34,568,837

2009

$

4,075,663
14,193,748
4,419,335
4,128,114
5,119,135
609,287
32,545,282

2010

$

3,847,977
14,267,990
4,466,928
4,152,371
5,611,370
426,731
32,773,367

2011

$

3,847,034
15,873,630
4,422,582
4,326,087
5,417,700
618,037
34,505,070

2012

$

3,733,393
16,093,285
3,858,783
4,055,710
6,302,729
589,183
34,633,083

2013

$

3,966,979
18,064,524
4,266,362
4,149,577
6,376,814
506,947
37,331,203

2014

$

4,860,285
17,459,935
4,771,873
4,726,153
6,357,900
545,124
38,721,270

446,916
4,115,177
4,562,093

468,524
5,306,207
5,774,731

481,837
6,814,432
7,296,269

589,804
6,972,985
7,562,789

574,268
7,310,686
7,884,954

627,778
7,729,667
8,357,445

904,632
7,028,025
7,932,657

1,018,739
6,851,676
7,870,415

895,996
5,700,251
6,596,247

974,711
4,086,239
5,060,950

28,956,399

32,974,662

34,987,575

42,131,626

40,430,236

41,130,812

42,437,727

42,503,498

43,927,450

43,782,220

Program revenues
Governmental activities
Charges for Services
General government
Public safety
Community environment
Transportation
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities

471,658
663,007
2,020,307
1,009,128
455,106
314,854
4,934,060

489,375
647,446
2,205,360
999,740
375,595
410,390
5,127,906

505,926
578,807
2,446,351
1,088,198
660,091
622,728
5,902,101

743,220
1,850,529
920,145
1,071,017
149,862
359,038
398,386
5,492,197

792,068
1,680,697
877,257
1,060,590
101,890
399,495
2,072,892
6,984,889

789,441
1,662,676
918,683
1,158,127
168,194
572,225
1,615,788
6,885,134

917,026
1,819,013
1,200,047
1,422,633
128,059
234,853
278,881
6,000,512

899,551
2,129,247
1,264,716
1,457,025
212,248
1,429,372
267,288
7,659,447

707,740
2,473,451
1,323,178
1,479,838
179,686
1,098,398
2,208,204
9,470,495

562,980
3,115,025
1,347,354
1,058,347
213,790
114,805
368,125
6,780,426

Business-type activities
Charges for Services
Marina
Golf
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities

542,397
4,723,373
5,265,770

633,083
5,378,934
6,012,017

576,693
6,990,360
3,826
7,570,879

565,473
7,264,208
317,500
8,147,181

591,891
6,565,155
7,157,046

633,269
6,275,216
6,908,485

646,459
6,504,746
7,151,205

640,518
6,760,138
28,718
7,429,374

663,455
6,060,574
559,942
7,283,971

686,471
4,700,869
17,989
5,405,329

Total program revenues

10,199,830

11,139,923

13,472,980

13,639,378

14,141,935

13,793,619

13,151,717

15,088,821

16,754,466

12,185,755

Total expenses
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City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Changes in Net Position - Last Ten Fiscal Years - Continued
2005
Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total net expense
General revenues
Governmental activities
Real property taxes
Non-property taxes
Unrestricted use of money and property
Gain on sale of equipment
State aid
Other revenues
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Unrestricted use of money and property
Gain on sale of equipment
Total business-type activities
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total change in net position

$

2006

2007

2008(1)

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

(19,460,246)
703,677
(18,756,569)

(22,072,025)
237,286
(21,834,739)

(21,789,205)
274,610
(21,514,595)

(29,076,640)
584,392
(28,492,248)

(25,560,393)
(727,908)
(26,288,301)

(25,888,233)
(1,448,960)
(27,337,193)

(28,504,558)
(781,452)
(29,286,010)

(26,973,636)
(441,041)
(27,414,677)

(27,860,708)
687,724
(27,172,984)

(31,940,844)
344,379
(31,596,465)

16,141,660
2,266,922
565,843
29,135
3,451,841
71,875
22,527,276

16,987,781
2,327,161
1,137,777
33,270
3,324,440
41,899
23,852,328

17,838,489
2,622,734
1,195,960
26,977
3,415,249
23,327
25,122,736

18,331,970
2,643,066
490,398
30,672
2,941,169
56,665
24,493,940

19,323,667
2,364,648
140,030
31,503
2,249,619
314,634
24,424,101

19,764,674
2,566,311
95,000
15,324
2,493,863
506,135
25,441,307

19,726,762
2,620,377
51,907
23,438
2,361,583
515,873
25,299,940

20,433,026
2,612,451
43,420
2,496,256
538,610
26,123,763

20,860,358
2,791,836
48,667
470,967
3,390,946
562,540
28,125,314

21,184,086
2,901,618
63,946
2,745,606
1,043,185
27,938,441

109,352
109,352

221,177
221,177

254,376
254,376

121,845
121,845

11,209
11,209

7,103
7,103

1,378
1,378

1,963
1,963

2,311
2,311

4,343
4,343

22,636,628

24,073,505

25,377,112

24,615,785

24,435,310

25,448,410

25,301,318

26,125,726

28,127,625

27,942,784

3,067,030
813,029

1,780,303
458,463

3,333,531
528,986

(4,582,700)
706,237

(1,136,292)
(716,699)

(446,926)
(1,441,857)

(3,204,618)
(780,074)

3,880,059

$

2,238,766

$

3,862,517

$

(3,876,463)

$

(1,852,991)

$

(1,888,783)

$

(3,984,692)

(849,873)
(439,078)
$

(1,288,951)

264,606
690,035
$

954,641

(4,002,403)
348,722
$

(3,653,681)

(1) Beginning in 2008, amounts previously reported in the community environment function have
been reallocated and are now being reported within the public safety, transportation and
home and community services functions.
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City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
General fund
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Reserved
Unreserved
Total general fund

$

All other governmental funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue fund
Permanent fund
Debt service fund
Capital projects fund
Total all other governmental funds
Total governmental funds

2,487,324
8,568,860
11,056,184

2006

$

544,315
248,138
4,303
1,023,769
1,820,525
$

12,876,709

$

2,387,761
9,674,609
12,062,370

2007

$

3,523,898
9,785,973
13,309,871

2008

$

3,264,302
7,736,075
11,000,377

1,596,362

1,921,268

2,036,376

324,758
1,309
(845,230)
1,077,199

336,911
1,099
9,800
(1,476,029)
793,049

191,558
25
139,356
(3,301,577)
(934,262)

13,139,569

$

14,102,920

$

10,066,115

2009

$

3,130,697
6,701,760
9,832,457

2010

$

464,673
281,777
80
99,750
(2,049,789)
(1,203,509)
$

8,628,948

$

4,661,371
5,833,786
10,495,157

2011 (1)

$

1,647,837
2,141,634
1,688,353
3,779,938
9,257,762

2012

$

1,501,991
1,938,058
2,659,084
4,982,632
11,081,765

2013

$

1,533,556
1,383,442
3,504,007
5,942,286
12,363,291

2014

$

2,079,435
1,874,294
3,859,588
5,245,938
13,059,255

315,472

24,227
1,723,849
777,191
-

24,900
789,628
1,501,397
-

27,261
768,200
1,023,955
-

25,300
1,324,541
729,947
-

367,862
118
21,176
2,450,581
3,155,209

2,525,267

2,315,925

1,819,416

2,079,788

13,650,366

$

11,783,029

$

13,397,690

$

14,182,707

$

15,139,043

(1) - The City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,"
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.
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City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
Revenues
Real property taxes
Non-property taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Interfund revenues
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Community services
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Debt service
Refunding bond issuance costs
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Bonds issued
Refunding bonds issued
Issuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Debt service as a percentage
of non-capital expenditures

$

16,197,588
2,470,665
1,180,052
76,274
482,446
1,630,044
540,247
123,939
404,099
3,772,275
95,935
295,813
27,269,377

2006
$

16,966,643
2,550,088
1,372,495
69,235
912,595
1,628,357
533,102
89,282
413,628
3,664,263
121,880
234,618
28,556,186

2007
$

17,849,808
2,868,819
1,282,324
73,656
1,021,617
2,035,050
477,209
67,234
430,025
3,816,573
450,127
189,884
30,562,326

2008(1)
$

18,272,135
2,900,960
1,329,874
77,799
473,566
1,730,742
583,026
108,962
432,050
3,328,874
47,002
210,007
29,494,997

2009
$

19,303,263
2,635,463
1,274,460
85,866
138,398
1,557,660
569,770
49,377
445,759
2,929,553
1,100,153
332,834
30,422,556

2010
$

19,750,579
2,860,490
1,449,041
82,008
96,288
1,457,462
609,918
113,486
442,984
2,854,696
1,043,013
349,608
31,109,573

2011
$

19,740,731
2,950,001
1,636,476
95,651
342,169
1,975,596
617,282
95,641
441,634
2,703,865
398,189
30,997,235

2012
$

20,435,348
2,938,634
1,809,922
81,095
338,569
2,344,563
609,247
119,983
441,634
2,914,810
595,533
950,545
33,579,883

2013
$

20,857,749
3,124,407
1,816,289
85,998
156,417
2,809,894
510,819
238,215
445,759
4,232,395
1,983,148
692,467
36,953,557

2014
$

21,054,171
3,265,217
1,777,944
86,150
60,344
3,428,516
560,476
366,397
444,409
3,158,818
67,843
313,189
34,583,474

3,063,887
10,373,012
6,692,938
3,559,300
-

3,346,840
11,281,346
7,237,352
3,720,422
-

3,670,968
10,984,670
7,257,244
3,770,058
-

4,333,767
12,890,879
3,177,429
4,101,417
4,478,333

3,901,647
12,736,433
3,183,718
4,127,040
4,571,286

3,478,239
12,883,879
3,234,870
4,048,699
4,604,338

4,772,526
13,835,912
3,430,714
4,201,941
4,924,690

3,622,160
14,340,455
2,972,934
3,885,612
5,496,520

3,774,826
16,111,656
3,226,903
4,040,257
5,323,300

3,659,719
15,393,247
3,458,207
4,175,428
5,312,503

43,752
54,717

64,534
73,700

67,079
71,470

71,144
137,993

74,242
117,539

9,782
165,261
58,871

221,721
187,171

246,918
156,428

6,655
254,579
148,601

262,291
141,092

8,000
68,369
518,722
24,382,697

6,789
199,687
1,398,098
69,983
27,398,751

27,980
16,877
3,055,579
28,921,925

13,496
30,401
2,337,444
1,064,499
32,636,802

92,090
874,498
1,426,196
31,104,689

779,451
733,012
668,909
30,665,311

230,062
552,823
422,012
32,779,572

293,946
985,249
32,000,222

2,170
1,927,269
1,268,979
36,085,195

11,188
714,599
398,864
33,527,138

2,886,680

1,157,435

1,640,401

(3,141,805)

(682,133)

(1,782,337)

1,579,661

868,362

1,056,336

560,000
657,707
(2,145,611)
(927,904)

854,202
(1,748,777)
(894,575)

3,384,328
(4,061,378)
(677,050)

2,274,360
(3,169,360)
(895,000)

1,204,410
(1,959,444)
(755,034)

378,885
13,598
(385,828)
830,051
(920,051)
(83,345)

1,248,781
(1,348,781)
(100,000)

1,958,776

0.41%

$

262,860

0.52%

$

963,351

0.52%

$

(4,036,805)

0.68%

$

(1,437,167)

0.65%

444,262
4,677,374
791,579
56,934
(838,731)
1,664,155
(1,774,155)
4,577,156
$

5,021,418

0.76%

939,801
(1,024,801)
(85,000)
$

(1,867,337)

1.27%

491,839
(456,839)
35,000
$

1,614,661

1.30%

$

785,017

1.20%

$

956,336

1.13%

(1) Beginning in 2008, amounts previously reported in the community environment function have
been reallocated and are now being reported within the public safety, transportation and
home and community services functions.
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City of Rye, New York
Statistical Section - Financial Trends
Tax Revenues by Source - Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real
Property
Taxes

Fiscal
Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$

16,197,589
16,966,642
17,849,808
18,272,135
19,303,262
19,750,579
19,740,731
20,435,348
20,857,749
21,054,171

Sales
and Use
Taxes
$

1,908,845
1,957,187
2,079,744
2,050,610
1,812,360
1,981,208
2,051,254
2,076,364
2,222,745
2,295,447

Utilities
Gross
Receipts
Taxes

Hotel
Occupancy
Taxes
$

200,303
177,338
136,922
153,934
159,001
155,534
166,778
170,924

$

358,077
369,974
342,687
415,118
415,366
431,169
410,122
380,553
402,313
435,247

Mortgage
Taxes
$

2,389,053
2,084,125
2,141,475
1,629,182
919,732
1,261,186
1,153,559
1,288,232
2,182,922
1,537,582

Total
$

20,853,564
21,377,928
22,614,017
22,544,383
22,587,642
23,578,076
23,514,667
24,336,031
25,832,507
25,493,371

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for each respective fiscal year.
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Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenue source,
the property tax. These schedules include:
Assessed Valuation, State Equalization Rate
and Estimated Full Value of Real Property
Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Assessed Valuation All Direct and Overlapping Governments
Principal Taxpayers
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Constitutional Tax Limit

City of Rye, New York
Revenue Capacity
Assessed Valuation, State Equalization Rate, and Estimated
Full Value of Real Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year

One-Three
Family
Residential

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 107,282,955
108,596,155
110,420,885
111,523,385
113,148,100
113,647,740
113,336,975
113,347,445
113,959,435
114,415,390

Condos
Co-ops &
Apt. Bldgs.
$

9,267,278
9,113,041
9,161,821
9,147,881
7,819,866
7,592,163
7,343,964
7,083,655
7,022,535
6,572,933

Business (1)
$

22,101,168
22,080,105
22,040,490
21,869,050
21,819,700
21,354,351
21,257,429
20,458,446
20,338,966
20,290,888

Other (2)
$

26,657,528
26,536,484
26,366,361
25,815,312
25,580,843
25,756,508
25,770,920
24,513,427
24,397,088
24,390,305

Total Gross
Assessed
Valuation
$ 165,308,929
166,325,785
167,989,557
168,355,628
168,368,509
168,350,762
167,709,288
165,402,973
165,718,024
165,669,516

Exemptions
$

(29,428,082)
(29,376,708)
(29,587,882)
(29,282,510)
(29,053,242)
(29,058,445)
(29,027,596)
(27,666,240)
(27,622,832)
(27,268,354)

Total Taxable
Assessed
Valuation
$ 135,880,847
136,949,077
138,401,675
139,073,118
139,315,267
139,292,317
138,681,692
137,736,733
138,095,192
138,401,162

Estimated
Actual
Full Value

Direct Tax
Rate (3)
116.80
122.39
127.24
131.49
137.38
139.52
140.87
144.99
148.91
150.38

$

5,246,364,749
5,827,620,298
6,407,484,954
7,059,549,137
7,036,124,596
7,180,016,340
6,420,448,704
6,289,348,539
6,703,650,097
7,061,283,776

Taxable
Value as a
Percentage of
Full Value
2.59%
2.35%
2.16%
1.97%
1.98%
1.94%
2.16%
2.19%
2.06%
1.96%

(1) Includes commercial, industrial, and recreational facilities.
(2) Includes agriculture, vacant land, community service, utility, wetland and parkland,
most of which is tax-exempt.
(3) A single direct property tax rate applies to all classes of real property.
Note: Assessed values are established by the City Assessor on September 15th of the
prior year and includes Special Franchise Assessments as established by the
New York State Board of Equalization and Assessment. For instance, assessed
values for fiscal 2013 were established on September 15, 2012.
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Revenue Capacity
Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Assessed Valuation All Direct and Overlapping Governments - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year

City of
Rye

Rye City
School
District

Rye Neck
Union Free
School
District

Westchester
County

Westchester County
Refuse
Blind Brook Mamaroneck
Disposal
Sewer
Sewer
District
District
District

Total
County

Total with
Rye City
School
District

Total with
Rye Neck
Union Free
School
District

2005

116.80
116.80

416.92
-

529.10

124.09
124.09

15.12
15.12

17.51
-

17.82

156.71
157.03

690.44
-

802.93

2006

122.39
122.39

441.85
-

528.51

130.43
130.43

15.24
15.24

19.68
-

19.87

165.35
165.54

729.59
-

816.44

2007

127.24
127.24

463.92
-

575.62

134.06
134.06

15.03
15.03

20.56
-

23.14

169.65
172.23

760.81
-

875.09

2008

131.49
131.49

490.55
-

626.45

141.43
141.43

13.61
13.61

20.90
-

23.92

175.94
178.96

797.98
-

936.90

2009

137.38
137.38

500.20
-

647.88

146.28
146.28

13.89
13.89

21.15
-

25.15

181.32
185.32

818.90
-

970.58

2010

139.52
139.52

507.31
-

672.72

158.12
158.12

15.12
15.12

21.87
-

25.15

195.11
198.39

841.94
-

1,010.63

2011

140.87
140.87

520.54
-

696.64

156.86
156.86

15.34
15.34

21.62
-

28.80

193.82
201.00

855.23
-

1,038.51

2012

144.99
144.99

529.68
-

737.53

162.12
162.12

15.84
15.84

22.32
-

28.92

200.28
206.88

874.95
-

1,089.40

2013

148.91
148.91

554.65
-

796.18

173.82
173.82

16.98
16.98

23.23
-

29.38

214.03
220.18

917.59
-

1,165.27

2014

150.38
150.38

561.34
-

847.99

187.92
187.92

17.61
17.61

29.69
-

29.81

235.22
235.34

946.94
-

1,233.71

Source: City of Rye Comptroller's Office
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Revenue Capacity
Principal Taxpayers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago
2014

Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Taxpayer
Consolidated Edison
Miriam Osborn Memorial Home
United Water
Faros Corporate Center
Parsonage Investment Co.
Avon Products
Rye Colony Apartments
Milton Harbor House
Blind Brook Lodge Owners, Inc.
Shenorock Shore Club

Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

Percent of
Total Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

$

3,111,486
2,133,120
805,545
668,000
667,900
610,210
589,764
528,867
517,890
485,900

2.25%
1.54%
0.58%
0.48%
0.48%
0.44%
0.43%
0.38%
0.37%
0.35%

$

10,118,682

7.30%

Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

Percent of
Total Taxable
Assessed
Valuation

$

3,224,000
2,795,024
884,150
821,406
770,550
745,300
738,250
627,400
549,550
542,550

2.37%
2.06%
0.65%
0.60%
0.57%
0.55%
0.54%
0.46%
0.40%
0.39%

$

11,698,180

8.59%

Type of Business
Public Utility
Retirement Community
Public Utility
Office Building
SFR & Vacant Land
Office Building + Lot
Cooperative
Cooperative
Cooperative
Private Club

Total
2005

Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Taxpayer
Miriam Osborn Memorial Home
Consolidated Edison
The Gateside - Rye Co.
Aquarion Water Company1
Milton Harbor House
Parsonage Investment Co.
Rye Colony Apartments
Blind Brook Lodge
Host Restaurants Inc.
American Yacht Club
Total

Type of Business
Retirement Community
Public Utility
Office Building
Public Utility
Cooperative
Residential
Cooperative
Cooperative
Hotel
Private Club

Source: City of Rye Assessor's Office.
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Revenue Capacity
Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy
Amount
Percent

Total Tax
Levy for
Fiscal Year

Fiscal
Year
$

15,900,190
16,869,097
17,706,559
18,387,932
19,241,273
19,625,486
19,658,891
20,268,674
20,790,194
21,103,045

$

15,868,141
16,787,177
17,654,153
18,318,242
19,136,162
19,555,272
19,584,532
20,195,369
20,735,050
20,991,291

99.80%
99.51%
99.70%
99.62%
99.45%
99.64%
99.62%
99.64%
99.73%
99.47%

Uncollected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy
Amount
Percent
$

32,049
81,920
52,406
69,690
105,111
70,214
74,359
73,305
55,144
111,754

0.20%
0.49%
0.30%
0.38%
0.55%
0.36%
0.38%
0.36%
0.27%
0.53%

Collected in
Subsequent
Years
$

31,261
81,094
51,547
68,802
104,101
69,189
62,603
62,669
33,820
12,203

Total Uncollected to Date
Amount
Percent

Total Collected to Date
Amount
Percent
$

15,899,402
16,868,271
17,705,700
18,387,044
19,240,263
19,624,461
19,647,135
20,258,038
20,768,870
21,003,494

99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
100.00%
99.99%
99.99%
99.94%
99.95%
99.90%
99.53%

$

788
826
859
888
1,010
1,025
11,756
10,636
21,324
99,551

0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.00%
0.01%
0.01%
0.06%
0.05%
0.10%
0.47%

Tax
Liens
$

288,286
186,887
258,076
430,138
443,621
666,679
577,105
588,151
748,700
1,119,128

Percent of
Tax
Liens to
Tax Levy
1.81%
1.11%
1.46%
2.34%
2.31%
3.40%
2.94%
2.90%
3.60%
5.30%

Source: City of Rye Comptroller's Office
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Constitutional Tax Limit
Constitutional Tax Limit
Constitutional tax limit calculation, December 31, 2014
Full valuation, last five fiscal years
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
Total full valuation, last five years

$

Five-year average full valuation

7,061,283,776
6,703,650,097
6,289,348,539
6,420,448,704
7,180,016,340
33,654,747,456
6,730,949,491

Constitutional tax limit: 2% of five-year average full valuation

$

134,618,990

Tax levy - general city purposes
Total exclusions 1

$

21,103,045

Tax levy subject to tax limit

$

3,537,900

13.05%

Percent of constitutional tax limit exhausted
$

Constitutional tax margin

Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
1

17,565,145

117,053,845

Constitutional Tax Limit - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Constitutional
Tax Levy
Constitutional
Tax
Subject to
Tax
Percent
Limit
Tax Limit
Margin
Exhausted
86,967,321
97,665,203
109,217,662
118,554,221
126,308,575
134,043,181
136,414,495
135,941,949
134,518,353
134,618,990

12,534,148
13,536,961
11,596,583
9,272,883
15,489,470
9,462,610
17,105,703
18,059,528
18,386,704
17,565,145

74,433,173
84,128,242
97,621,079
109,281,338
110,819,105
124,580,571
119,308,792
117,882,421
116,131,649
117,053,845

14.41%
13.86%
10.62%
7.82%
12.26%
7.06%
12.54%
13.28%
13.67%
13.05%

The constitutional tax limit specifically excludes debt service related to bonds and notes
issued for certain specific purposes, and also excludes budgetary appropriations in the
forthcoming year's budget for objects or purposes for which a period of probable
usefulness is provided for in Section 11 of the New York State Local Finance Law.

Page 81

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. These schedules include:
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
Calculation of Charter Bonded Debt Limits

City of Rye, New York
Debt Capacity
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Less
Restricted
for Debt
Service

General
Obligation
Bonds

Estimated
Full
Property
Value

Percentage
of Full
Property
Value

Population (1)

5,246,364,749
5,827,620,298
6,407,484,954
7,059,549,137
7,036,124,596
7,180,016,340
6,420,448,704
6,289,348,539
6,703,650,097
7,061,283,776

0.34%
0.29%
0.26%
0.22%
0.21%
0.27%
0.29%
0.27%
0.24%
0.21%

14,992
14,992
15,109
15,242
16,737
15,091
15,720
15,834
15,868
15,960

4,210,000
3,975,000
3,730,000
3,470,000
3,200,000
2,840,000
2,580,987
2,252,775
1,920,446
1,538,690

5,246,364,749
5,827,620,298
6,407,484,954
7,059,549,137
7,036,124,596
7,180,016,340
6,420,448,704
6,289,348,539
6,703,650,097
7,061,283,776

0.08%
0.07%
0.06%
0.05%
0.05%
0.04%
0.04%
0.04%
0.03%
0.02%

14,992
14,992
15,109
15,242
16,737
15,091
15,720
15,834
15,868
15,960

281
265
247
228
191
188
164
142
121
96

22,151,013
21,128,013
20,075,000
18,970,000
17,825,000
22,247,374
20,963,715
19,418,097
17,949,212
16,323,252

5,246,364,749
5,827,620,298
6,407,484,954
7,059,549,137
7,036,124,596
7,180,016,340
6,420,448,704
6,289,348,539
6,703,650,097
7,061,283,776

0.42%
0.36%
0.31%
0.27%
0.25%
0.31%
0.33%
0.31%
0.27%
0.23%

14,992
14,992
15,109
15,242
16,737
15,091
15,720
15,834
15,868
15,960

1,478
1,409
1,329
1,245
1,065
1,474
1,334
1,226
1,131
1,023

Net
Outstanding
Debt

Per
Capita
Personal
Income (1)

Debt
Per
Capita

Estimated
Total
Personal
Income

Percentage of
Estimated
Total
Personal
Income

Governmental Activities
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

17,941,013
17,153,013
16,345,000
15,500,000
14,625,000
19,407,374
18,389,117
17,215,209
16,080,938
14,832,155

$

(6,389)
(49,887)
(52,172)
(47,593)

$

17,941,013
17,153,013
16,345,000
15,500,000
14,625,000
19,407,374
18,382,728
17,165,322
16,028,766
14,784,562

$

$

1,197
1,144
1,082
1,017
874
1,286
1,169
1,084
1,010
926

$

76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
92,737
93,072
94,207
94,559
91,839

$

1,147,877,472
1,147,877,472
1,156,835,694
1,167,018,972
1,281,485,142
1,399,494,067
1,463,091,840
1,491,673,638
1,500,462,212
1,465,750,440

1.56%
1.49%
1.41%
1.33%
1.14%
1.39%
1.26%
1.15%
1.07%
1.01%

76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
92,737
93,072
94,207
94,559
91,839

1,147,877,472
1,147,877,472
1,156,835,694
1,167,018,972
1,281,485,142
1,399,494,067
1,463,091,840
1,491,673,638
1,500,462,212
1,465,750,440

0.37%
0.35%
0.32%
0.30%
0.25%
0.20%
0.18%
0.15%
0.13%
0.10%

76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
92,737
93,072
94,207
94,559
91,839

1,147,877,472
1,147,877,472
1,156,835,694
1,167,018,972
1,281,485,142
1,399,494,067
1,463,091,840
1,491,673,638
1,500,462,212
1,465,750,440

1.93%
1.84%
1.74%
1.63%
1.39%
1.59%
1.43%
1.30%
1.20%
1.11%

Business-Type Activities
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

4,210,000
3,975,000
3,730,000
3,470,000
3,200,000
2,840,000
2,580,987
2,252,775
1,920,446
1,538,690

-

Total Government-Wide
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

22,151,013
21,128,013
20,075,000
18,970,000
17,825,000
22,247,374
20,970,104
19,467,984
18,001,384
16,370,845

(6,389)
(49,887)
(52,172)
(47,593)

(1) United States Census Bureau
Source: City Comptroller's Office
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Debt Capacity
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net General
Long-Term
Debt

Government Unit
City of Rye School District
Rye Neck Union Free School District
Westchester County
Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
City Direct Debt (2)

$

December 31, 2014
Percentage
Applicable
City of Rye(1)

37,490,000
15,335,000
1,098,445,984

100.00%
32.20%
5.12%

Amount
Applicable to
City of Rye
$

37,490,000
4,937,870
56,240,278
98,668,148
14,784,562

$ 113,452,710

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt
Population

15,960

Overlapping Debt Per Capita

$

6,182

Direct and Overlapping Debt Per Capita

$

7,109

Summary of Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Overlapping
Debt
$

59,230,087
58,690,542
56,889,611
72,272,509
69,394,614
61,092,502
72,521,155
71,965,716
94,761,524
98,668,148

Direct
and
Overlapping
Debt

City
Direct
Debt
$

17,941,013
22,273,440
21,201,748
20,080,956
18,917,493
19,407,374
18,315,000
17,150,000
16,028,766
14,784,562

$

Population

77,171,100

14,992

80,963,982
78,091,359
92,353,465
88,312,107
80,499,876
90,836,155
89,115,716
110,790,290
113,452,710

14,992
15,109
15,242
16,737
15,091
15,720
15,834
15,868
15,960

Overlapping
Debt
Per
Capita
$

3,951
3,915
3,765
4,742
4,146
4,048
4,613
4,545
5,972
6,182

Direct and
Overlapping
Debt
Per Capita
$

5,147
5,400
5,169
6,059
5,276
5,334
5,778
5,628
6,982
7,109

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the City's taxable
assessed value that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the City's
total taxable assessed value.
(2) Represents governmental activities debt only.
Sources: Outstanding debt and applicable percentages provided by each governmental unit.
Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the property taxpayers of the City of Rye.
This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term
debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account.
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Debt Capacity
Computation of Legal Debt Margin - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Net
Assessed
Valuation

State
Equalization
Rate

Full
Valuation

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010

$ 138,401,162
138,095,192
137,736,733
138,681,692
139,292,317

1.96%
2.06%
2.19%
2.16%
1.94%

$ 7,061,283,776
6,703,650,097
6,289,348,539
6,420,448,704
7,180,016,340

Total Five Year Full Valuation

33,654,747,456

Five Year Average Full Valuation of Taxable Real Property

6,730,949,491

Constitutional Debt Limit (7% of Average Full Valuation)

471,166,464

Outstanding Indebtedness at December 31st
Less: 2015 Appropriations for Debt Principal
Net Indebtedness Subject to Debt Limit

16,323,252
1,695,000
14,628,252

Net Debt Contracting Margin

$

456,538,212

Percentage of Net Debt Contracting Margin Available

96.90%

Percentage of Net Debt Contracting Power Exhausted

3.10%
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year

Constitutional
Debt Limit

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 304,385,625
341,828,209
382,261,817
414,939,772
442,080,012
469,151,135
477,450,732
475,796,822
470,814,236
471,166,464

Outstanding
Indebtedness
December 31

Less
Appropriations
for Debt
Principal

Indebtedness
Subject to
Debt Limit

$

$

$

22,151,013
26,248,440
24,931,748
23,550,956
22,117,493
22,247,374
20,845,000
19,360,000
17,949,212
16,323,252

1,019,974
1,092,221
1,173,948
1,217,116
1,224,767
1,322,828
1,406,137
1,525,000
1,640,000
1,695,000

21,131,039
25,156,219
23,757,800
22,333,840
20,892,726
20,924,546
19,438,863
17,835,000
16,309,212
14,628,252

Net Debt
Contracting
Margin

Percentage
of Net Debt
Contracting
Margin
Available

$ 283,254,586
316,671,990
358,504,017
392,605,932
421,187,286
448,226,589
458,011,869
457,961,822
454,505,024
456,538,212

93.06%
92.64%
93.78%
94.62%
95.27%
95.54%
95.93%
96.25%
96.54%
96.90%
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Debt Capacity
Calculation of Charter Bonded Debt Limits
In addition to the legal debt margin, the City Charter places limitations on the issuance of new debt (see Section C21-9 of the City of
Rye Code). The City Council can authorize the issuance of debt not exceeding 5% of the average gross annual budget for the
preceding three years. Debt exceeding 5% but not in excess of 10% is subject to a permissive referendum. Debt in excess of 10%
requires approval of the voting public in a general or special election.
In addition to other exemptions, the City Charter provides a limited exemption of $1 million per year to an aggregate maximum
outstanding of $2.5 million, for debt issued for public safety purposes and disaster rebuilding purposes.
For purposes of this calculation, "gross annual budget" is defined as the total appropriations of the General Fund, the Cable TV Special
Revenue Fund, and the enterprise funds (Boat Basin Fund and Golf Club Fund). All other fund budgets - the K.T. Woods Permanent
Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the internal service funds (Risk Retention Fund and Building and Vehicle
Maintenance Fund) are not included in the calculation, as their budgets are supported primarily by revenues and transfers charged to
other funds.
Gross Annual Budgets (As Adopted)
2012
2013
2014
Fund
General Fund
Cable TV Fund
Boat Basin Fund
Golf Club Fund
Total gross annual budgets

$ 29,937,271
396,784
1,123,751
7,305,049

$ 31,706,181
320,453
888,716
6,379,621

$

33,589,349
422,773
968,756
6,197,291

$ 38,762,855

$ 39,294,971

$

41,178,169

Total of preceding three years' gross annual budgets
Average of preceding three years' gross annual budgets

$ 119,235,995
$ 39,745,332
Subject to
City Council
Vote

Maximum charter bonding limit
Less outstanding principal at December 31, 2014
2000 Serial Bonds
2001 Serial Bonds
2002 Serial Bonds
2005 Serial Bonds
2010 Serial Bonds

$

Charter bonding limit December 31, 2014

$

1,987,267

Subject to
Permissive
Referendum
$

(136,679)
(240,818)
(1,172,448)
437,322

3,974,533

Public
Safety
Exemption
$

(441,078)
(88,155)
(400,242)
(107,374)
(598,189)
$

2,339,495

2,500,000

Disaster
Rebuilding
Exemption
$

(320,837)
(1,051,104)
$

1,128,059

2,500,000
-

$

2,500,000
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Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the City’s financial activities take place. These schedules include:
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

City of Rye, New York
Demographic and Economic Information - Last Ten Years

Median
Year

Population

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010(5)
2011
2012
2013
2014

14,992
14,992
15,109
15,242
16,737
15,091
15,720
15,834
15,868
15,960

1

Age

Per Capita

2

38.1
38.1
38.1
38.1
38.1
38.1
40.8
40.8
40.8
40.8

2

2

Income
$

76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
76,566
92,737
93,072
94,207
94,559
91,839

Median
Residential
Home

Median
Household
Income
$

110,894
110,894
110,894
110,894
110,894
145,990
146,069
149,973
142,469
150,556

Rate

1,225,000
1,179,000
1,455,000
1,460,000
1,350,000
1,255,000
1,448,750
1,440,000
1,450,000
1,563,000

4.1%
3.7%
3.7%
5.7%
6.9%
6.7%
6.5%
6.2%
6.3%
4.5%

Value
$

Unemployment

3

4

Sources:
1
2
3
4

5

United States Census Bureau.
United States Census Bureau 2010 Census.
City of Rye Assessor's office. 2014 median based on sales through mid-November 2014.
United States Bureau of Labor Statistics unemployment rates for Westchester County
not seasonally adjusted.
United States Census Bureau's American Community Survey (2005-2009).
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City of Rye, New York
Demographic and Economic Information
Principal Employers
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20041

Employer

Industry

Playland
Osborne Retirement Home
Avon Products
Rye City School District
Lynch Interactive Corp.
Apawamis Club
Shenorock Shore Club
Mobius Management Systems Inc.
Rye Country Day School
Lillian Vernon Corp

Amusement Park
Retirement Community
Retail Cosmetics
Education
Telecommunications
Private Club
Private Club
Computer Technology
Education
Catalog and Mail Order Sales

1

Number of
Employees
596
480
400
377
328
200
200
175
160
150

No data available after fiscal 2004. No data on total employment available.

Source: Westchester County Planning Department
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Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in
the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. These
schedules include:
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Program
Operating Indicators by Program
Capital Asset Statistics by Program

City of Rye, New York
Operating Information
Full-Time Equivalent Employers by Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year

General
Government

Public
Safety

Community
Environment (1)

Transportation (1)

Culture and
Recreation

Home and
Community Svs (1)

Total

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

20
18
21
30
18
18
14
14
13
13

62
61
61
64
59
59
57
55
57
61

64
65
64
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
16
20
20
19
15
15
13

25
23
21
22
22
22
19
19
19
18

n/a
n/a
n/a
34
44
44
39
41
42
44

171
167
167
166
163
163
148
144
146
149

(1) Beginning in 2008, employees previously reported in the community environment function have
been reallocated and are now being reported within the public safety, transportation and
home and community services functions.
Source: Annual City Budget
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City of Rye, New York
Operating Information
Operating Indicators by Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
General Government
Primary elections
General elections
Special elections
Public Safety
Number of police personnel and officers
Number of police calls for service
Number of parking violations issued
Number of paid firefighters
Number of volunteer firefighters
Number of fire alarms answered
Number of fire inspections performed
Number of school crossing guards***
Home and Community Services
Tons collected and disposed
Solid waste
Green waste
Metal
Pulp
Co-mingled
Number of tires collected and disposed*
Number of shade trees
Planted
Removed
Trimmed
Emergency calls
Stumps ground
Culture and Recreation
Registrations for adult programs
Picnics**
Registrations for senior citizen programs
Registrations for special events
Tennis permits issued
Registrations for youth programs
Registrations for youth sports

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1
-

1
1
-

1
1
-

1
1
-

1
1
-

1
1
-

1
1
-

45
14,446
9,684
17
200
882
428
8

44
12,923
8,209
17
200
1,068
356
8

44
12,182
9,300
17
200
1,150
428
8

44
14,004
12,739
17
225
855
442
8

42
12,841
11,752
17
120
821
471
8

42
16,252
11,829
17
120
957
478
10

40
14,845
11,930
17
112
951
485
9

39
13,829
10,539
17
170
1,134
115
8

40
10,957
8,498
17
150
888
119
-

41
13,501
9,061
17
150
928
119
-

6,891
975
175
1,878
609
3

7,010
1,245
328
1,867
608
2

7,419
3,006
194
1,864
665
2

5,836
3,199
155
1,934
770
4

5,645
3,554
134
1,714
800
1

5,806
2,863
111
1,739
794
1

5,935
4,326
97
1,673
787
1

5,598
5,685
76
1,627
734
-

5,391
6,697
86
1,558
722
-

5,364
1,736
44
1,617
772
-

31
93
420
160
26

42
164
160
284
162

55
235
379
55
139

115
239
468
86
154

268
404
44
135

5
95
253
75
66

7
219
329
126
135

8
134
265
289
125

27
162
147
95
99

30
91
223
22
93

1,058
5,429
3,430
5,937
437
3,771
4,275

1,086
5,859
3,489
6,881
453
3,817
4,838

1,170
5,833
6,410
6,006
425
4,747
5,012

1,402
4,103
7,445
5,051
412
5,486
4,727

1,307
2,516
6,668
4,848
444
5,270
4,853

1,130
3,922
6,729
4,795
406
3,674
5,109

1,092
N/A
6,511
4,509
416
2,998
4,842

1,428
75
5,144
4,065
507
1,810
4,231

1,300
77
5,276
4,215
550
2,124
4,239

1,201
62
4,976
5,438
519
1,904
4,150

Note: "N/A" indicates data not available.
Sources: Departmental annual reports to the City Manager.
*County stopped collecting used tires. City must
now pay to dispose of them.
** Changed to number of picnic events beginning in 2012
*** Hired Outside Agency for Crossing Guards
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City of Rye, New York
Operating Information
Capital Asset Statistics by Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2005
General Government
Number of general government buildings
Public Safety
Number of police stations
Number of fire stations
Number of traffic lights
Transportation
Miles of streets
Number of street lights
Culture and Recreation
Number of recreation centers
Number of parks
Acres of parks
Number of golf courses
Number of swimming pools
Number of nature centers
Number of cable television channels
Number of boat basin slips
Home and Community Services
Miles of sanitary sewers
Number of pump stations
Miles of storm drains

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

1
2
23

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

71
2,105

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

1
3
75
1
1
1
2
412

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

53
6
30

Source: Various City Departments
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June 29, 2015
Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Rye, New York
1051 Boston Post Road
Rye, New York 10580
Dear Honorable Mayor and Council Members:
This letter includes comments and suggestions with respect to matters that came to our attention in
connection with our audit of the financial statements of the City of Rye, New York (City) for the year
ended December 31 2014. These items are offered as constructive suggestions to be considered part of
the ongoing process of modifying and improving the City’s practices and procedures.
1. Deposits
Observation: At December 31, 2014, the City’s General Fund held approximately $700,000 in deposits
for various activities (tree guarantees, street openings, etc.). While some of these deposits were made
during fiscal 2014, a significant portion pertains to prior fiscal years, which have not been claimed by the
depositor.
Suggestion: We suggest that the City develop policies and procedures that detail good faith efforts to
return deposits to the depositor within a finite period of time, including advertisement on the City’s website
and local newspapers. Deposits or other abandoned property for which the City has tried in good faith to
return to depositors during the fixed period of time, should be transferred to the City’s general fund
balance.
2. Compensated Absences - Fire Department
Observation: During our audit procedures, we noted internal discrepancies in the calculation of compensated absences for Fire Department employees. Currently, using guidance from the most recent Fire Department contract, the Payroll Department calculates compensated absences by anniversary date of individual employees. However, the Fire Department calculates compensated absences using January 1st as
an anniversary date for all employees. As a result, internal balances of accrued compensated absences
differed between Departments.
Suggestion: We suggest management review the calculation of compensated absences between departments to obtain a consistent method for determining the estimated accrual for compensated absences at year end.

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Rye, New York
June 29, 2015
Page 2

3. Compensated Absences
Observation: City employees are entitled to compensated absences (entitlement leave) in accordance
with their respective union agreement or employment contract. With few exceptions, employees are not
permitted to take personal time during the first year of employment. After completion of an employee’s
first anniversary date, the predetermined entitlement leave is credited to the employee. After reviewing
various employee’s accrued compensated absences, we noted a discrepancy between amounts reported
on employee’s paystubs versus amounts accrued as of December 31, 2014. This discrepancy is
attributed to the partial year calculation of accrued compensated absences from the employee’s most
recent anniversary date to December 31, 2014, which is not included on the employee’s paystub.
We note through discussion with City management, amounts paid out for accrued compensated
absences upon employee termination or retirement is the sum of the balance earned through the most
recent anniversary date, plus the amount earned from the anniversary date to the date of
termination/retirement, less any time taken through the date of termination/retirement. Accordingly,
payments made agree directly to the amounts accrued by the City’s Comptroller office.
Suggestion:
Management should review the functionality of the payroll software and determine if
compensated absences can tracked via each payroll cycle, which is consistent with their accounting and
payment practices. Accruing compensated absences as of each payroll cycle and reporting the balance
on the respective pay stubs will provide employees with a more timely position of their earned balance
Additionally, the automation of the compensated absences accrual will alleviate a manually prepared
calculation, which can be time consuming.
4. Receivables and Payables
Observation: During our review of various general ledger accounts we noted the following:
a) The General Fund has an accounts receivable balance greater than 120 days of $27,251. The
receivables composing this balance date as far back as August of 2010.
b) The Golf Club Fund has total deposits of $20,216, of which $14,874 were made prior to 2014. The
balance is largely comprised of unused gift cards.
c) The Golf Club Fund also has $9,467 in accounts receivable balances that are greater than 90 days.
Suggestion: Management should review the above receivable balances for collectability on a regular
basis. Amounts determined to be uncollectible should either be fully reserved for, or written off subject to
City Council approval. Management may consider the use of collection specialist in recouping receivable
balances.
Similar to the above General Fund deposit’s comment, management should consider the establishment of
an expiration date for the unused gift cards. After a good faith effort reminding golf club patrons of the
unused gift card balances and adherence to the expiration date, management should remove (write-off)
the gift card obligation.

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Rye, New York
June 29, 2015
Page 3

5. Vendor List
Observation: During our audit testing, we noted numerous vendors that were duplicated within the City’s
accounting system.
Suggestion: The City should develop and implement a vendor maintenance procedure that includes the
review, inactivation, archiving, and/or purging of vendor master records at predetermined intervals. This
should include potential communication with vendors for missing information, cleansing of old or duplicate
entries, and a review of the City’s procedures for vendor additions and deletions. The exercise to clean
up the vendor database will improve data quality and reduce the potential risk of multiple and/or
unjustified payments to vendors.
6. Property, Plant, and Equipment Inventory
Observation: During our audit, we noted that the City has not recently performed physical inventory of its
capital assets, with an emphasis on non-infrastructure related assets.
Suggestion: We suggest the City perform a physical inventory of all non-infrastructure related property
and equipment. The physical inventory should then be reconciled to the schedule of property, plant, and
equipment maintained by the City. The inventory should also be compared to the City’s insurance policy
to ensure adequate coverage. The comparison may also identify situations where insurance coverage
may be more than is needed.
7. Restricted Fund Balances
Observation: The City has reported a number of restrictions within fund balance, specifically the General
Fund. Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental
organizations, fund balance should be reported as restricted when either of the following criteria exist:
a) Externally imposed restrictions by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments; or
b) Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
While the City’s restrictions were consistent with prior years, the City did not maintain any documentation
supporting the specific restrictions, such as Board resolutions authorizing the reserve under General
Municipal Law.
Suggestion: As a matter of public record, and to demonstrate compliance with the aforementioned
financial reporting requirements, we recommend the following:
a) For non-externally imposed restrictions such as compensated absences, parks, recreation programs,
etc., the City should identify the appropriate reserve category under General Municipal Law, and pass
resolutions approve the reserves.

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Rye, New York
June 29, 2015
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b) For externally imposed restrictions, such as donations, the City should prepare documentation
approved minimally by the City Manager that outlines the restriction and purpose of the reserve
funds.
c) The records supporting restricted funds should be maintained by the City Comptroller and
reviewed/updated as needed, but minimally on an annual basis.
This letter is solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, Council Members, management,
and others within the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the
specified parties. We appreciate serving the City of Rye, New York and would be happy to assist you in
addressing and implementing any of the comments and suggestions in this letter.
Very truly yours,
SaxBST LLP

Jeffrey P. Roude, Partner
JPR/dmc

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report
The Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Rye, New York
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Rye, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively the City of Rye’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 29, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Rye’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Rye’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Rye’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a significant
deficiency (2014-001).

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rye, New York
June 29, 2015
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Rye’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
The City’s Response to Findings
The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

New York, New York
June 29, 2015

City of Rye, New York
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Section I - Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:




Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements?

Yes
X

X

Yes
Yes

No
Non Reported

X

No

Section II - Financial Statement Audit Finding
2014-001 Boat Basin Charges
Criteria: Management of the City of Rye, New York (City) should maintain adequate records to support
the validity of user charges and cash receipts at the Boast Basin.
Condition: We selected a sample of 51 boat basin charges made during the year, of which 45 were
deemed accurate based on the documentation supplied and compared to the rate schedule included in
the City Council’s approved budget. In some instances management supplied additional information to
clarify the charges; however, documentation and approval of these explanations was not maintained in
the City’s records at the time the charge was incurred.
Effect:
Amounts recorded in the financial statements, including cash deposits, reconcile to
management’s documentation. Although de Minimis in nature, some user charges did not reconcile to
the City approved budget and therefore it is possible that some charges may not be accurate.
Cause: The City did not maintain adequate documentation to support all user charges incurred at the
Boat Basin. In addition, changes to City Council approved rates were not documented.
Recommendations: Management should ensure that Boat Basin user charges reconcile to the City
Council approved rate schedule. Variances from the City Council approved rate schedule should be
documented by management and approved by the City Council.
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: The Finance Department reconciles
each receipt received from the Boat Basin to the City Council approved rate schedule, which appears in
the 2015 adopted budget. Boat Basin staff has been informed that any changes to the rate schedule
would have to be submitted to the City Council for approval prior to these changes being implemented.
Section III - Compliance Finding
None noted.

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 7

DEPT.: Corporation Counsel
DATE: July 8, 2015
CONTACT: Kristen K. Wilson, Corporation Counsel
AGENDA ITEM: Continuation of the Public Hearing to
FOR THE MEETING OF:
amend local law Chapter 177, “Taxation”, Article XII,
July 8, 2015
“Exemption for Historic Districts” by adding Section §177RYE CITY CODE,
82, “Historic Districts”, to designate portions of downtown
Rye as one historic district to allow property owners to
CHARTER
apply for the real property tax exemption.
SECTION
177

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council continue the Public Hearing to amend Chapter
177, “Taxation”.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The City Council amended Chapter 177, “Taxation” of the City of Rye Code
at their December 18, 2013 City Council meeting by adding, Article XII “Exemption for Historic
Districts” to provide tax exemptions for improvements to historic properties. To qualify for the
tax exemption a property must lie within a historic district. The Landmarks Advisory Committee
requests approval to designate portions of downtown Rye (B-2 zone plus portions of contiguous
B-1 zones) as one historic district. The Council is asked to hold a Public Hearing to amend the
Chapter 177 to include this change.

See attached request from the Landmarks Advisory Committee and draft Local Law.

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 8

DEPT.: City Council
CONTACT: Mayor Joseph A. Sack
AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing to amend local law
Chapter 133, “Noise”, of the Rye City Code regarding
regulations on mechanical rock removal.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
133
SECTION
8

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council hold a Public Hearing to amend Chapter 133
regarding regulations on mechanical rock removal.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: Recommendations regarding mechanical rock removal will be presented to
the City Council including limits on duration of rock chipping, establishing a permit process,
better notice to neighbors, increased restrictions on hours and adding additional holidays when
rock chipping would be prohibited.

See attached Draft Local Law.

CITY OF RYE
LOCAL LAW NO.

2015

A local law to amend Chapter 133 “Noise” of the Code of the City of Rye by renaming and
amending Section 8 as follows “Permit Required; Construction work, mechanical rock
removal and blasting restrictions”; amending Section 133-9 “Penalties for Offenses” to
increase the penalties, and amending Section 133-10 “Exempt Acts” to exempt certain
entities from the requirements as follows:
Be it enacted by the City Council of the City of Rye as follows:
Section 1: Chapter 133-8 “Permit Required; Construction work,
mechanical rock removal and blasting restrictedions to certain hours and
days.”
A.

Whenever used in this section, the following terms shall have the
meanings indicated:
ROCK REMOVAL PERMIT – A permit issued for rock removal on a
subject property.
SUBJECT PROPERTY – The lot for which a rock removal permit or
blasting permit pursuant to Chapter 98 is issued.

B.

C.

TESTING DAYS – A day when a school is administering a state or federally
mandated test or a day when the school is administering an advanced
placement test, PSAT, LSAT, SAT, ACT, MCAT, final examinations or
other similar tests, as long as the school or district posts on their web site at
the beginning of each school year such dates and provides such information
at the beginning of the school year to the Building Department .No
Mechanical Rock Removal or blasting may take place unless a
permit is obtained. All permits shall identify the purpose for which
the Rock Removal Permit or blasting permit is being issued, the
owner of the Subject Property, including any partners of any
limited liability company, and the permitted duration of the
Mechanical Rock Removal or blasting.
(1)

Mechanical Rock Removal and blasting shall be restricted to
thirty (30) consecutive calendar days.

(2)

No new/additional Rock Removal Permit or blasting permit
(see Chapter 98) shall be issued for the same Subject
Property for 18 months from the date any previously issued
permit expires.

Upon receiving a Rock Removal Permit or blasting permit, any individual
who intends to engage in Mechanical Rock Removal or blasting on any
property in the City of Rye shall register with the City at least seven (7)

calendar days prior to the commencement of such activities. Upon such
notification, the Subject Property will be listed on the City of Rye website
showing the earliest commencement date and when the thirty day period
ceases. Such notice shall be displayed in a visible location at the Subject
Property.
(3)

In addition to notifying the City as required in Section B(3) above, the
individual must also notify the neighbors by sending out a public
notification prepared by the Building Department. The applicant
shall prepare a notification list, using the most current City of Rye
Tax Maps and Tax Assessment Roll, showing the Tax Map sheet,
block and lot number, the owner’s name and owner’s mailing address
for each property located wholly or partially within 500 feet of the
Subject Property. If a property on the public notification list is also
listed as a cooperative or an apartment, the notice shall only be mailed
to the property owner of record. These mailing requirements must be
performed in accordance with the following requirements:
a. The mailing shall be limited solely to the public notice provided by
the City Building Department.
b. The notice shall be mailed to all property owners by certified mail
with certificate of mailing (no return receipt necessary) at a post
office or official depository of the Postal Service, at least ten (10)
days prior to the commencement of Mechanical Rock Removal.
c. The individual must provide a copy of the certificate of mailing to
the City Building Department prior to the commencement of any
Mechanical Rock Removal or blasting.

D.

Construction work prohibited at certain hours and on certain days. No
person shall engage in construction work earlier than 7:30 a.m. or later
than 6:30 p.m., prevailing time, on weekdays; earlier than 10:00 a.m. or
later than 5:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Saturdays; or at any hour on
Sundays or any of the following holidays: New Year’s Day, Presidents’
Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day,
Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans Day, Yom Kippur,
Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving weekend and Christmas
Day through New Year’s Day.

E.

Notwithstanding any provision of §133-8 to the contrary, an individual
may perform construction work him/herself on property on which such
individual then resides as follows:
(i)
Weekdays, between 7:30 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.
(ii)
Saturdays and Sundays (including holidays), between the hours
of 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.
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F.

Mechanical Rock Removal and blasting are prohibited at certain hours
and on certain days. No person shall engage in Mechanical Rock
Removal, as defined in Subsection A, or blasting operations using
explosives as defined by § 98-40, within the City of Rye after the hour
of 3:30 p.m. or before 9:00 a.m. on weekdays or at any time on
Saturday and Sunday; or on any of the following holidays and time
periods: New Year’s Day, Presidents’ Day, Martin Luther King Jr.
Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day,
Veterans Day, Yom Kippur, Thanksgiving Day through
Thanksgiving weekend and Christmas Day through New Year’s Day
except under authority of a special permit issued by the City Manager.
In addition, Mechanical Rock Removal and blasting will be prohibited
within 500 feet of a school on Testing Days.

G.

No person performing Mechanical Rock Removal shall have more
than one machine and one hammer operating on the Subject
Property at the same time. Rock crushing shall not be permitted on
the Subject Property. Any rock hammer must be removed from the site
by the end of the third calendar day following the expiration of the 30
calendar day period for Mechanical Rock Removal set forth above.

Section 2:

Chapter 133-9. “Penalties for offenses”.

In the event an activity is not being performed in accordance with this chapter,
the owner of the property or the owner’s agent or the person performing such
violation shall be notified to suspend all work, and any such persons shall
forthwith stop such work and suspend all activities. Such order and notice
shall be in writing and may be served upon a person to whom it is directed
either by delivering it personally to him or by posting the same upon a
conspicuous portion of the property and sending a copy of same by registered
or certified mail. Any person who violates any provision of this chapter shall
be guilty of an offense and shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine
of not more than $250 or imprisonment for a term of not more than 15 days, or
both except that violations under § 133-8, Permit Required; Construction
Work, Mechanical Rock Removal and blasting restrictions, shall be treated
as individual violations for each and every such violation and noncompliance,
respectively, thereof, shall be punished upon such first conviction by a fine of
not more than $1,000, an order to suspend construction work and/or
mechanical rock removal and/or blasting on the site for a period of not
more than 72 hours, or by imprisonment not exceeding 15 days, or any
combination of such fine, suspension, and imprisonment, and each day that
such violation shall continue shall be construed as a separate offense. Upon
any subsequent conviction for the same offense such person shall be subject to
a fine of not more than $2,000, or an order to suspend construction work
and/or mechanical rock removal and/or blasting on the site for a period of
not more than 72 hours, or by imprisonment not exceeding 15 days, or any
3

combination of such fine, suspension and imprisonment. The imposition of
one penalty for any violation shall not excuse or remedy such violations.
Section 3:

Chapter 133-10. “Exempt acts”.

§ 133-10.

Exempt acts.

The following activities and agencies are exempt from the requirement of this Chapter:
A. The actions of governmental agencies, including the Rye City School District and
the Rye Neck Union Free School District, shall be specifically exempt from the
requirements of this chapter.
B. Removal of up to 2,000 cubic feet of rock for utilities shall be exempt from the
requirements of this Chapter, but in no circumstance may this provision be
used for Mechanical Rock removal for more than three (3) days.
Section 4:

Severability.

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of any section of this title shall be adjudged
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or
invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence,
paragraph, section or part thereof directly involved in the controversy and in which such
judgment shall have been rendered.
Section 5:

Effective date.

This local law will take effect immediately on filing in the office of the Secretary of State.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 9

DEPT.:
Planning
DATE: July 8, 2015
CONTACT: Christian K. Miller, AICP, City Planner
AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing to amend local law
FOR THE MEETING OF:
Chapter 197, “Zoning”, of the Rye City Code by amending
July 8, 2015
Section §197-2, “Districts, A: Residence Districts” to
RYE CITY CODE,
change the zoning designation of a property at 120 Old
Post Road from the B-4, Office Building, District to a New
CHAPTER
197
RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District; and amending
SECTION
7
Section §197-86, “Tables of Regulations: Table A,
Residence Districts – Area Yard, Height and
Miscellaneous Regulations” to add the proposed RA-6
zone.

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council hold a Public Hearing to review the Planning
Commission’s advisory memorandum and the petitioner’s amended submission.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The City Council declared themselves Lead Agency under SEQRA at the
October 8, 2014 City Council meeting and referred the petition of Old Post Road Associates to
the Planning Commission for their review. Old Post Road Associates, LLC, seeks an
amendment to the City Zoning Map to change the zoning district designation of an
approximately 7.0-acre property located at the intersection of Old Post Road and Playland
Access Drive. The request would change the zoning of the property from the B-4, Office
Building, District to a new zone RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District. The petitioner is
seeking to construct units of age-restricted housing limited to those individuals over age 55 who
are not interested or in need of residing within a retirement community or nursing facility.
See attached Planning Commission advisory memorandum and applicant’s amended petition
with supporting documents.
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Planning Department
1051 Boston Post Road
Rye, New York 10580
Tel: (914) 967-7167
Fax: (914) 967-7185
www.ryeny.gov

CITY OF RYE
Planning Commission

Memorandum

To:

Rye City Council

From:

Rye City Planning Commission

Date:

May 5, 2015

Subject:

Advisory Recommendation Regarding a Petition from Old Post Road
Associates, LLC to amend the City Zoning Code and Zoning Map to
Change the Zoning Designation of a property at 120 Old Post Road
from the B-4, Office Building, District to a New RA-6, Active Senior
Residence, District.

As requested, this memorandum provides a recommendation to the Rye City Council
regarding the above-referenced matter.
Background
Last fall the applicant submitted to the City Council a petition to change the zoning
district of a 7-acre property currently zoned B-4, Office Building, District at 120 Old Post
Road to a new RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District. The petitioner submitted the
zoning request in order to advance the construction of a 135-unit age restricted multifamily community. Consistent with City practice, the petition was referred to the
Planning Commission for its advisory recommendation. The City Council also declared
its intent to be Lead Agency for the environmental review of the application.
At five public meetings since February the Planning Commission has reviewed the
petitioner’s request and requested supplemental information. All information submitted
to the Commission will be repacked into one complete submission to the City Council
upon receipt of this memorandum. This memorandum was unanimously adopted by the
Planning Commission at its May 5, 2015 meeting.
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Advisory Recommendation Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
May 5, 2015
Page 2 of 7
Existing Permitted and Proposed Uses
The Commission supports the proposed age-restricted multi-family use based on
current and anticipated office market trends, land use compatibility considerations and
the balance of potential positive and negative impacts
Market Trends
The market analysis provided by the petitioner appears to support that there is
demand for the age-restricted multi-family housing within the area. The analysis
also affirms long-term historic and future challenges to office use.
The existing office building on the property has struggled to find tenants and has
remained vacant for many years. The building age and configuration makes it
difficult to re-adapt for multi-tenant users, which is how many former singletenant buildings have been successful in reducing vacancy rates. While it
appears that the office vacancy is relatively low in Rye, area market analysis
suggests that office buildings continue their multi-year trend of high vacancy
rates and flat or declining rents. There does not appear to be any demographic
or economic factor on the horizon to reverse this downward trend. There is little
new office construction in the region and other area communities such as Rye
Brook and Harrison have amended their zoning codes to allow the
reprogramming of existing or approved office space to other uses including multifamily residential, retail and private recreational uses. Age-restricted housing
serves the growing needs of the aging baby boom generation, which is
consistent with regional and national demographic trends.
The Commission notes that petitioner’s characterization that the units would
serve a “luxury” market (which is a relative term) cannot be guaranteed because
zoning cannot legislate minimum rents or housing values. Actual rents could be
higher or lower and housing tenure (i.e. rental vs. ownership) could also change
and cannot be legislated in a zoning district.
Land Use Compatibility
The proposed age-restricted multi-family use is not incompatible with surrounding
office, medical, institutional and single-family uses. The proposed zoning would
create more opportunity for the creation of age-restricted housing and would add
to the existing or approved 140 units of senior affordable housing in the nearby
RA-5 Districts on Theall Road and Theodore Fremd Avenue. Land use
compatibility concerns could be further alleviated by amending the proposed RA6 District to include some or all of the Planning Commission’s recommendations
under the Bulk and Density section of this memorandum.
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Advisory Recommendation Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
May 5, 2015
Page 3 of 7
In consideration of the petitioner’s request, the City Council should contemplate
whether other properties in the area may seek similar requests and whether a
change in land use or amenities (such as improvements in the pedestrian
network) may be necessary to support the growth in age-restricted housing within
the area.
Consideration of Impacts
Potentially beneficial and detrimental impacts of the proposed use must be
compared to those associated with the continuation of the existing office building.
Office may have lower taxes than other uses, but it also generates relatively low
municipal costs and no school-age children costs. On a per square-foot basis
office generates higher traffic than the proposed use. Office generates less
water, sewer and most other utility use than the proposed use. Office provides
Rye residents with the potential to work in the City they reside in, but the
proposed use offers an expansion of housing opportunities that the City may
desire. The City Council needs to consider a comparison of these and other
impacts associated with the maximum permitted development under existing and
proposed zoning as it conducts its environmental review as Lead Agency under
the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR).
School-age Children
Age-restricted housing has no direct impact on school-age children costs and
would likely provide an overall fiscal benefit to the City, County and School
District budgets. The petitioner has provided a fiscal impact analysis in its
submission. Much is noted that the age-restriction required by proposed zoning
will not result in any direct impacts on school district costs because there will be
no generation of school-age children.
The City should expect, however that there may be an indirect impact of the
proposed development on school age generation based on the statements of
need represented by the petitioner and its market study. Those indirect costs will
be borne as Rye residents housing choices are expanded, which may induce
movement in the housing migration cycle. Those households residing in existing
single-family homes over age 55 and without children will have the opportunity to
move to the petitioner’s proposed development within the Rye community, which
may be better suited to their housing needs. This type of housing choice is fairly
limited in the City. As those single-family “empty nester” homes are sold they
may go to households with children. Studies by the Rye City School District
show that sellers of single-family homes typically have fewer children than
buyers. Though challenging to quantify, this indirect impact on school-age
children generation should be considered.
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Advisory Recommendation Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
May 5, 2015
Page 4 of 7
It is acknowledged that this housing migration could occur independent of
whether the petition is approved. For instance, if a similar housing product is
offered in another nearby community this too could induce the sale of empty
nester single-family homes in the City.
Fiscal Impact
The existing B-4 District on a 7.01-acre property is very limited in terms of the
types and range of permitted uses that are both economically feasible for a
property owner and fiscally beneficial to municipal and school district tax
revenue. Other permitted uses available on this property include public
recreational uses, public uses, nursery schools (not to exceed 30 children),
agricultural uses, railroad passenger station and electric substations, religious
uses, and residential care facility uses (limited to care of 10 or fewer disabled
persons or persons in need of supervision or juvenile delinquents). Given these
use restrictions of the existing zoning it’s not surprising that the property owner is
seeking changes from the City Council to amend the City Zoning Code.
The existing office building is vacant and therefore does not put significant
demands on municipal or school district services. However, the vacancy position
of the building has resulted in the property owner’s successful reduction in
property tax. This contributes to a destabilizing tax assessment position and
when reductions are successfully secured it requires other tax payers, new
revenue sources or service modifications to compensate for lost revenue.
Continued vacancy of the office building may result in further future tax
reductions.
The existing property pays approximately $21,500 in City tax and $80,300 in Rye
City School District tax. The RA-6 District offers an opportunity to increase tax
revenue and greater tax assessment stability. The petitioner has estimated that
the age-restricted rental multi-family project currently under consideration could
generate almost $98,000 in City tax and $365,000 in Rye City School District tax.
The City Council should discuss the potential tax generation on this property and
what restrictions might be implemented to prevent or limit future tax certioraris.
Traffic
Full development under the proposed zoning would generate less peak hour
traffic than full office development permitted by existing Zoning.
Vehicle delays and traffic volumes can be high on some area roadways and
intersections. Level of service is particularly poor at the Old Post Road/Playland
Parkway Access Drive intersections. Interestingly, peak-hour vehicle trips and
delays are generally less today than were shown in traffic studies conducted in
2009 and 2013. Certain turning movements have seen increases, which may be
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Advisory Recommendation Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
May 5, 2015
Page 5 of 7
reduced with potential turning movement restrictions. A traffic signal at
congested intersections does not appear to meet the required warrant analysis.
There may be opportunities to make traffic improvements to address existing or
anticipated traffic challenges.
Bulk and Density
The Commission notes concerns with the increase in overall development density of the
proposed zoning as compared to the existing zoning. The proposed zoning would
provided for a 166% increase in permitted floor area on the 7.01-acre property. It would
also allow for a multi-family development density of 21.78 units per acre. The petitioner
has provided a comparison of the unit density of the proposed zoning to other multifamily buildings in the City and similar age-restricted housing in the area In that analysis
they note that Rye Manor on Theall Road has 53 units per acre, Highland Hall has 83
units per acre and Blind Brook Lodge has 51 units per acre. The recently approved 41
units of senior housing at 150 North Street/Theodore Fremd Avenue has 19.8 units per
acre. The Commission is sensitive to concerns regarding the proposed bulk and scale
of future development under the proposed district. To address these concerns the
Commission recommends at a minimum the following adjustments in the proposed RA6 District standards (see summary in Table 1 attached hereto).
Building/Lot Coverage
The existing B-4 District limits building coverage to 15%. There is no maximum
lot coverage in the B-4 District so all at-grade parking is not included in the
calculation. The Petitioner represents that the existing total impervious coverage
on the property is 44%. Under the proposed RA-6 District there would be no
building or lot coverage standard, but there would be a requirement that 80% of
all required parking be located below grade in the basement. The Commission
supports this requirement since it will reduce the over all lot coverage on the
property. If a building coverage standard is desired by the City Council the
applicant’s current plan requires a building coverage of approximately 35%,
which includes the portion of the court-yard building with basement parking.
Setbacks
The existing B-4 District requires a minimum building setback of 100 feet from all
front, side and rear property lines. The proposed RA-6 District would reduce
proposed building setbacks to as little as 25 feet for the rear yard and 40 feet for
the side yard and the front yard along Playland Parkway Access Drive. Building
height in both the existing and proposed districts would be 45 feet, however there
would be a notable increase in overall development potential and an allowance
for four stories (within 45 feet) rather than three stories in the B-4 District. Given
these bulk increases the Commission recommends that no setback be less than
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Advisory Recommendation Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
May 5, 2015
Page 6 of 7
50 feet and that perimeter landscape screening requirements be added to the
proposed RA-6 District.
Bedroom Mix and Parking
The Commission recommends that the parking standard be increased from 1.25
spaces per unit rather than 1.5 spaces per unit and that development be limited
to one- and two-bedroom units. A higher parking standard is necessary because
it is likely that future development have assigned parking spaces, which means
sharing of parking is not possible. Giving the nature of the use the Commission
would not object to amending the proposed RA-6 District to allow tandem
parking.
Attached hereto is a table that summarizes the Planning Commission’s
recommendations to assist the City Council’s continued review of this matter.
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Summary of Planning Commission Recommendations
Proposed RA-6, Active Senior Residence, District
Zoning
Standard
Permitted Use

0.3
(or 91,257 s.f.)

Proposed
RA-6 District**
Age-Restricted
Multi-Family
0.8
(or 243,936 s.f.)

Max. Building
Coverage

15%

No max.

Min. Lot Area

7 Acre

0

400 feet
100 feet

400 feet
100/40 feet

Max. Floor Area
Ratio

Min. Lot Width
Front Yard Setback

Existing
B-4 Office District*
Office

Summary of Planning Comments and Recommendations
Proposed use is acceptable.
Represents a 166% increase in maximum permitted development potential,
however proposed use would be residential rather than existing office
development and is considered acceptable if other recommendations provided
below are implemented.
A maximum building coverage standard of 35% would meet the project needs of
the petitioner. Commission supports the proposed requirement that 80% of
required parking be within a basement to reduce overall site coverage.
No minimum lot area is proposed however a 2,000 square foot minimum lot area
per unit (or 21.78 units per acre) is proposed, which could yield a maximum of
152 units on the property. Planning Commission recommends limiting the unit
type to one- and two-bedroom units only.

The front yard setback would only apply to the Post Road frontage. The setback
from Playland Parkway Access Drive would be considered a side yard setback.
The Commission recommends that this setback be increased to not less than 50
feet.
One Side Setback
100 feet
40 feet
Planning Commission recommends that this setback be increased to not less
than 50 feet.
Total of Two Yards
200 feet
100 feet
Due to proposed reduction in setbacks and increase in permitted floor area the
Planning Commission recommends a new landscape buffer standard.
Rear Yard Setback
100 feet
25 feet
Planning Commission recommends that this setback be increased to not less
than 50 feet.
Max. Stories
3
4
Proposed standard is acceptable.
Max. Building Height
45 feet
45 feet
Proposed standard is acceptable.
Required Parking
7 spaces per 10
1.25 spaces/unit Planning Commission recommends a minimum parking requirement of 1.50
persons employed
spaces per unit provided that unit type is limited to one- and two-bedroom units
at one time.
only. Tandem parking for residential units should also be allowed.
Min. Floor Area per
N/A
1-BR: 750 s.f.
Planning Commission finds proposed standard acceptable noting that it meets or
Unit
2-BR: 900 s.f.
exceeds standards for multi-family units in the Zoning Code. Three bedrooms are
3-BR: 1,100 s.f.
not recommended.
*Based on setback requirements for office buildings. Other uses permitted in the B-4 District generally have lesser standards and requirements.
** Based on standards included in applicant’s March 4, 2015 submission.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 10

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution authorizing the acceptance
of funding from the NY Rising Community Reconstruction
Program and providing authorization for the Mayor and
City Council to enter into the necessary agreement and
resolutions.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council authorize the acceptance of funding from the NY
Rising Community Reconstruction Program and approve the necessary agreement and
resolutions.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The New York Rising Community Reconstruction Program was established to
provide additional rebuilding and revitalization assistance to Communities severely damaged by
Hurricanes Sandy and Irene and Tropical Storm Lee. The City of Rye was awarded $3 million in
funding through the NY Rising program. The New York Rising Committee met from July through
November 2014 to deliberate the needs of the community and choose projects which would
provide the greatest benefit. In addition to Committee meetings, three Public Engagement
meetings were held to get input from residents at Rye Town Park, at the Rye Free Reading
Room, and at the Middle School/High School. The NY Rising Committee met on November 18th
to vote on the projects to move forward for funding through the current $3 million dollar
allocation. The Committee was asked to vote for projects by placing them in one of three
categories, aiming for a combined cost of $5 to $10 million.
Projects were separated into three categories:
Proposed – eligible for the $3Million NY Rising Funds
Featured – other funding sources needed
Additional Resilience – policies or programs not funding based

The Committee picked 4 projects as Proposed Projects, 6 projects as Featured Projects, and 7
projects as Resilience Projects (which are not eligible for funding but the Committee notes as
being important in long term planning for flood remediation).
PROPOSED PROJECTS
Sluice Gate revisions
SUNY Ponds
Bowman Upper
Milton Road Drainage
FEATURED PROJECTS
Airport retention
Bowman Lower
Rye Nature Center entrance
Locust Fire House
Emergency Center (RGC)
Floodproof Municipal/Not for profit Buildings
RESILIENCE
Watershed Conservancy
Interstate Runoff Study
Renewable Energy
Wetlands on Brooks Study
Stabilize Power Lines Study
FEMA CRS (rating system)
Coastal Zone Study
The first project moving forward is the Sluice Gate revisions with the SUNY Ponds project
running parallel. Members of the Governor’s office have been meeting with City staff; next steps
will include sending out an RFP to engineering firms for the project including a Scope of Work,
Project Description, etc. The NY Rising program is under the CDBG-DR (Community
Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery) and is funded through HUD monies.
HUD requirements include City Council approval of a Resolution authorizing the acceptance of
funding through the NY Rising Community Reconstruction Program and providing authorization
for the Mayor and City Council to Manager to enter into the following agreement and
resolutions:
● NY Rising Community Reconstruction Program Subrecipient Agreement
● Resolution to adopt a Procurement Policy
● Resolution to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan
● Resolution to adopt an Affirmative Action Plan
● Resolution to adopt Section 504 Policies and Grievance Procedures
See attached Subrecipient Agreement and Resolutions.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
DISASTER RECOVERY
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT

THIS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made effective as of the __ day of
________, 2015 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Housing Trust Fund Corporation,
operating by and through its division, the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery
(“GOSR”), (collectively referred to herein as the “Grantee”) and the City of Rye
(“Subrecipient”), a municipal corporation. The foregoing Grantee and Subrecipient shall
sometimes be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties.”
WHEREAS, pursuant to title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974
(42 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq.) (“HCD Act”), as amended, Grantee is authorized to administer
and distribute Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) funds in the State of
New York (“State”); and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5121 et seq.), portions of the State received major disaster
declarations as a result of Hurricane Sandy; and
WHEREAS, in the aftermath of Hurricane Sandy, the United States Congress, through
Public Law passed the Disaster Relief Appropriations Act, 2013 (Public Law 113-2,
approved January 29, 2013), as amended (the “Act”), appropriating $16 billion, later
reduced to $15.18 billion, to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”) for Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”)
funds for necessary expenses related to disaster relief, long-term recovery, restoration of
infrastructure, and housing and economic revitalization in the most impacted and
distressed areas resulting from a major disaster declared due to Hurricane Sandy and
other eligible events in calendar years 2011, 2012, and 2013 (the “Storms”), subject to
the Federal statutes and regulations governing CDBG grants, as modified by exceptions
and waivers previously granted and which may hereafter be granted by HUD; and,
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (78
Fed. Reg. 14,329), published March 5, 2013, entitled Allocations, Common Applications,
and Alternative Requirements for Grantees Receiving Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery Funds in Response to Hurricane Sandy (as amended),
the State has received an allocation of CDBG-DR funds from HUD in the amount of
$1,713,960,000; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (78
Fed. Reg. 69,104), entitled Second Allocation, Waivers and Alternative Requirements for
Grantees Receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery
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Funds in Response to Hurricane Sandy (as amended), the State has received a second
allocation of CDBG-DR funds from HUD in the amount of $2,097,000,000; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (79
Fed. Reg. 62,182), entitled Third Allocation, Waivers and Alternative Requirements for
Grantees Receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery
Funds in Response to Hurricane Sandy (as amended), the State has received a third
allocation of CDBG-DR funds from HUD in the amount of $605,922,000 (of which
$185,000,000 has been allocated towards the proposals developed through the Rebuild by
Design competition);
WHEREAS, HUD requires that the State spend 80% of all CDBG-DR funds so allocated
within the counties of Nassau, Rockland, Suffolk, Westchester, Bronx, Kings, New
York, Queens, and Richmond; and
WHEREAS, Governor Andrew M. Cuomo established GOSR within HTFC and tasked it
with administering the State’s CDBG-DR program; and
WHEREAS, the City of Rye was heavily impacted by Superstorm Sandy and Hurricane
Irene; and
WHEREAS, Grantee wishes to engage Subrecipient to implement projects to promote the
long-term recovery and resiliency of the City of Rye; and
WHEREAS, CDBG-DR funds may be utilized by the Subrecipient to pay the nonFederal share, or “local match”, required in connection with a Federal grant-in-aid
program undertaken as part of CDBG-DR activities, a use that has been specifically
authorized by HUD;
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree that the Grant Funds will be administered in
accordance with the following terms and conditions:
I. SUBRECIPIENT PROGRAM
Subrecipient will be responsible for performing the activities detailed in Exhibit A, which
may be amended from time to time, and is hereby incorporated by reference
(“Subrecipient Program Description”). In order to propose a project or projects under the
Subrecipient Program Description, the Subrecipient shall submit to Grantee the project
application form provided by Grantee. A separate project application form will be
required for each project the Subrecipient proposes to implement under this Agreement.
Project applications should address the Subrecipient’s housing, infrastructure, and
economic recovery and revitalization needs.
Grantee’s consideration and approval of project applications is based on current Grantee
guidelines (hereinafter “Grantee policy”), HUD guidelines and regulations, and other
applicable state and federal laws and regulations.
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Design and Environmental Review Phase (Planning Amendment)








Once a project application form is accepted as complete by Grantee, Grantee will
notify the Subrecipient in writing. Acceptance of the application as complete does
not commit Grantee to providing any CDBG-DR or other funding to a project.
Thereafter, this Agreement may be amended to incorporate the proposed scope,
budget, and schedule for the design phase of the proposed project, if stipulated by
both parties (hereinafter referred to as the “Planning Amendment”).
Any proposed budget set forth in a Planning Amendment will clearly specify
proposed funding for administrative costs, program delivery costs, and design or
planning costs. Any such amendment will clearly state that the Subrecipient shall
not engage in, or in any way commit funding for, through a contract or other
mechanism, construction or any other activities that could have an environmental
impact or limit the choice of reasonable alternatives to the proposed project.
Further, any proposed schedule set forth in a Planning Amendment shall provide,
with reasonable specificity, a proposed schedule for the pre-design and design of
the proposed project as well as a description and schedule for activities proposed
to be conducted in each phase.
Following acceptance of the Planning Amendment, Grantee shall conduct an
environmental review of the proposed project pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58 and the
New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”).
Upon written notice from Grantee, the Subrecipient may initiate project design
which shall be closely coordinated with and informed by the environmental
review process, including the assessment of any reasonable alternatives to the
proposed project, and avoidance of any potential significant environmental
impact. Subrecipient herein agrees that, for purposes of SEQRA, Grantee shall
serve as the lead agency for purposes of conducting the environmental review.

Project Approval




Upon completion of all environmental review requirements, Grantee shall
determine whether or not to award funding for the construction or other
implementation phase of the proposed project, or an alternative or modified
project identified through the environmental review process.
Following the environmental review performed pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58 and
SEQRA, and upon HUD’s issuance of the authority to use grant funds for a
proposed project, Grantee may approve the project.

Project Phase (Project Amendment)



Upon approval of a project, this Agreement may be amended to incorporate the
complete scope, budget, and schedule of the approved project, if stipulated by
both parties (hereinafter referred to as the “Project Amendment”).
Any budget set forward in a Project Amendment will clearly specify funding for
administrative costs, program delivery costs, design or planning costs,
construction costs, as well as any other implementation costs. Further, any
3





schedule set forth in a Project Amendment shall provide, with reasonable
specificity, a schedule for the pre-design, design, and construction or other
implementation of the approved project as well as a description and schedule for
activities proposed to be conducted in each phase.
Grantee will notify the Subrecipient in writing (“Clearance Letter”) that
Subrecipient may commit funds for construction and other activities necessary for
project implementation. The Subrecipient shall not engage in, or in any way
commit funding for, through a contract or other mechanism, construction or any
other activities that could have an environmental impact or limit the choice of
reasonable alternatives to the proposed project prior to receiving, in writing, a
Clearance Letter from Grantee.
If construction/implementation is authorized by Grantee in the Clearance Letter,
Subrecipient must comply with any and all conditions or required mitigation set
forth in the environmental review documents, and shall retain an independent
environmental monitor to document compliance with such measures, as well as
any permit requirements, or other applicable requirements of federal and state
environmental laws, including worker health and safety requirements. The
independent environmental monitor must be approved in writing by Grantee prior
to the commencement of any construction activities. The Subrecipient shall, by
contract, ensure that the independent environmental monitor provides monthly
reports to Grantee to document compliance with the requirements referenced
above for the entirety of the construction phase.

The Subrecipient may not commence any work, including design work, without adhering
to the proposed project schedule set forth in the Planning Amendment as submitted to and
approved by Grantee and the Subrecipient. Additionally, the Subrecipient and its design
contractor shall provide any analysis or information reasonably requested by Grantee to
conduct the environmental review for a proposed project. The Subrecipient is required to
comply and cooperate with the Grantee in meeting all terms and conditions under this
Agreement.
As a reimbursement-based program,1 tasks and deliverables contained in the Subrecipient
Program Description must be conducted in a manner satisfactory to Grantee and in
compliance with applicable federal and state requirements, laws, and regulations. Grantee
will monitor the performance of Subrecipient against goals and performance standards as
stated in the agreed upon Subrecipient Program Description. While Grantee may consider
additional costs, as they arise, Subrecipient must be prepared to perform (and document
to Grantee) the entire Subrecipient Program Description, even if the funds provided
hereunder do not cover 100% of the costs of performance. In the event Grantee’s funds
do not cover 100% of the agreed upon budget (see Section III), Subrecipient must make a
showing of committed supplemental funding. Substandard performance as reasonably
1

By “reimbursement” Grantee means that typically costs must be actually incurred before the Grantee will
make payment to the Subrecipient. However, this does not mean that the Subrecipient must have
previously paid these costs. Rather, these costs can be passed along to Grantee in the form of an invoice(s)
(or similar document) and appropriate supporting information as required by the terms of this Agreement,
for payment of such invoice(s), per the payment terms of this Agreement.
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determined by Grantee, in its sole discretion, will constitute noncompliance with this
Agreement. If Subrecipient does not take action to correct such substandard performance
within a reasonable period of time (as determined by Grantee) after being notified by
Grantee, Grantee may choose not to reimburse Subrecipient for noncompliant and/or
unallowable work and/or take action to suspend or terminate this Agreement or other
actions as permitted under applicable law. Nothing in this Agreement shall waive or
otherwise limit the actions Grantee may take or the remedies Grantee may seek as a result
of any noncompliance by Subrecipient, including but not limited to suspending or
debarring Subrecipient from future State benefits.

II. TERM
The period of performance for all activities (with the exception of those activities
required for the close out and final audit) assisted pursuant to this Agreement shall
commence as of the Effective Date and shall end on September 30, 2019. Any funds not
properly used by the end of the term, unless approved otherwise in writing by Grantee,
promptly shall be remitted, in full and without off-set or deduction, to Grantee.

III. BUDGET
As set forth in Section I of this Agreement, for each project application, Grantee will
require and the Parties shall agree upon a detailed budget breakdown. Grantee may also
require additional budget information, and Subrecipient shall provide such supplementary
budget information in a timely fashion in the form and content prescribed by Grantee.
Any change to budgeted amounts, must be approved in writing by Grantee before such
changes are allowed and reimbursable.

IV. GRANT FUNDS
It is expressly agreed and understood that the total amount to be paid by Grantee under
this Agreement shall not exceed the aggregate amounts set forth in each of the applicable
project applications, currently set at $0 (“Grant Funds”), which may be amended from
time-to-time to incorporate project applications and budgets accepted by Grantee.
The amount of Grant Funds that Grantee has agreed to provide Subrecipient under this
Agreement is expressly conditioned upon Grantee’s receipt of such funds from HUD
pursuant to the Act. Grantee reserves the right to reduce the Grant Funds if funding from
HUD is not provided at the currently anticipated levels and/or if the actual costs for the
approved activities are less than those set forth in the Budget.
In the event Subrecipient is awarded, granted, or provided with additional funds from any
other source, which may include, in part or whole, aspects related to this Agreement,
Subrecipient shall immediately notify Grantee of such funds, the amount, the source, and
the conditions for their use. Subrecipient further agrees to provide any additional
5

information Grantee requests related to such funds. Subrecipient may not use such other
funds to conduct construction activities or any other action that would have an
environmental impact or limit the choice of reasonable alternatives until issuance of the
Clearance Letter.

V. DISBURSEMENT OF GRANT FUNDS
a) Subrecipient is required to submit a request for Grant Funds in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement, program guidelines, and the program policy and
procedures which are established by Grantee. No payment by Grantee of an
improper, unauthorized, or unallowable request shall constitute a waiver of
Grantee’s right, whether before, during, or after making any payment, to: (i)
challenge the validity of such payment; (ii) enforce all rights and remedies set
forth in this Agreement or provided under applicable law; (iii) require and receive
a full repayment or refund of all payments made under this Agreement or (iv) take
corrective or remedial administrative action including, without limitation,
suspension or termination of Subrecipient’s funding under this Agreement.
b) Subrecipient shall certify in a statement made by a senior official with each
request for Grant Funds that to the best of its knowledge based on the information
available to Subrecipient at the time and after making due inquiry: (i) all
statements and representations previously made regarding this Agreement are
correct and complete; and (ii) the funds do not duplicate reimbursement of costs
and services from any other source.
c) The use of Grant Funds is conditioned upon Subrecipient incurring allowable
costs permitted under the terms of this Agreement or as otherwise pre-approved,
in writing, by Grantee. Subrecipient shall not be reimbursed for any costs until all
environmental conditions of 24 CFR Part 58 have been fully satisfied and Grantee
has issued the environmental clearance required thereunder, unless the activity is
exempt under section 58.34 or falls under a categorical exclusion listed in section
58.35(b).
d) In the event applicable State or Federal Government authorities disallow any of
the costs incurred by Subrecipient, Subrecipient shall immediately remit any
funds received by Subrecipient for the unallowable costs to Grantee. Subrecipient
may request, and Grantee shall reasonably consider Subrecipient’s request, that
Grantee challenge the State or Federal determination and pursue other legal
recourse to secure these funds; however, Grantee maintains the sole discretion in
deciding whether to pursue such funds, may request that Subrecipient pay any
costs associated with such effort, and may require that Subrecipient return the
questioned funds until a final outcome is reached.
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VI. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS
To ensure compliance with Section 508 of the HCD Act, units of general local
government (“UGLGs”) applying for or receiving CDBG-DR funds from the State must
provide citizens with adequate opportunity to participate in the planning, implementation,
and assessment of the CDBG program. Any such UGLG must provide adequate
information to citizens, obtain views and proposals of citizens, and provide opportunity to
comment on the UGLG’s previous community development performance.
If Subrecipient is a UGLG, it shall have a written and adopted Citizen Participation Plan
that complies with the requirements set forth in the State of New York Action Plan for
Community Development Block Grant Program Disaster Recovery, dated April 2013, as
amended (“Action Plan”). The Action Plan and amendments thereto can be found at:
http://stormrecovery.ny.gov/action-plans-and-amendments.

VII. NOTICES
All notices, requests, approvals, and consents of any kind made pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be effective as of the date sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested. All notices and other written communications
under this Agreement shall be addressed to the individuals in the capacities indicated
below, unless otherwise modified by subsequent written notice. Communication and
details concerning this contract shall be directed to the following contract representatives:
Grantee:

Housing Trust Fund Corporation
25 Beaver Street
New York, New York 10004
Attn: James Rubin, State Director of Storm Recovery

Subrecipient: City of Rye
1051 Boston Post Road
Rye, NY 10580
Attn: Eleanor Millitana, Assistant City Manager

VIII.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

A. Compliance
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of Title 24 of the Code of
Federal Regulations, Part 570 (HUD’s regulations concerning Community
Development Block Grants), including any regulations referenced therein, except:
(1)

Subrecipient does not assume Grantee’s environmental responsibilities
described in 24 CFR 570.604; and
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(2)

Subrecipient does not assume Grantee’s responsibility for initiating the
review process under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 52.

Where waivers or alternative requirements are provided for in the applicable Federal
Register Notices published by HUD (“HUD Notices”), including but not limited to
those published on March 5, 2013 (78 Fed. Reg. 14,329), April 19, 2013 (78 Fed.
Reg. 23,578), May 29, 2013 (78 Fed. Reg. 32,262), August 2, 2013 (78 Fed. Reg.
46,999), November 18, 2013 (78 Fed. Reg. 69,104), December 16, 2013 (78 Fed.
Reg. 76,154), and March 27, 2014 (79 Fed. Reg. 17,173), such requirements,
including any regulations referenced therein, shall apply.
Subrecipient also agrees to comply with all other applicable Federal, State and local
laws, regulations, HUD Notices, policies, and guidelines, whether existing or to be
established, provided the same are applied to activities occurring after the date the
policy or guideline was established, governing the Grant Funds provided under this
Agreement. In the event a conflict arises between the provisions of this Agreement
and any of the foregoing, the Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, HUD
Notices, policies, and guidelines shall control and this Agreement shall be interpreted
in a manner so as to allow for the terms contained herein to remain valid and
consistent with such Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, HUD Notices,
policies, and guidelines. Subrecipient further agrees to utilize Grant Funds available
under this Agreement to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available.
B. Independent Contractor
Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed in any
manner, as creating or establishing the relationship of employer/employee between
the Parties. Subrecipient shall at all times remain an “independent contractor” with
respect to the efforts to be performed under this Agreement. Grantee shall be exempt
from payment of all Unemployment Compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or
medical insurance and Workers’ Compensation Insurance, as Subrecipient is an
independent entity.
C. Hold Harmless
Subrecipient shall and hereby agrees to hold harmless, defend (with counsel
acceptable to Grantee) and indemnify Grantee and each and all of its successors,
affiliates, or assigns, and any of any of their employees, officers, directors, attorneys,
consultants, agents, directors, officers, managers, and affiliates, from and against any
and all damages, costs, attorneys’ fees, claims, expenses, injuries, property damage,
causes of action, violations of law, violations of this Agreement, and losses of any
form or nature arising from or related to the conduct of Subrecipient in the
performance of the efforts called for in this Agreement. This indemnity shall
expressly include, but is not limited to, the obligation of Subrecipient to indemnify
and reimburse Grantee for any and all attorneys’ fees and other litigation or dispute
resolution costs incurred or to be incurred in Grantee’s enforcement of this
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Agreement or any portion thereof against Subrecipient or otherwise arising in
connection with Subrecipient’s breach, violation, or other non-compliance with this
Agreement. This clause shall survive indefinitely the termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
D. Workers’ Compensation
Subrecipient shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of its
employees involved in the performance of this Agreement unless granted an
exemption by the State.
E. Insurance & Bonding
Subrecipient shall carry sufficient insurance coverage and bonding from insurers
licensed to conduct business in New York State to protect all contract assets from loss
due to any cause, including but not limited to, theft, fraud, and/or physical damage,
and as a minimum shall purchase a blanket fidelity bond covering all employees in an
amount equal to cash advances from Grantee. Grantee and the State of New York
shall be named as an additional insured on all such insurance and shall meet all other
insurance requirements as Grantee may impose from time to time. In addition, all
insurance carriers and bonding companies shall meet minimum size and financial
stability/financial rating requirements as may be imposed by Grantee from time to
time. Certificates of insurance shall be provided to Grantee and full and complete
copies of the policies and/or bonds shall be provided to Grantee upon its request for
the same.
Notwithstanding the above, for construction or facility improvement performed by
Subrecipient, Subrecipient shall, at a minimum, comply with the bonding
requirements at 24 CFR 85.36 or 84.48, as applicable.
F. Grantee Recognition
Unless otherwise directed by Grantee, Subrecipient shall ensure recognition of the
role of HUD and Grantee in providing funding, services, and efforts through this
Agreement. Unless otherwise directed by Grantee, all activities, facilities, and items
utilized pursuant to this Agreement shall be prominently labeled as to role of HUD
and of Grantee. In addition, Subrecipient will include a reference to the support
provided herein in all publications made possible with funds made available under
this Agreement. See Exhibit D for general guidance for recognition of HUD and
Grantee. Note, notwithstanding the terms of this subsection or Exhibit D, Grantee
reserves the right to direct specific reasonable recognition requirements on a case-bycase basis, including by not limited, to the size and content, waiver, removal or
addition of such recognition.
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G. Amendments
This Agreement may be amended provided that such amendments make specific
reference to this Agreement, comply with programmatic policies, procedures, and
guidelines, are executed in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of
each Party, and approved by Grantee’s governing body. Such amendments shall not
invalidate this Agreement, nor relieve or release the Parties from their obligations
under this Agreement. Grantee may, in its sole discretion, amend this Agreement to
conform with Federal, state, or local governmental guidelines, policies, and available
funding amounts, or for other reasons. If such amendments result in a change in the
Grant Funds or the Subrecipient Program Description, such modifications will be
incorporated in a written amendment signed by the Parties.
H. Suspension or Termination
Grantee may suspend or terminate this Agreement if Subrecipient materially fails to
comply with any terms of this Agreement, which include (but are not limited to) the
following:
1. Failure to comply with any of the rules, regulations or provisions referred to
herein, or such statutes, regulations, executive orders, guidelines, policies or
directives as may become applicable at any time, including but not limited to
environmental rules and regulations;
2. Failure, for any reason except those beyond Subrecipient’s control, of
Subrecipient to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this
Agreement;
3. Ineffective or improper use of funds provided under this Agreement; or
4. Submission by Subrecipient to Grantee of reports that are untimely, incorrect,
or incomplete in any material respect.
This Agreement may also be terminated for convenience by Grantee or Subrecipient,
in whole or in part, by setting forth the reasons for such termination, the effective
date, and, in the case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated. However, if
in the case of a partial termination Grantee determines that the remaining portion of
the award will not accomplish the purpose for which the award was made, Grantee
may terminate the award in its entirety.
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IX. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
A. Financial Management
1. Accounting Standards
Subrecipient agrees to comply with 24 CFR 85.20-26 or 84.20-28, as applicable,
and to adhere to the accounting principles and procedures required therein, utilize
adequate internal controls, and maintain necessary source documentation for all
costs incurred.
2. Cost Principles
Subrecipient shall administer the program in conformance with OMB Circulars
A-87, “Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments”; A-122,
“Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations”; or A-21, “Cost Principles for
Educational Institutions,” as applicable. These principles shall be applied for all
costs incurred whether charged on a direct or indirect basis (if allowed).
B. Documentation and Record Keeping
1. Records to Be Maintained
Subrecipient shall maintain all records required by applicable law to be
maintained, including but not limited to the Federal regulations specified in (1) 24
CFR Part 85, Subpart C or 24 CFR Part 84, Subpart C, as applicable; (2) 24 CFR
570.506; and (3) the applicable HUD Notices that are pertinent to the activities to
be funded under this Agreement, as well as any additional records required by
Grantee. Such records shall include but not be limited to:
a. Records providing a full description of each activity undertaken;
b. Records demonstrating that each activity undertaken meets one of the
National Objectives of the CDBG program, as modified by the HUD
Notices;
c. Records required to determine the eligibility of activities;
d. Records required to document the acquisition, improvement, use, or
disposition of real property acquired or improved with CDBG-DR funds;
e. Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and equal
opportunity components of the CDBG program;
f. Financial records as required by (1) 24 CFR 570.502; and (2) 24 CFR
85.20-26 or 84.20-28, as applicable;
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g. Other records necessary to document compliance with Subpart K of 24
CFR Part 570.
2. Retention
Subrecipient shall retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and all other records pertinent to the Agreement for a period of five (5)
years. The retention period begins on the date of the submission of Grantee’s
annual performance and evaluation report to HUD in which the activities assisted
under the Agreement are reported on for the final time. Notwithstanding the
above, if there is litigation, claims, audits, negotiations, or other actions that
involve any of the records cited and that have started before the expiration of the
five-year period, then all such records must be retained until completion of the
actions and resolution of all issues, or the expiration of the five-year period,
whichever occurs later.
3. Data
Subrecipient shall maintain data for efforts provided as required by Grantee. Such
data may include, but is not limited to, name, racial, ethnic, and gender
characteristics, address, income level or other basis for determining eligibility,
and description of service provided. Such information shall be made available to
applicable federal authorities, Grantee monitors, or their designees for review
upon request.
4. Disclosure
Subrecipient understands that data collected under this Agreement is private and
the use or disclosure of such information, when not directly connected with the
administration of the Parties’ responsibilities with respect to efforts provided
under this Agreement are subject to the provisions of Article 6-A, “Personal
Privacy Protection Law”, of the New York State Public Officers Law, as well as
all other applicable State and Federal privacy laws (e.g., the Federal Privacy Act,
5 U.S.C. § 552a).
5. Close-out
Subrecipient’s obligation to Grantee shall not end until all close-out requirements
are completed. Close-out activities and requirements are subject to (1) 24 CFR
85.50 or 84.71, as applicable; (2) 24 CFR 570.509; and (3) applicable HUD
Notices. Activities during this close-out period shall include, but are not limited
to: making final payments, disposing of assets (including the return of all unused
materials, equipment, properly addressing Program Income (as that term is
defined in section VI(A)(17)(a) of the HUD Notice 78 Fed. Reg. 14,329, 14,341
(March 5, 2013, as may be amended by HUD)), balances, and accounts receivable
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to Grantee), and determining the custodianship of records. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the terms of this Agreement shall remain in effect during any period
that Subrecipient has control over CDBG-DR funds, including Program Income.
6. Audits & Inspections
All Subrecipient records with respect to any matters covered by this Agreement
shall be made available to Grantee, HUD, and the Comptroller General of the
United States, or any of their authorized representatives, at any time during
normal business hours, as often as deemed necessary, to audit, examine, and make
excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any deficiencies noted in audit reports
must be fully cleared by Subrecipient within 30 days after receipt by Subrecipient.
Failure of Subrecipient to comply with the above audit requirements will
constitute a violation of this Agreement and may result in the withholding of
future payments and/or termination. Subrecipient hereby agrees to have an annual
agency audit conducted in accordance with current Grantee policy concerning
Subrecipient audits and OMB Circular A-133.
C. Reporting and Payment Procedures
1. Program Income and Other Assets
Subrecipient shall report monthly all Program Income, as defined in section
VI(A)(17)(a) of the HUD Notice 78 Fed. Reg. 14,329, 14,341 (March 5, 2013, as
may be amended by HUD), generated by activities carried out with CDBG-DR
funds made available under this Agreement. All Program Income shall be
returned to Grantee, absent written authorization from Grantee to the contrary, in
accordance with any procedures established by HUD and Grantee. Any interest
earned on cash advances from the U.S. Treasury and from funds held in a
revolving fund account is not Program Income and shall be remitted promptly to
Grantee.
All Program assets, other than Program Income (property, equipment, etc.) shall
revert to Grantee upon termination of this Agreement in accordance with
applicable Federal, laws, regulations, HUD Notices, policies, and guidelines.
2. Indirect Costs
Indirect costs will not be compensated for under this Agreement.
3. Progress Reports
In addition to deliverables and metrics specifically referenced in Exhibit A,
Subrecipient shall submit regular Progress Reports to Grantee in the form,
content, and frequency as required by Grantee. At a minimum, Progress Reports
shall be submitted no less frequently than as required by (1) 24 CFR Part 85,
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Subpart C or 24 CFR Part 84, Subpart C, as applicable; (2) 24 CFR 570.507; and
(3) the applicable HUD Notices.
4. Payment Procedures
In accordance with the terms in Section IV above, Grantee will pay to
Subrecipient funds available under this Agreement based upon information
submitted by Subrecipient, consistent with the Subrecipient Program Description,
the Budget, Grantee policy concerning payments, and applicable federal and state
law and regulation. In addition, Grantee reserves the right to liquidate funds
available under this Agreement for costs incurred by Grantee on behalf of
Subrecipient.
5. GOSR Reporting Obligations
The following chart summarizes some of the Subrecipient reporting obligations to
GOSR. This chart is not intended to catalogue all of Subrecipient’s reporting
obligations under this Agreement. Note, some of the below reports require the
submission of information related to contractors and subsequent subcontractors,
which Subrecipient is responsible for collecting and providing to GOSR as
required by the cited provision.
Report
Program Income Report
Progress Report
M/WBE Report
EEO Report
Section 3 Report

Provision Citation
IX.C.1.
IX.C.3.
XI.B.2.b.
XI.B.3.c.
XI.C.3.d.

Frequency
Monthly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

D. Sub-granting
1. Approvals
Subrecipient shall not enter into any agreements with any agency or individual to
assist in effectuating the activities of this Agreement without the written consent
of Grantee prior to the execution of such agreement.
2. Monitoring
In accordance with Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, HUD Notices,
program guidelines, and the policies and procedures to be issued by Grantee,
Subrecipient will monitor any and all sub-subrecipient2 efforts on a regular basis
to assure compliance. Results of monitoring efforts shall be summarized in
2

As used herein, a “sub-subrecipient” refers to all subrecipients that are lower-tiered than the Subrecipient
that is a signatory to this Agreement.
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written reports and supported with documented evidence of follow-up actions
taken to correct areas of noncompliance. Information detailing credible evidence
of waste, fraud or abuse, shall be immediately reported to Grantee, followed by a
written report within ten (10) calendar days.
3. Content
Subrecipient shall cause all of the provisions of this Agreement in its entirety to
be included in and made a part of any sub-subrecipient agreement executed to
effectuate this Agreement.
4. Selection Process
Subrecipient shall undertake to ensure that all sub-subrecipients utilized to
effectuate this Agreement shall be awarded on a fair and reasonable basis in
accordance with applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and HUD
Notices, including the HUD Reform Act codified at 42 U.S.C. § 3537a (referred
to as Section 103). Executed copies of all sub-subrecipient agreements shall be
forwarded to Grantee along with documentation concerning the selection process.
E. Procurement/Contracting
1. General
Subrecipient shall not enter into any contract for goods or services with any entity
without the written consent of Grantee prior to the execution of such contract.
Unless specified otherwise within this Agreement, Subrecipient shall procure all
materials, property, equipment, or services in accordance with the requirements of
24 CFR 85.36 or 84.40-48, as applicable, including but not limited to the need to
appropriately assess the lease versus purchase alternatives. Only when Grantee’s
procurement policies are more stringent than those found at 24 CFR 85.36 or
84.40-48, as applicable, will Subrecipient be required to comply with current
Grantee policy concerning the acquisition of materials, property, equipment, or
services.
2. Supplementary Conditions
Subrecipient shall include Grantee’s Supplementary Conditions, attached hereto
as Exhibit E, in any contract entered into under this Agreement. Subrecipient
shall also require all contractors to flowdown the Grantee’s Supplementary
Conditions to all subcontractors as well as the requirement to flowdown such
terms to all lower-tiered subcontractors. These Supplementary Conditions include
required terms for project contracts, HUD General Provisions, Participation by
Minority Group Members and Women Requirements and Procedures for
Contracts with Housing Trust Fund Corporation, Standard Clauses for Contracts
with the Grantee and required diversity forms.
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3. Records
Subrecipient shall maintain all records required by the Federal regulations
specified in (1) 24 CFR Part 85, Subpart C or 24 CFR Part 84, Subpart C, as
applicable; (2) 24 CFR 570.506; and (3) the applicable HUD Notices. Only when
Grantee’s procurement record retention standards are more stringent than Federal
regulation shall Subrecipient maintain inventory records of all non-expendable
personal property as defined by such policy as may be procured with funds
provided herein.
4. Travel
Travel costs are not allowed unless authorized by Grantee. In the event that
Grantee authorizes travel, Subrecipient shall comply with HUD’s Travel
Regulations (Travel Handbook 2300.2). Subrecipient shall obtain prior written
approval from Grantee for any travel to out of service area assignments.
F. Use and Reversion of Assets
The use and disposition of real property and equipment under this Agreement shall be
in compliance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 85 or Part 84, as applicable, and
24 CFR Part 570 Subpart J, which include but are not limited to the following:
1. Subrecipient shall transfer to Grantee any CDBG-DR funds on hand and any
accounts receivable attributable to the use of funds under this Agreement at the
time of expiration, cancellation, or termination.
2. Real property under Subrecipient’s control that was acquired or improved, in
whole or in part, with funds under this Agreement in excess of $25,000 shall be
used to meet one of the CDBG National Objectives pursuant to 24 CFR 570.208
until five (5) years after expiration of this Agreement or such longer period of
time as Grantee deems appropriate. If Subrecipient fails to use CDBG-assisted
real property in a manner that meets a CDBG National Objective for the
prescribed period of time, Subrecipient shall pay Grantee an amount equal to the
current fair market value of the property less any portion of the value attributable
to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for acquisition of, or improvement to, the
property.
Such payment shall constitute Program Income to Grantee.
Subrecipient may retain real property acquired or improved under this Agreement
after the expiration of the five-year period or such longer period of time as
Grantee deems appropriate.
3. In all cases in which equipment acquired, in whole or in part, with funds under
this Agreement is sold, the proceeds shall be Program Income (prorated to reflect
the extent to that funds received under this Agreement were used to acquire the
equipment). Equipment not needed by Subrecipient for activities under this
Agreement shall be (a) transferred to Grantee; or (b) retained after compensating
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Grantee an amount equal to the current fair market value of the equipment less the
percentage of non-CDBG-DR funds used to acquire the equipment.
G. Use of Grant Funds to Make Loans
Grant Funds under this Agreement cannot be used to make loans.
X. RELOCATION, REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION, AND ONE-FOR-ONE
HOUSING REPLACEMENT

To the extent applicable to its performance under this Agreement, and as modified by the
HUD Notices, Subrecipient agrees to comply with (a) the Uniform Relocation Assistance
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA), and
implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 and 24 CFR 570.606(b); (b) the
requirements of 24 CFR 570.606(c) governing the Residential Anti-displacement and
Relocation Assistance Plan under section 104(d) of the HCD Act; and (c) the
requirements in 24 CFR 570.606(d) governing optional relocation policies. Subrecipient
shall provide relocation assistance to displaced persons as defined by 24 CFR
570.606(b)(2) that are displaced as a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, demolition
or conversion for a CDBG-DR assisted project. Subrecipient also agrees to comply with
applicable Grantee ordinances, resolutions, and policies concerning the displacement of
persons from their residences.

XI. PERSONNEL AND PARTICIPANT CONDITIONS
A. Civil Rights
1. Compliance
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the New York State Human Rights Law and
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 as amended, Section 104(b) and Section 109 of Title I of the
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended, Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 11063, and Executive Order
11246 as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12107, and 12086.
2. Nondiscrimination
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the non-discrimination in employment and
contracting opportunities laws, regulations, and executive orders referenced in 24
CFR 570.607, as revised by Executive Order 13279. The applicable nondiscrimination provisions in Section 109 of the HCD Act are still applicable.
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3. Land Covenants
This Agreement is subject to the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and 24 CFR 570.601 and 570.602. In regard to the sale,
lease, or other transfer of land acquired, cleared or improved with assistance
provided under this Agreement, Subrecipient shall cause or require a covenant
running with the land to be inserted in the deed or lease for such transfer,
prohibiting discrimination as herein defined, in the sale, lease or rental, or in the
use or occupancy of such land, or in any improvements erected or to be erected
thereon, providing that Grantee and the United States are beneficiaries of, and
entitled to enforce, such covenants. To the extent any such sale, lease or other
transfer of land shall occur, Subrecipient, in undertaking its obligation to carry out
the Program assisted hereunder, agrees to take such measures as are necessary to
enforce such covenant, and will not itself so discriminate.
4. Section 504
Subrecipient agrees to comply with all Federal regulations issued pursuant to
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), which prohibits
discrimination against individuals with disabilities or handicaps in any Federally
assisted program. Grantee shall provide Subrecipient with certain guidelines for
compliance with that portion of the regulations in force during the term of this
Agreement.
B. Affirmative Action
1. Approved Plan
Subrecipient agrees that it shall be committed to carry out, pursuant to Grantee’s
specifications, an Affirmative Action Program in keeping with the principles as
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965. Grantee shall provide
certain Affirmative Action guidelines to Subrecipient to assist in the formulation
of such program. Subrecipient shall submit a plan for an Affirmative Action
Program for approval prior to the award of funds.
2. Minority- and Women-Owned Businesses (M/WBE)
a. Federal Requirements
Subrecipient shall comply with the small and minority firms, women’s
business enterprise, and labor surplus area requirements as set forth at 24
CFR 85.36 or 84.44, as applicable.
Subrecipient will use its best efforts to afford small businesses, minority
business enterprises, and women’s business enterprises the maximum
practicable opportunity to participate in the performance of this Agreement.
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As used in this Agreement, the terms “small business” means a business that
meets the criteria set forth in section 3(a) of the Small Business Act, as
amended (15 U.S.C. 632), and “minority and women’s business enterprise”
means a business at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by
minority group members or women. For the purpose of this definition,
“minority group members” are African-Americans, Spanish-speaking, Spanish
surnamed, or Spanish-heritage Americans, Asian-Americans, and American
Indians. Subrecipient may rely on written representations by businesses
regarding their status as minority and female business enterprises in lieu of an
independent investigation.
b. HTFC Requirements
Pursuant to New York State Executive Law Article 15-A (“Article 15-A”),
HTFC recognizes its obligation under the law to promote opportunities for
maximum feasible participation of certified minority-and/or women-owned
business enterprises (“M/WBEs”) in the performance of HTFC-funded
contracts. HTFC values affording M/WBEs the opportunity to participate in
the performance of the contract(s) to be awarded for this project.
Accordingly, Subrecipient certifies that it has made and will continue to make
good-faith efforts to promote and assist the participation of certified M/WBEs
through the use of contractors and their subcontractors at all tiers on this
project, in an amount equal to fifteen percent (15%) minority-owned business
enterprises (“MBE”) and fifteen percent (15%) women-owned business
enterprises (“WBE”) of the total dollar value of this project. Notwithstanding
the foregoing goals, should the State of New York change such goals,
Subrecipient and its contractors and their subcontractors (at all tiers) shall
continuously make good-faith efforts to achieve the M/WBE goals in effect at
any given time during the performance of this Agreement and their contract(s)
respectively. These participation goals are applicable to this Agreement as set
forth in Exhibit E, Appendix III and will be monitored by HTFC.
Subrecipient shall require that its contractors and their subcontractors at all
tiers comply with the aforementioned M/WBE requirements as set forth in the
Participation by Minority Group Members and Women Requirements and
Procedures for Contracts with Housing Trust Fund Corporation, attached
hereto at Exhibit E, Appendix III. In accordance with those requirements,
Subrecipient shall require all covered contractors and their subcontractors at
all tiers to submit the required M/WBE documentation, including utilization
plans and quarterly reports, to Subrecipient. Subrecipient shall provide
quarterly reporting of M/WBE data in a form acceptable to HTFC, with copies
of contractor and subcontractor M/WBE documentation as supporting
documentation. Notwithstanding the provision of such reports and supporting
documentation, Subrecipient, and Subrecipient’s contractors and their
subcontractors at all tiers, shall maintain copies of all reports and supporting
documents as set forth in this Agreement.
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3. Equal Employment Opportunity (“EEO”) and Non-Discrimination
a. Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action (EEO/AA)
Statement
Subrecipient will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed
by or on behalf of Subrecipient, state that it is an Equal Opportunity or
Affirmative Action employer.
b. Non-Discrimination
Subrecipient shall comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Law, and
all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination
provisions. Subrecipient shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, creed (religion), color, sex,
national origin, sexual orientation, military status, age, disability, predisposing
genetic characteristic, marital status, or domestic violence victim status, and
shall also follow the requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to
non-discrimination on the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.
c. HTFC Requirements
Pursuant to New York State Executive Law Article 15-A (“Article 15-A”),
HTFC recognizes its obligation under the law to promote opportunities for the
employment of minority group members and women in the performance of
HTFC-funded contracts.
Subrecipient shall require that its contractors and their subcontractors at all
tiers comply with the EEO requirements found in the Participation by
Minority Group Members and Women Requirements and Procedures for
Contracts with Housing Trust Fund Corporation, attached hereto at Exhibit E,
Appendix III. In accordance with those requirements, Subrecipient shall
require all covered contractors and their subcontractors at all tiers to submit
the required documentation, including an EEO policy statement, staffing plan,
and quarterly reports to Subrecipient. Subrecipient shall provide quarterly
reporting of EEO data in a form acceptable to HTFC, with copies of
contractor and subcontractor EEO documentation as supporting
documentation. Notwithstanding the provision of such reports and supporting
documentation, Subrecipient, and Subrecipient’s contractors and their
subcontractors at all tiers, shall maintain copies of all reports and supporting
documents as set forth in this Agreement.
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4. Access to Records
Subrecipient shall furnish and cause each of its own sub-subrecipients,
contractors, and subcontractors to furnish all information and reports required
hereunder and will permit access to its books, records and accounts by Grantee,
HUD or its agent, the Comptroller General of the United States, or other
authorized Federal officials for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance
with the rules, regulations, and provisions stated herein.
5. Contract Provisions
Subrecipient will include the provisions of Paragraphs XI.A., Civil Rights, and B.,
Affirmative Action, in every subsequent sub-subrecipient agreement, contract,
subcontract, or purchase order, specifically or by reference, so that such
provisions will be binding upon each of its own sub-subrecipients, contractors, or
subcontractors.
C. Employment Restrictions
1. Prohibited Activity
Subrecipient is prohibited from using funds provided herein or personnel
employed in the administration of the program for: political activities; inherently
religious activities; lobbying; political patronage; and nepotism activities.
2. Labor Standards
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of the Secretary of Labor in
accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended, the provisions of Contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.), and all other
applicable Federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor
standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement.
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act (18 U.S.C.
874 et seq.) and its implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor at
29 CFR Part 5. Subrecipient shall maintain documentation that demonstrates
compliance with hour and wage requirements of this part. Such documentation
shall be made available to Grantee for review upon request. Subrecipient agrees
that, except with respect to the rehabilitation or construction of residential
property containing less than eight (8) units, all contractors engaged under
contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction, renovation, or repair work
financed in whole or in part with assistance provided under this Agreement, shall
comply with Federal requirements adopted by Grantee pertaining to such
contracts and with the applicable requirements of the regulations of the
Department of Labor, under 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5 and 7 governing the payment of
wages and ratio of apprentices and trainees to journey workers; provided that, if
wage rates higher than those required under the regulations are imposed by state
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or local law, nothing hereunder is intended to relieve Subrecipient of its
obligation, if any, to require payment of the higher wage. Subrecipient shall cause
or require to be inserted in full, in all such contracts subject to such regulations,
provisions meeting the requirements of this paragraph.
3. “Section 3” Clause
a. Compliance
Compliance with the provisions of Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968, as
amended, and as implemented by the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 135, and
all applicable rules and orders issued hereunder prior to the execution of this
Agreement, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided
under this Agreement and binding upon Grantee, Subrecipient, and any of
Subrecipient’s sub-subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors. Failure to
fulfill these requirements shall subject Grantee, Subrecipient, and any of
Subrecipient’s sub-subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors, as well as
their successors and assigns, to those sanctions specified by the agreement
through which Federal assistance is provided. Subrecipient certifies and
agrees that no contractual or other disability exists that would prevent
compliance with these requirements.
Subrecipient further agrees to comply with these “Section 3” requirements and
to include the following language in all subsequent sub-subrecipient
agreements, contracts, and subcontracts executed under this Agreement:
“The work to be performed under this Agreement is a project assisted under a
program providing direct Federal financial assistance from HUD and is
subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701). Section 3 requires
that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment
be given to low- and very low-income residents of the project area, and that
contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business
concerns that provide economic opportunities for low- and very low-income
persons residing in the metropolitan area in which the project is located.”
Subrecipient further agrees to ensure that opportunities for training and
employment arising in connection with a housing rehabilitation (including
reduction and abatement of lead-based paint hazards), housing construction,
or other public construction project are given to low- and very low-income
persons residing within the metropolitan area in which the CDBG-DR funded
project is located; where feasible, priority should be given to low- and very
low-income persons within the service area of the project or the neighborhood
in which the project is located, and to low- and very low-income participants
in other HUD programs; and award contracts for work undertaken in
connection with a housing rehabilitation (including reduction and abatement
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of lead-based paint hazards), housing construction, or other public
construction project to business concerns that provide economic opportunities
for low- and very low-income persons residing within the metropolitan area in
which the CDBG-DR funded project is located; where feasible, priority
should be given to business concerns that provide economic opportunities to
low- and very low-income residents within the service area or the
neighborhood in which the project is located, and to low- and very lowincome participants in other HUD programs.
Subrecipient certifies and agrees that no contractual or other legal incapacity
exists that would prevent compliance with these requirements.
b. Notifications
Subrecipient agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract
or understanding, if any, a notice advising said labor organization or worker’s
representative of its commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment or training.
c. Contracts
Subrecipient will include this Section 3 clause in subsequent sub-subrecipient
agreements, contracts, and subcontracts, and will take appropriate action,
pursuant to any such agreement, upon a finding that a sub-subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by HUD.
Subrecipient will not subgrant or contract with any entity where it has notice
or knowledge that the entity has been found in violation of regulations under
24 CFR Part 135, and will not let any sub-subrecipient agreement or contract
unless the entity has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to
comply with the requirements of these regulations.
d. Reporting
Irrespective of any applicable Federal reporting requirements, Subrecipient
shall submit quarterly reports along with any supporting documentation, in a
form acceptable to Grantee, of its Section 3 compliance efforts to Grantee.
Notwithstanding the provision of such reports and supporting documentation,
Subrecipient shall maintain copies of all reports and supporting documents as
set forth in this Agreement. A summary of this and certain other reporting
obligations is provided at paragraph IX.C.5.
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D. Conduct
1. Hatch Act
Subrecipient agrees that no funds provided, nor personnel employed under this
Agreement, shall be in any way or to any extent engaged in the conduct of
political activities in violation of Chapter 15 of Title V of the U.S.C.
2. Conflict of Interest
Subrecipient agrees to abide by the provisions of 24 CFR 85.36 or 84.42-43, as
applicable, and 24 CFR 570.611, which include (but are not limited to) the
following:
a. It is presumed that Subrecipient is subject to state and local ethic laws and
regulations related to the conduct of its officers, employees or agents engaged
in the award and administration of this Agreement.
b. In the event Subrecipient is not, Subrecipient shall maintain written
standards of conduct governing the performance of its employees engaged in
the award and administration of this Agreement. No employee, officer, or
agent shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract
supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be
involved. Such a conflict would arise when the employee, officer, or agent,
any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an
organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated
herein, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award. The
officers, employees, and agents of the recipient shall neither solicit nor accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors, or parties to
subagreements. However, recipients may set standards for situations in which
the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of
nominal value. The standards of conduct shall provide for disciplinary actions
to be applied for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents
of the recipient.
c. No covered persons who exercise or have exercised any functions or
responsibilities with respect to CDBG-DR assisted activities, or who are in a
position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information
with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest in any contract,
or have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with
respect to the CDBG-DR assisted activity, or with respect to the proceeds
from the CDBG-DR assisted activity, either for themselves or those with
whom they have business or immediate family ties, during their tenure or for a
period of one (1) year thereafter. For purposes of this paragraph, a “covered
person” includes any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
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elected or appointed official of Grantee, Subrecipient, or any designated
public agency.
3. Lobbying
Subrecipient hereby certifies that:
a. To the best of its knowledge and belief, no Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with this Agreement.
b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Agreement, Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.
c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this
certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.C. Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
d. It has and will comply with Section 139-j and 139-k of the State Finance
Law.
e. It will require that the language of paragraphs (a) through (e) of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers
(including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.
4. Copyright
If this Agreement results in any copyrightable material or inventions, Grantee
and/or HUD reserves the right to royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable
license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use and to authorize others to use, the
work or materials for governmental purposes. This clause shall survive
indefinitely the termination of this Agreement for any reason.
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5. Religious Activities
Subrecipient agrees that funds provided under this Agreement will not be utilized
for inherently religious activities prohibited by 24 CFR 570.200(j), such as
worship, religious instruction, or proselytization.

XII. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS
A. Environmental Laws
Subrecipient agrees to comply with, and shall retain an independent environmental
monitor to document compliance, to the extent applicable, with the following
requirements (and their state and/or local counterparts or analogues, if any) insofar as
they apply to the performance of this Agreement or the Grantee Program, as any of
the following may hereinafter be amended, superseded, replaced, or modified:
-

Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26951, 3
CFR, 1977 Comp., p. 117, as interpreted at 24 C.F.R. Part 55), and Executive
Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands, May 24, 1977 (42 FR 26961; 3 CFR, 1977
Comp., p. 121);

-

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.);

-

Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 201, 300(f) et seq., and 21 U.S.C.
§ 349, as amended), and EPA regulations for Sole Source Aquifers (40 C.F.R.
Part 149);

-

Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.);

-

Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1271 et seq.);

-

Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.);

-

EPA regulations for Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or
Federal Implementation Plans (40 C.F.R. Parts 6, 51, and 93);

-

Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 (7 U.S.C. § 4201 et seq.), and USDA
regulations at 7 C.F.R. Part 658;

-

HUD criteria and standards at 24 C.F.R. Part 51;

-

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, Feb. 11, 1994 (59 FR 7629, 3
CFR, 1994 Comp. p. 859);
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-

Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 4001-4128);

-

National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. § 5154a);

-

Coastal Barrier Resources Act, as amended by the Coastal Barrier Improvement
Act of 1990 (16 U.S.C. § 3501);

-

Runway Clear Zone regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 51);

-

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq.),
1318 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as
other requirements specified in said Section 114 and Section 308, and all
regulations and guidelines issued thereunder;

-

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations at 40 CFR Part 50, as
amended;

-

HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart B, and New York State and local
laws, regulations, and ordinances related to noise abatement and control, as
applicable;

-

HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 51 Subpart C regarding siting of projects near
hazardous operations handling conventional fuels or chemicals of an explosive or
flammable nature;

-

HUD and EPA regulations related to asbestos-containing material and lead-based
paint, including but not limited to Part 56 of Title 12 of the Official Compilation
of Codes, Rules and Regulations of the State of New York Department of Labor
(12 NYCRR Part 56), the National Emission Standard for Asbestos (40 C.F.R.
§ 61.145), the National Emission Standard for Asbestos (40 C.F.R. § 61.150), and
24 C.F.R. Part 35 Subparts B, H, and J; and

-

All other applicable Environmental Laws that may exist now or in the future. For
the purposes of this section, “Environmental Laws” shall mean any federal, state,
provincial or local law (including but not limited to statutes, rules, regulations,
ordinances, directives, guidance documents or judicial or administrative
interpretation thereof, or any judicial or administrative order, ruling or other such
written requirement). Environmental Laws include, without limitation, any action
which causes a review or reassessment of the Grantee Program.

B. Flood Disaster Protection
In accordance with the requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (42
U.S.C. 4001), Subrecipient shall assure that for activities located in an area identified
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) as having special flood
hazards, flood insurance under the National Flood Insurance Program is obtained and
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maintained as a condition of financial assistance for acquisition or construction
purposes (including rehabilitation).
C. Lead-Based Paint
Subrecipient agrees that any construction or rehabilitation of structures containing
residential units with assistance provided under this Agreement shall be subject to
HUD Lead-Based Paint Regulations at 24 CFR 570.608, and 24 CFR Part 35, Subpart
B. Such regulations pertain to all CDBG-assisted housing and require that all owners,
prospective owners, and tenants of properties constructed prior to 1978 be properly
notified that such properties may include lead-based paint. Such notification shall
point out the hazards of lead-based paint and explain the symptoms, treatment and
precautions that should be taken when dealing with lead-based paint poisoning and
the advisability and availability of blood lead level screening for children under
seven. The notice should also point out that if lead-based paint is found on the
property, abatement measures may be undertaken. The regulations further require
that, depending on the amount of Federal funds applied to a property, paint testing,
risk assessment, treatment and/or abatement may be conducted.
D. Historic Preservation
Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Historic Preservation requirements set forth in
the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470) and the
procedures set forth in 36 CFR Part 800 and 801, Advisory Council on Historic
Preservation Procedures for Protection of Historic Properties, insofar as they apply to
the performance of this agreement, as well as any other applicable laws or regulations
relating to historic properties.
In general, this requires concurrence from the State Historic Preservation Officer for
all rehabilitation and demolition of historic properties that are fifty years old or older
or that are included on a Federal, state, or local historic property list.
E. Implementation of Mitigation Measures
Subrecipient agrees to comply with and timely implement any and all mitigation
measures and other requirements set forth in any environmental reviews,
environmental assessments, or environmental impact statements performed or to be
performed in connection with, or records of decision or any similar documents, issued
or to be issued in connection with, the CDBG-DR Program as may be applicable to
this Agreement. It is Subrecipient’s responsibility to ensure that it has complete
copies of all such documents.
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XIII. ASSIGNMENT
Subrecipient shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior
written consent of Grantee.

XIV. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall
not be affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall nevertheless be in full
force and effect.

XV. SECTION HEADINGS AND SUBHEADINGS
The section headings and subheadings contained in this Agreement are included for
convenience only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the terms of this Agreement.

XVI. WAIVER
Grantee’s failure to act with respect to a breach by Subrecipient does not waive its right
to act with respect to subsequent or similar breaches. The failure of Grantee to exercise or
enforce any right or provision shall not constitute a waiver of such right or provision.

XVII. CHOICE OF LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of New
York without giving effect to its conflict of law principles. Nothing in the Agreement
shall preclude either Party from seeking injunctive relief to protect its rights under this
Agreement.
The Parties consent to and agree that any and all disputes arising out of or relating in any
way to the Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state courts or
Federal District Courts of New York. The Parties consent to the jurisdiction of such
courts, agree to accept service of process by mail, and waive any jurisdictional or venue
defenses otherwise available.

XVIII. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW
It is the intention and understanding of the Parties hereto that each and every provision of
law required to be inserted in this Agreement should be and is inserted
herein. Furthermore, it is hereby stipulated that every such provision is deemed to be
inserted and if, through mistake or otherwise, any such provision is not inserted herein or
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is not inserted in correct form, then this Agreement shall forthwith, upon the application
of any Party, be amended by such insertion so as to comply strictly with the law and
without prejudice to the rights of any Party.

XIX. SUBROGATION
Subrecipient acknowledges that funds provided through this Agreement are Federal funds
administered by HUD under the CDBG-DR Program and that all funds provided by this
Agreement are subject to audit, disallowance, and repayment. Any disagreement with
adverse findings may be challenged and subject to Federal regulation, however,
Subrecipient shall promptly return any and all funds to Grantee, which are found to be
ineligible, unallowable, unreasonable, a duplication of benefits, or non-compensable, no
matter the cause. This clause shall survive indefinitely the termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

XX. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the Parties for the use of funds
received under this Agreement and it supersedes all prior or contemporaneous
communications and proposals, whether electronic, oral, or written among the Parties
with respect to this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by a duly
authorized representative of the parties.
Housing Trust Fund Corporation

By:
Name: Lisa Bova-Hiatt
Title: Interim Executive Director,
Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery

City of Rye

By:
Name: Joseph A. Sack
Title: Mayor

This contract has been approved by Grantee’s Counsel as to form and its Treasurer as to
fiscal sufficiency.
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EXHIBIT A
Subrecipient Program Description
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EXHIBIT B
Budget
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EXHIBIT C
Designation of Depository
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EXHIBIT D
HUD and Grantee Recognition
Please find below guidelines for recognition of HUD, Housing Trust Fund Corporation
(“HTFC”), and the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (“GOSR”) (collectively
referred to herein as the “Grantee”) in any work done as a result of this subrecipient
agreement. Note, any public information and all of the items below must be approved by
the Grantee in advance of publication or posting. Note: The following serve as general
guidelines, Grantee reserves the right to direct specific reasonable recognition
requirements on a case-by-case basis, including by not limited to the size and content,
waiver, removal or addition of such recognition.
Written documents:
All written documents must include the following language, unless otherwise specified in
writing by the Grantee:
1. “This [program/project] is made possible by a grant from the Housing Trust Fund
Corporation, which is funded through Community Development Block Grants
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.”
2. Written documents should also include the Grantee logo(s) and the name of the
Governor.
Internet information and e-mail information:
1. Internet information must include all of the items required for written
documentation and a link to the Grantee’s website(s).
Offices open to the public providing services funded by the Grantee:
1. All offices must include a sign including all of the items required for written
documentation.
Construction Signs:
1. All construction signs must include a sign including all of the items required for
written documentation.
2. All construction signs must also include the name of the project, an expected end
date for the project, the name of the subrecipient, and a phone number for the
public to call to obtain information about the project. This must be a phone
number maintained by the subrecipient or one of its subcontractors.
Completed Projects:
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1. All completed projects must include permanent recognition of the Grantee. The
subrecipient is required to submit to the Grantee for written approval of the
proposed permanent recognition.
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EXHIBIT E
Appendices for Contractors and Subcontractors at all Tiers
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OFFERED BY:
SECONDED BY:
RESOLUTION NO. ________
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FOLLOWING PROCEDURES AND POLICIES FOR THE
CITY OF RYE IN THE PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES NECESSARY FOR THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECTS FUNDED BY THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF STORM
RECOVERY OF THE NEW YORK STATE HOUSING TRUST FUND CORPORATION

WHEREAS, in the aftermath of Superstorm Sandy, the United States Congress, through
Public Law passed the Disaster Relief Appropriations Act of 2013 (Public Law 113-2, approved
January 29, 2013), as amended (the “Act”), appropriating $16 billion, later reduced to $15.18
billion, to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) for Community
Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”) funds for necessary expenses related
to disaster relief, long-term recovery, restoration of infrastructure, and housing and economic
revitalization in the most impacted and distressed areas resulting from a major disaster
declared due to Superstorm Sandy and other eligible events, including Hurricane Irene and
Tropical Storm Lee, in calendar years 2011, 2012, and 2013 (the “Storms”), subject to the
Federal statutes and regulations governing CDBG grants, as modified by exceptions and waivers
previously granted and which may hereafter be granted by HUD; and,
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (78
Fed. Reg. 14,329), published March 5, 2013, titled, “Allocations, Common Applications, and
Alternative Requirements for Grantees Receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Disaster Recovery Funds in Response to Hurricane Sandy (as amended),” the State has received
an allocation of CDBG-DR funds from HUD in the amount of $1,713,960,000; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (78
Fed. Reg. 69,104), entitled Second Allocation, Waivers, and Alternative Requirements for
Grantees Receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery Funds in
Response to Hurricane Sandy (as amended),” the State has received a second allocation of
CDBG-DR funds from HUD in the amount of $2,097,000,000; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the CDBG-DR Grant Program and Federal Register Notice (79
Fed. Reg. 62,183), entitled Third Allocation, Waivers, and Alternative Requirements for Grantees
Receiving Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Disaster Recovery Funds in Response to
This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in any way
as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template documents provided by
GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.

3/1/2015

Hurricane Sandy (as amended),” the State has received a third allocation of CDBG-DR funds
from HUD in the amount of $639,056,000; and
WHEREAS, the City of Rye has entered into a subrecipient agreement with the
Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery of the New York State Housing Trust Fund Corporation.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rye, on behalf of
the City of Rye that the City of Rye shall follow these policies and procedures in the
procurement of goods and services necessary for the implementation of projects funded by the
Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery of the New York State Housing Trust Fund Corporation:
AVOIDING PROCUREMENT OF UNNECESSARY OR DUPLICATIVE ITEMS OR SERVICES
The director or supervisor of each department or agency of the City of Rye responsible for
procurement of services, supplies, equipment, or construction obtained with Federal, State or
Local funds shall review all proposed procurement actions to avoid the purchase of unnecessary
or duplicative items. Such reviews shall consider consolidation or breaking out to obtain a
more economical purchase. When determined appropriate by the director or supervisor, an
analysis should be made of lease versus purchase alternatives and any other analysis to
determine the most economical approach.
CODE OF CONDUCT
No employee, officer or agent of the City of Rye shall participate directly or indirectly in the
selection or in the award or administration of any contract if a conflict, real or apparent, would
be involved. Such conflict would arise when a financial or other interest in a firm selected for
award is held by:
1. An employee, officer or agent involved in making the award;
2. His/her relative including father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first
cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughterin-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter,
stepsister, half-brother, or sister;
3. His/her partner; or
4. An organization which employs, is negotiating to employ, or has an arrangement concerning
prospective employment of any of the above.

This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in any way
as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template documents provided by
GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.

3/1/2015

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROTEST PROCEDURES
Any actual or prospective contractor may protest the solicitation or award of a contract for
serious violations of the principles of this Statement. Any protest against solicitations must be
received before the due date for receipt of bids or proposals, and any protest against the award
of a contract must be received within ten calendar days after contract award, or the protest will
not be considered. All bid protests shall be in writing, submitted to Purchasing Agent or City
Manager. The Purchasing Agent or City Manager may, at his/her discretion, suspend the
procurement pending resolution of the protest, if warranted by the facts presented.

This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in any way
as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template documents provided by
GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
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OFFERED BY
SECONDED BY

SAMPLE

RESOLUTION NO.______
A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN AS REQUIRED
UNDER THE NEW YORK STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTDISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) PROGRAM.
WHEREAS, the ________________ is a subrecipient receiving New York State
Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funds, as administered by
the Housing Trust Fund Corporation, Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR) to assist in
addressing unmet needs from either Hurricane Irene, Tropical Storm Lee, or Superstorm Sandy;
and,
WHEREAS, participation in the New York State Community Development Block GrantDisaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program requires the adoption and implementation of a Citizen
Participation Plan to comply with Section 508 of the Housing and Community Development Act
of 1974, as amended; and,
WHEREAS, the purpose of this plan is to provide for and encourage citizen participation,
with particular emphasis on participation by persons of low and moderate income who are
residents of slum and blighted areas and of areas in which funds are proposed to be used.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the ________________________________ that
the attached New York State Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBGDR) Citizen Participation Plan be hereby officially adopted for implementation in the
________________ New York State CDBG-DR Program.

This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in any way
as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template documents provided by
GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
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OFFERED BY
SECONDED BY

SAMPLE

RESOLUTION NO.______
A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN AS REQUIRED
UNDER THE NEW YORK STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTDISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) PROGRAM.
WHEREAS, the ________________ is a subrecipient receiving New York State
Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funds, as administered by
the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR) of the New York State Housing Trust Fund
Corporation (HTFC) to assist in addressing unmet needs from either Hurricane Irene, Tropical
Storm Lee, or Superstorm Sandy; and,
WHEREAS, participation in the New York State CDBG-DR Program requires the adoption
and implementation of an Affirmative Action Plan to meet the Equal Employment Opportunity
(EEO) requirements of Executive Order 11246 and other program policies; and,
WHEREAS, the purpose of this plan is to prohibit workplace employment discrimination
on the basis of age, race, color, religion, gender, creed, national origin, physical or mental
disability, marital status, veteran status, disabled veteran status, or status as a member of any
other protected group or activity.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the ________________________________ that
the attached Affirmative Action Plan be hereby officially adopted for implementation in the
________________ New York State CDBG-DR Program.

_____________________________
This document is a sample Affirmative Action Plan and Resolution and is not intended to be and should not be
construed in any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
documents provided by GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
5/11/2015
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OFFERED BY:
SECONDED BY:
RESOLUTION NO. ________
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FOLLOWING SECTION 504 POLICIES AND
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES FOR THE ____________________[SUBRECIPIENT]
SECTION 504 RESOLUTION/(INSERT NAME OF SUBRECIPIENT)

WHEREAS, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability in programs and activities conducted by the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) or by grantees that
receive financial assistance from HUD, and

WHEREAS, Part 8 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations (24 CFR)
requires adoption of grievance procedures to address complaints of those who feel
they may have been discriminated against on the basis of disability and also
requires the provision of notice of said grievance procedures, and

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the (insert name of subrecipient) not to
discriminate against any individual, person, or group on the basis of disability and
the intent of the (insert Village, Town, or City or name of organization, as
appropriate) to address any complaints that may arise pursuant to Section 504,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the (insert name of
subrecipient) does hereby adopt by resolution internal grievance procedures (the
“Procedure”) providing for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints
alleging any action prohibited by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 of the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services regulations implementing the Act,
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the (insert name of subrecipient) does
hereby designate the (insert TITLE ONLY of appointed Grievance Coordinator, i.e.
Village Clerk, Town Supervisor, etc.) as the Grievance Coordinator who shall be
responsible for receiving and addressing complaints pursuant to the Procedure
adopted hereby and attached hereto, and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the (insert name of subrecipient) will
place its employee, the public, and potential beneficiaries of certain federal public
programs on notice by undertaking certain actions that will include, but may not be
limited to (1) providing a copy of the grievance procedure to its employees, (2)
putting the public on notice by placing a notice in the (insert Village’s, Town’s,
City’s, or the name of the organization, as appropriate) official newspaper,
posting of notices in the (insert Village’s, Town’s, City’s, or the name of the
organization, as appropriate) offices and facilities, placing notices in (insert

This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in
any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
documents provided by GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
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Village’s, Town’s, City’s, or the name of the organization, as appropriate)
publications, and/or distribution of memoranda or other written communications
subsequent to adoption of this Procedure, (3) placing copies of the Procedure in
the (insert location of where Procedure can be viewed such as Village Offices,
Clerk’s Office, City Hall, etc.) for review and dissemination, and (4) adding
language to federal program brochures to insure all potential program
beneficiaries are aware of the (insert Village, Town, City, or name of organization,
as appropriate) adopted grievance procedures.

BACKGROUND: Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (the “Act”) as
amended prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in programs and
activities conducted by HUD or that receive financial assistance from HUD. This
includes the New York State Community Development Block Grant-Disaster
Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program funded by HUD, administered by the Governor’s
Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR), and under which the (insert subrecipient’s
name) has received financial assistance. The Act specifically provides that no
qualified individual shall, solely by reason of his or her handicap, be excluded from
program participation, including employment, be denied program benefits, or be
subjected to discrimination. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)
established provisions for assuring equality of opportunity, full participation,
independent living, and self-sufficiency of disabled persons relative to
employment, benefits and services, accommodations, commercial facilities, and
multi-family housing.

SECTION 504 POLICY/COMPLIANCE: Part 8 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal
Regulations (24 CFR) requires the adoption and notice/publication of ADA
grievance procedures for municipalities with 15 or more employees, Sections 8.53
and 8.54, respectively. Therefore, be it known that it is the policy of the (insert
subrecipient’s name here) not to discriminate on the basis of disability. Towards
that end, the (insert subrecipient’s name here) has adopted by resolution an
internal grievance procedure providing for prompt and equitable resolution of
complaints alleging any action prohibited by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
regulations implementing the Act. The subject law and implementing regulations may
be examined in the (insert location of where policy can be viewed i.e. Village
Clerk’s Office, Mayor’s Office, etc.). The (insert TITLE of Grievance Procedure
Coordinator here rather than a person’s name, i.e. Town Code Enforcer, City
Clerk, etc.) for the (insert subrecipient’s name here) has been designated to
coordinate the efforts of the (insert subrecipient’s name here) with respect to
Section 504 compliance. This information can also be accessed on the Internet at
the following address:
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/fair_housing_equal_opp
/disabilities/sect504. The (insert name of office where coordinator is located i.e.
Code Enforcer’s office) is located at (insert street address and name of
subrecipient here), New York. The Section 504 Coordinator can be reached at
(insert phone number here including area code).
This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in
any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
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GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE: Any person who believes he or she has been
subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability may file a grievance under the
procedure adopted by the (insert Village, Town, City, or name of organization,
as appropriate) outlined below.
•

•

•

•

•

•

Grievances must be submitted to the Section 504 Coordinator within 60 days of
the date the person filing the grievance becomes aware of the alleged
discriminatory action.
A complaint must be in writing, containing the name and address of the person
filing it. The complaint must state the problem or action alleged to be
discriminatory and the remedy or relief sought.

The Section 504 Coordinator (or her/his designee) shall conduct an
investigation of the complaint. This investigation may be informal, but it must
be thorough, affording all interested persons an opportunity to submit evidence
relevant to the complaint. The Section 504 Coordinator will maintain the files
and records of the (insert subrecipient’s name here) relating to such
grievances.

The Section 504 Coordinator will issue a written decision on the grievance no
later than 30 days after its filing.

The person filing the grievance may appeal the decision of the Section 504
Coordinator by writing to the (insert Village, Town, City, or name of
organization) ( Board, Council, etc.) within 15 days of receiving the Section
504 Coordinator’s decision. The (insert Village, Town, City, or name of
organization) ( Board, Council, etc.) shall issue a written decision in response
to the appeal no later than 30 days after its filing.

The availability and use of this grievance procedure does not prevent a person
from filing a complaint of discrimination on the basis of disability with the U. S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights.

The (insert subrecipient’s name here) will make appropriate
arrangements to ensure that disabled persons are provided accommodations, if
needed, to participate in this grievance process. Such arrangements may include,
but are not limited to, providing interpreters for the deaf, providing taped cassettes
of material for the blind, or assuring a barrier-free location for the proceedings.
The Section 504 Coordinator will be responsible for such arrangements.
It is against the law for the (insert subrecipient’s name here) to retaliate
against anyone who files a grievance or cooperates in the investigation of a
grievance.
ADOPTED:

This document is a sample adopting resolution and is not intended to be and should not be construed in
any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
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(Name of Subrecipient)
NEW YORK STATE
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF STORM RECOVERY (GOSR)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) PROGRAM
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN
The (subrecipient) has adopted the following Affirmative Action Plan to meet the Equal
Employment Opportunity (EEO) requirements of Executive Order 11246 and the program
policies of the New York State Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBGDR) Program. Executive Order 11246 prohibits federal contractors and subcontractors from
engaging in workplace employment discrimination on the basis of age, race, color, religion,
gender, creed, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital status, veteran status,
disabled veteran status, or status as a member of any other protected group or activity.
1) The (subrecipient) is committed to equal employment opportunity and as part of its
Affirmative Action Plan shall:
a) Recruit, hire, upgrade, train, and promote in all job classifications, without regard to age,
race, color, religion, gender, creed, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital
status, veteran status, disabled veteran status, or status as a member of any other
protected group or activity.
b) Base employment decisions on the principles of equal employment opportunity, and
with the intent to further the (subrecipient’s) commitment to affirmative action;
c) Ensure that all terms and conditions of employment such as compensation, benefits,
layoff, return from layoff, training, educational tuition assistance, and social and
recreation programs, shall be administered without regard to age, race, color, religion,
gender, creed, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital status, veteran
status, disabled veteran status, or status as a member of any other protected group or
activity.
d) Ensure that promotion decisions will be made in accordance with the principles of
affirmative action by imposing only valid requirements for promotional opportunities;
e) Take action to prevent harassment or intimidation of all employees, particularly those
encompassed by the (subrecipient’s) affirmative action efforts.
This document is a sample Affirmative Action Plan and Resolution and is not intended to be and should not be
construed in any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
documents provided by GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
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2) The (subrecipient) will post the federal EEO Poster in a conspicuous location.
3) In all solicitations or advertisements for employment the (subrecipient) shall state that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age, race,
color, religion, gender, creed, national origin, physical or mental disability, marital status,
veteran status, disabled veteran status, or status as a member of any other protected group
or activity.
4) The (subrecipient) will maintain written employment records to demonstrate compliance
with Executive Order 11246.
5) The (subrecipient) will pursue opportunities to recruit and develop qualified job candidates
to avoid employment barriers and to ensure equal opportunity for candidates.
6) The (subrecipient’s) Affirmative Action Plan will be posted on the Human Resources Office
web page at (website address).
7) (Title of officer) has been assigned responsibility for the implementation and administration
of this Affirmative Action Plan.

This document is a sample Affirmative Action Plan and Resolution and is not intended to be and should not be
construed in any way as legal advice by the Governor’s Office of Storm Recovery (GOSR). All sample or template
documents provided by GOSR should be reviewed by an attorney prior to adoption.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 11

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution to approve a Memorandum
of Agreement between the City of Rye and the Rye CSEA
Local 1000 Clerical Unit.

DATE: July 9, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 9, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council approve the Memorandum of Agreement and enter in
an agreement for the contract period of 01/01/2014 – 12/31/2016.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The City of Rye and the Rye CSEA Local 1000 Clerical Unit have reached a
Memorandum of Agreement. The Union ratified the proposed MOA, and the City is requesting the
Council to act as follows:
WHEREAS, The City of Rye and the Rye CSEA Local 1000 Clerical Unit have negotiated a new
Memorandum of Agreement which will replace the agreement which expired on December 31, 2013,
and:
WHEREAS, The CSEA Clerical Unit ratified the proposed terms of the MOA, now therefore be it;
RESOLVED, that the City Council approve the three year contract MOA between the Rye CSEA Local
1000 Clerical Unit for the contract period of 01/01/2014 to 12/31/2016.

Memorandum of Agreement
City of Rye
CSEA Clerical Unit

1. Article III Salaries and Wages:
a) Effective January I, 20I4 the salary schedule shall increase by 2.25%
b) Effective January I, 2015 the salary schedule shall increase by 2.25%
c) Effective January 1, 2016 the salary schedule shall increase by 2.25%
NOTE: retroactive pay is limited to employees in active service and on the City's payroll
as of the date of the fully executed MOA
2. Job Titles: the following job titles will be deleted from the Clerical Negotiating Unit:
Grade SB Telephone Operator
Grade 8B

Office Assistant (Building Department)
Office Assistant (Community Development)
Office Assistant (Police Department)
Office Assistant (Public Works)
Office Assistant (Recreation)

NOTE: These are vacant and/or no longer recognized titles. The Senior Account Clerk
title would be reallocated to Grade 8B for employees placed in that title after the ratification of
this Agreement. It would not impact the current employee in that title.
3. Article XVI Health Benefits:
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A.

Effective on the first pay period after full ratification of the Memorandum of
Agreement, all active employees shall contribute twenty-five (25%) percent of the
cost of health benefit premiums not to exceed 5% of their base annual salary.

B.

The contribution for employees hired on or after the date of execution of this
Memorandum of Agreement will be twenty-five (25%) percent of the cost of
health benefit premiums not to exceed 9.5% of the employee's base annual salary.

C.

For employees hired on or after the date of execution of this Memorandum of
Agreement, the employer shall contribute fifty (50%) percent of the cost ofhealth
benefit premiums for retired employees and their dependents during the lifetime
of the retired employee.

D.

Effective upon ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement, to the extent
permissible by law and the terms of the health insurance plan from which the
employee withdraws from coverage, the City shall provide a health insurance
buyout for anyone who has alternate coverage, and who chooses not to take the
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City offered plan. The value of the buyout shall be 25% of the Employer's net
savings, and the dollar amount shall be pro-rated throughout the yearly payroll so
that, if a qualifying event takes place which necessitates that the employee reenroll, the buyout payments shall cease.
E.

Effective upon ratification of the Memorandum of Agreement, in case of a line of
duty death, the Employer shall continue to provide full premium payments for the
deceased members spouse until the spouse is eligible for continuing coverage
under Medicare or obtains coverage by another source, such as an employer or
spousal coverage. Dependents are also eligible for continued participation at the
employer expense for premium payments in the health insurance plan until
emancipation, the attainment of the maximum age for dependent eligibility, or
until coverage is obtained by another source.

4. Article XVIII Vision Care/Hearing Plan: Effective January I, 2014, the rates paid out
for the current vision/hearing plans shall be changed to reflect the current rates required
to provide these benefits.

CSEA NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE

CITY OF RYE

Interim City Manager

CSEA LOCAL 1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO
CITY OF RYE CLERICAL UNIT

By:

f)vYYrg.fPresident
u C ~i

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 12

DEPT.: City Council
CONTACT: Councilwoman Julie Killian
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution to adopt the Climate Smart
Communities Pledge.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION:

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The Climate Smart Communities (CSC) program is a network of New York
communities engaged in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and improving climate resilience.
To become a Climate Smart Community the City must adopt the Climate Smart Communities
Pledge and notify the NYS DEC that it has been adopted. Additional information on CSC is
available at: http://www.dec.ny.gov/energy/50845.html
The following communities in Westchester County are Climate Smart Communities: City of
New Rochelle; City of Peekskill; City of White Plains; City of Yonkers; Town of Bedford; Town
of Cortlandt; Town of Greenburgh; Town of Lewisboro; Town of Mamaroneck; Town of New
Castle; Town of North Castle; Town of North Salem; Town of Ossining; Town of Pound
Ridge; Town of Somers; Town of Yorktown; Village of Ardsley;Village of Dobbs Ferry; Village
of Croton-on-Hudson; Village of Hastings-on-Hudson; Village of Irvington; Village of
Larchmont; Village of Mamaroneck; Village of Mount Kisco; Village of Ossining; Village of Port
Chester; Village of Tarrytown; Village of Sleepy Hollow
See attached Climate Smart Communities Pledge.

Climate Smart Communities Pledge
Summary Text
The Climate Smart Communities Pledge contains all the elements of a successful
local climate program.
To become a recognized Climate Smart Community, the municipality's governing
body must adopt a resolution that explicity includes all ten elements of the Model
Pledge . Additional pledge elements or legislative findings may be added. The
required ten elements of the pledge are as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Pledge to be a Climate Smart Community.
Set goals, inventory emissions, plan for climate action.
Decrease community energy use.
Increase community use of renewable energy.
Realize benefits of recycling and other climate-smart solid waste
management practices.
6. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions through use of climate-smart landuse tools.
7. Enhance community resilience and prepare for the effects of climate
change.
8. Support development of a green innovation economy.
9. Inform and inspire the public.
10. Commit to an evolving process of climate action.

Model Resolution for Community Adoption
Council member________ moved and Council member ________ seconded that:
WHEREAS, the Town/Village/City/County of ______________ (hereinafter "local
government") believes that climate change poses a real and increasing threat to our
local and global environments and is primarily due to the burning of fossil fuels; and
WHEREAS, the effects of climate change will endanger our infrastructure, economy
and livelihoods; harm our farms, orchards, and ecological communities, including
native fish and wildlife populations; spread invasive species and exotic diseases;
reduce drinking water supplies and recreational opportunities; and pose health
threats to our citizens; and
WHEREAS, we believe that our response to climate change provides us with an
unprecedented opportunity to save money, and to build livable, energy-independent
and secure communities, vibrant innovation economies, healthy and safe schools,
and resilient infrastructures; and
WHEREAS, we believe the scale of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reductions
required for climate stabilization will require sustained and substantial efforts; and
WHEREAS, we believe that even if emissions were dramatically reduced today,
communities would still be required to adapt to the effects of climate change for
decades to come,
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that Town/Village/City/County of ______________ , in
order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to a changing climate, adopts
the New York State Climate Smart Communities Pledge, which comprises the
following ten elements:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Pledge to be a Climate Smart Community.
Set goals, inventory emissions, plan for climate action.
Decrease community energy use.
Increase community use of renewable energy.
Realize benefits of recycling and other climate-smart solid waste
management practices.
6. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions through use of climate-smart land-use
tools.
7. Enhance community resilience and prepare for the effects of climate change.
8. Support development of a green innovation economy.
9. Inform and inspire the public.
10. Commit to an evolving process of climate action.

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 14

DEPT.: Public Works
CONTACT: Ryan X. Coyne, City Engineer

ACTION: Award bid for the Annual Street Resurfacing
contract (Contract #2015-04).

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION:
That Contract #2015-04 be awarded to the low bidder, Bilotta
Construction Corp., in the amount of eight hundred eighty six thousand six hundred and thirty
four dollars ($886,634.00) as recommended by the City Engineer.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: Using the City of Rye’s Pavement Management System, the Engineering
Department has prioritized a list of streets for resurfacing. Utility companies have been notified
of the selected streets in order to coordinate construction activities and avoid excavation of new
roadways.

The City Engineer’s recommendation and bid results are attached for your review.

CITY OF RYE
Engineering Department
Interoffice Memorandum

To:

Marcus Serrano, City Manager

From:

Ryan Coyne, PE, City Engineer

Date:

July 2, 2015

Subject:

Annual Street Resurfacing Program
Contract 2015-04

I have checked and tabulated the four bids received on July 1, 2015 for the above
contract. A copy of the bid results is attached. I recommend the bid be awarded to the
low bidder, Bilotta Construction Corp., in the amount of $886,634.00. Bilotta is the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Sufficient funds exist within the Capital
Budget for this project to be awarded.
I have attached a list of recent projects that Bilotta was required to submit with their bid.
As can be seen, they have experience with similar street resurfacing projects, as well as
with other site construction work. In the recent past, Bilotta was the City’s contractor for
last year’s Street Resurfacing project as well as the Annual Sidewalk Replacement
project in 2013.
The proposed streets to be repaved this year are Purchase Street between Cedar
Street and Hillside Avenue, Milton Road between Palisade Road and the Presbyterian
Church, Milton Road between Oakland Beach Avenue and Hewlett Avenue, and the
Boston Post Road between Purchase Street and Peck Avenue.
Please feel free to contact me should you need additional information.

Annual Street Resurfacing Program - Contract 2015-04
Bid Tabulation

1.
Bilotta Construction
Item
Number

3.
ELQ Industries

4.
PCI Industries

Unit

Quantity

Unit Price

Total Price

Unit Price

Total Price

Unit Price

Total Price

Unit Price

Total Price

Milling of Asphalt Roads (3"-6" depth)

SY

33,000

$4.80

$158,400.00

$9.50

$313,500.00

$8.00

$264,000.00

$7.00

$231,000.00

Pre-Coated Non-Woven Fabric Reinforcement (18" Wide
Mat)

LF

25,000

$3.35

$83,750.00

$4.00

$100,000.00

$4.00

$100,000.00

$3.45

$86,250.00

Remove, Replace, and Adjust Manhole Castings for
Resurfacing Work

EA

5

$950.00

$4,750.00

$900.00

$4,500.00

$800.00

$4,000.00

$438.00

$2,190.00

203.02

Unclassified Excavation

CY

32

$54.00

$1,728.00

$188.00

$6,016.00

$80.00

$2,560.00

$150.00

$4,800.00

304.15

Subbase Course, Optional Type - Coarse Aggregate CA1
(3/4" Crushed Stone)

CY

16

$55.00

$880.00

$254.00

$4,064.00

$70.00

$1,120.00

$65.00

$1,040.00

403.138902 Hot Mix Asphalt, Type 3 Binder

Tons

1,000

$117.25

$117,250.00

$112.60

$112,600.00

$120.00

$120,000.00

$130.00

$130,000.00

403.178902 Hot Mix Asphalt, Type 6 Top

Tons

3,700

$117.25

$433,825.00

$101.85

$376,845.00

$121.00

$447,700.00

$130.00

$481,000.00

48A
83SB
W604.07

Item

2.
Montesano Bros.

407.0103

Straight Tack Coat

Gal

1,600

$5.25

$8,400.00

$10.00

$16,000.00

$10.00

$16,000.00

$6.00

$9,600.00

608.0101

Concrete Sidewalks and Driveways

CY

16

$975.00

$15,600.00

$1,067.00

$17,072.00

$900.00

$14,400.00

$700.00

$11,200.00

608.21

Embedded Detectable Warning Unit

SY

43

$225.00

$9,675.00

$185.00

$7,955.00

$314.00

$13,502.00

$300.00

$12,900.00

619.01

Basic Work Zone Traffic Control

LS

1

$34,000.00

$34,000.00

$47,526.00

$47,526.00

$35,000.00

$35,000.00

$40,000.00

$40,000.00

619.0901

Temporary Pavement Markings

LF

15,000

$0.17

$2,550.00

$0.16

$2,400.00

$0.50

$7,500.00

$1.60

$24,000.00

685.11

White Epoxy Reflectorized Pavement Stripes, 20 mils

LF

3,000

$1.33

$3,990.00

$1.26

$3,780.00

$1.35

$4,050.00

$0.60

$1,800.00

685.12

Yellow Epoxy Reflectorized Pavement Stripes, 20 mils

LF

15,200

$0.43

$6,536.00

$0.41

$6,232.00

$0.44

$6,688.00

$0.60

$9,120.00

Thermoplastic Reflectorized Pavement Markings
(Crosswalks)

LF

5,000

$1.04

$5,200.00

$0.99

$4,950.00

$2.50

$12,500.00

$1.00

$5,000.00

Asphalt Price Adjustment

DC

1

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

$100.00

687.0101.
698.04

Engineer's Total

$886,634.00

$1,023,540.00

$1,049,120.00

$1,050,000.00

Contractor's Total

$886,634.00

$1,023,540.00

$1,049,120.00

$1,050,000.00

Bid Opening:
July 1, 2015
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 15

DEPT.: City Manager’s Office
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM Consideration to amend the Resolution of
acceptance for a grant from the New York State
Department
of
Environmental
Conservation
for
reimbursement for equipment purchased by the
Department of Public Works.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council consider amending the previously adopted Resolution.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND: The Department of Public Works received a grant from the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation for a 50% reimbursement on a split body recycling
packer truck. The City Council approved a resolution of acceptance for the City to receive the
monies in the amount of $120,000 at the January 25, 2012 City Council meeting. The truck has
been purchased by Public Works; in order to complete the reimbursement process the DEC is
requiring that this Resolution be amended to reflect that Ryan X. Coyne is the City Engineer.

See previously approved resolution.

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rye held on January 25, 2012,
Councilman Filippi made a motion, seconded by Councilwoman Keith, to adopt the following
Resolution:
WHEREAS, the State of New York provides financial aid for municipal waste reduction
and municipal recycling projects; and
WHEREAS, the City of Rye herein called the MUNICIPALITY, has examined and duly
considered the applicable laws of the State of New York and the MUNICIPALITY deems
it to be in the public interest and benefit to file an application under these laws; and
WHEREAS, it is necessary that a Contract by and between THE PEOPLE OF THE
STATE OF NEW YORK, herein called the STATE, and the MUNICIPALITY be
executed for such STATE Aid;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Rye City Council:

1. That the filing of an application in the form required by the State of New York in

2.

3.
4.

5.
ROLL CALL:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

conformity with the applicable laws of the State of New York including all
understanding and assurances contained in said application is hereby authorized.
That George Mottarella is directed and authorized as the official representative of
the MUNICIPALITY to act in connection with the application and to provide such
additional information as may be required and to sign the resulting contract if said
application is approved by the STATE;
That the MUNICIPALITY agrees that it will fund its portion of the cost of said
Municipal Waste Reduction and Recycling Project.
That the MUNICIPALITY or MUNICIPALITIES set forth their respective
responsibilities by attached joint resolution relative to a joint Municipal Waste
Reduction and/or Recycling Project.
That this resolution shall take effect immediately.

Mayor French, Councilmembers Brett, Filippi, Jovanovich, Keith,
Parker and Sack
None
None

NYSDEC Division of Solid & Hazardous Materials
Bureau of Waste Reduction & Recycling

Municipal Waste Reduction & Recycling
Capital Project Pre-Application

This form entitles the applicant to be considered for a waste reduction/recycling grant administered by the NYSDEC.
It is NOT a full application. Upon notice from NYSOEC the applicant will be required to complete a full application.
Step1 Provide some identifying information:
Applicant City of Rye
Check Applicant type(s):
City
County D
Local Public Authority
School District D

DEC Region 3
County Westchester

IZ1

Town D
Village D
Local Public Benefit Corporation D
Other District 0
Native American tribe or nation (in NYS)

0

D

Project Name or Description: Split Body Recycling Packer Truck
Project Manager: George J . Mottarella, City Engineer
(name & title of Municipal Employee who can provide project information)
Address: 141 Oakland Beach Ave.
Rye, N.Y. 10580

--

Phone: 914-967-7461
E-mail: gmottarella@ryeny .gov

Project category: (check all that apply)
Recycling EquipmenVStructures/Facilities
Com posting EquipmenVStructures/Facilities D

D

Recycling Collection Vehicle(s)
[Z]
Waste Reduction EquipmenUStructures D

A. Total project cost

Please do NOT fill-in the green f ields.

$ 240,000.00
They will calculate values automatically D
B. Percent use for Recycling/Com posting
1 00 % (only projects from 50% to 100% dedicated qualify)
C. State Share Request (50% x Ax B) $ 120,000.00

Are the items in this pre-application completely purchased?
Are the items in this pre-application partly purchased?
Are the items in this pre-application not yet purchased ?

D
D
1ZJ

Step 2. Provide a brief SCOPE OF WORK for your project. (one paragraph)
Purchase a split body recycling packer truck and eliminate open body recycling trucks.

Municipal Waste Reduction & Recycling Capita l Project Pre-Application (continued)
Step 3. Describe what will be ACCOMPLISHED with t his grant (one paragraph).
The split body packer truck has two separate compartments, one for co-mingled materials, the
other for pulp, and is designed to compact and ej ect separately. The split body packer truck
provides a lower height to dump recycling boxes, reducing possible injuries to operators.
A packer truck will also eliminate multiple trips for dumping due to compaction capabilities.

Step 4. Provide a BUDGET.
You may fill in the fonn below or submit a separate attachment for your budget.
Period Covered by this Grant Request 2011 _ _ _ __
Total Cost

Recyding
Use Percent

$240,000.00

100 %

Description of expense
J'"'l.,..

Purchase Spilt Packer Truck
~

;

;;;;

-=

It

=

l

~

to 2017

-

~--

,..,___

-·;:r

E
I'"

I

1,;1

!

~

~

-=
Attach an addtronal chart, if necessary

-

L

-=

rr
n
[

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

Eligible Cost
$240,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Total Eligible Expenses - $

240,000.00

State Aid Requested (50% of Total Eligible Expenses)- $

120,000.00

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 16

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Authorization for the City Manager to
enter into an Agreement with the County of Westchester
for 2015-2016 Prisoner Transportation Services.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Mayor and Council authorize the City Manager to enter into
the agreement.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND:
The Agreement between the Westchester County Department of Correction and the City of Rye
to provide prisoner transportation between the City of Rye and the Westchester County Jail for
a two-year period commencing January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016.

See attached documentation.
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April 24. 20 15

Mr. Frank Cuirass
City Manager's Office
City of Rye
I 05 1 Boston Post Road
Rye. New York 10580
Dear Mr. Culross,
Pl ease find enclosed an original agreement between the Department of Correction and the City
of Rye to provide prisoner transportatio n between the City of Rye and the Westchester County
Jail for the tcnn commencing January I, 2015 and tenninating December 3 1. 2016. Please
remember to include a Certificate of Insurance (general liability and auto liability) naming
Westchester Co unty as additional insured. If you arc self-insured, pl ease provide a Sel f- lnsured
Employers Workers' Compensation Fonn (S II 2) which certifies that compensation has been
secured.
Aller filling out and s igning all pertinent sections and returning the original copy to this office. a
fully executed copy wi ll be returned to you.
If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to me at (914) 23 1-1336.
Si ncerely,

Susan Ghcevarghese
Assistan t Director of AdministTative Services
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PRISONER TRANSPORTATION--ZONE RATE
THIS AGREEMENT, made this _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _, 2015
by and between:

THE COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER, a municipal corporation ofthe State
ofNew York having an office and place of business in the Michaelian Office
Building, 148 Martine Avenue, White Plains, New York 10601
(hereinafter referred to as the "County")
and

CITY OF RYE, a municipality of the State of New York having its office and
place of business at 1051 Boston Post Road, Rye, New York l 0580
(hereinafter referred to as the "Municipality")

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 500-c and 500-d of the Corrections law
prisoners are required to be transported from local municipalities to the Westchester County
Jail in Valhalla, New York; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Municipality agree to cooperate in providing
such prisoner transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions herein
contained, the County and the Municipality agree as follows:

1. PRISONER TRANSPORTATION: Except for prisoners arrested by the
Westchester County Department of Public Safety, the Municipality shall provide round trip
prisoner transportation using its own police department personnel and vehicles between the
Municipality and the Westchester County Department of Correction for all prisoners
remanded to the Westchester County Jail by court order or required to appear before the local

.w.J

. ,J_k.(M.'i .

......=.m. . . . .

w.

.z . . . .

..... t.W.

.

n.i

.

court within the Municipality. The County will reimburse the Municipality for the actual
number of round trips. All municipalities, where possible, shall hold prisoners for one daily
trip to the Department of Correction.

2. REIMBURSEMENT: The Municipality shall be reimbursed by the County
for prisoner transportation services at the rate plus mileage per round trip indicated in the
Zone Rate Plan attached hereto as Appendix "A" and made a part hereof. The rate will be
paid as follows:
For transportation to County Jail subsequent to arrest- 1 round trip plus
mileage;
For Transportation from County Jail to local court; no return- 1 round trip
plus mileage;
For Transportation from County Jail to local court; remand to County Jail,
where the time expended does not exceed three (3) hours- 2 round trips plus
mileage;
Only in the following circumstances will an hourly rate and mileage fee be paid,
as an alternative to the zone rate set forth above:
a.

Transportation of female prisoners ( l officer and 1 matron). A minimum
of four (4) hours will be reimbursed for a matron; or

b.

Transportation of seven (7) or more prisoners (requiring an additional
officer); or

c.

Transportation of prisoners charged with Class A felonies OR classified by
Department of Correction as an "A" or "AA" prisoner considered to
present danger may warrant (requiring an additional officer); or

d.

Transportation from County Jail to local court and remand to County Jail
where time expended exceeds three (3) hours.

In the event that any one of conditions "a" through "d" above are met, then the
actual per hour personnel costs incurred by the Municipality will be paid at the hourly wage

2

..Y#.GIOIJQ£,,

.t-tm, .... c..... v•=•

and fringe benefit cost as determined in the applicable collective bargaining agreement
between the Municipality and the Municipal Police Association for police officers and/or
matrons plus a mileage.

Reimbursement for mileage shall be at the rate of fifty-six cents ($.56) per mile,
or at the then current Internal Revenue Service mileage rate, multiplied by the mileage
indicated in Appendix "A".

3. MEALS: The County shall reimburse the Municipality for meals provided to
post-arraignment prisoners for the actual and reasonable costs incurred and receipts submitted as
part of the municipality's monthly voucher submitted to the Department of Correction.

4. TERM: This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2015 and shall
terminate on December 31, 2016. The County may, upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the Municipality, terminate this Agreement in whole or in part when it deems it to be in its
best interest. In such event, the Municipality shall be compensated and the County shall be
liable only for payment for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

5. PAYMENT: Requests for reimbursement shall be submitted by the
Municipality on a monthly basis on properly executed County claim forms and paid after
approval by the Commissioner of Correction. The number of round trips made, prisoners
transported and dates should be listed on the claim forms submitted to the Department of
Correction. Reimbursement request shall be subject to audit by the County, and the Municipality
shall keep and make available to the County such detailed books and records as are reasonably
necessary to substantiate the basis for reimbursement. The Municipality shall not be entitled to
reimbursement for any prisoner transportation expense not specifically provided for herein.

The total aggregate cost to the County under this Agreement and the agreements
with the other municipalities for zone rate prisoner transportation pursuant to the Resolution
approved by the Board of Acquisition and Contract on April 2, 20 15, shall not

3

exceed $1,238,879. This Agreement shall be deemed executory only to the extent of the
monies appropriated and available for the purpose of this Agreement and no liability on
account hereof shall be incurred by the County beyond the amount of such monies.

6. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION: All personnel and vehicles
engaged in prisoner transportation duties shall at all times remain and be deemed the
employees and property of the Municipality. In addition to, and not in limitation of the
insurance provisions contained in Schedule "B" of this Agreement, the Municipality agrees
to indemnify, defend and hold the County, its officers, employees and agents harmless from
and against any and all liability, loss, damage or expense the County may suffer as a result of
any and all claims, demands, causes of action or judgments arising directly or indirectly out
of the transportation of prisoners for which reimbursement is sought hereunder for losses
arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of the Municipality, its agents or employees.

7. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This A!,rreement constitutes the entire and integrated
agreement between and among the parties hereto and supersedes any and all prior negotiations,
agreements and conditions, whether written or oral. Any modification or amendment to this
Agreement shall be void unless it is in writing and subscribed by the party to be charged.
8. APPLICABLE LAW: This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State ofNew York.

9. APPROVALS: This Agreement is subject to the approval of the Westchester
County Board of Legislators, the Westchester County Board of Acquisition and Contract and
the governing legislative body of the Municipality.

4
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Municipality have executed

this Agreement on the

day of

, 2015.

THE COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER

By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
(Name)
(Title)

Kevin M. Cheverko
Commissioner of Correction

Approved by the Westchester County Board of Legislators by Act No 10-2015 on
the 91h day of February, 2015.

Approved by the Board of Acquisition and Contract of the County of Westchester on
the 2nd day of April, 2015.

Approved by t h e - - - - - - - - - - - - of t h e - - - - - - - - - - - - on the
day of
, 20_

Approved as to form and
manner of execution:

Approved as to form and
manner of execution:

Assistant County Attorney
The County of Westchester
KJI!dcr/Zonc Rate Agmt. 15
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MUNICIPALITY'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW YORK

)

) ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

On this _ _ _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _, 2015, before me personally came
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ' to me known, and known to me to be the
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - o f _____________________________
the municipal corporation described in and which executed the within instrument, who being by me
duly sworn did depose and say that he, the said - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - resides at

and that he is - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - of said municipal corporation.

Notary Public

County

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
(Municipality)

1,~~~--~~--~~--~~------~-----------------------

(0fficer other than officer signing contract)
certify that I am the -----------------,,.,....,......,....--------------of the
(Title)
(Name of Municipality)
(the" Municipality .. ) a corporation duly organized in good standing under the
(Law under which organized, e.g., the New York Village
Law, Town Law, General Municipal Law)

named in the foregoing agreement that-------:=-----------=----------...,.....-------(Person executing agreement)
who signed said agreement on behalf of the Municipality was, at the time of execution
---------.......,....,,.....--:------,---------------·of the Municipality,
(Title of such person),
that said agreement was duly signed for on behalf of said Municipality by authority of its
(Town Board, Village Board, City Council)
thereunto duly authorized, and that such authority is in full force and effect at the date hereof
(Signature)
STATE OF NEW YORK )
ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER)
, 2015, before me personally came _ _ _ _ __
On this ___ day of
------------------- whose signature appears above, to me known, and know to be the
_______________________ of ________________________________
(title)
the municipal corporation described in and which executed the above certificate, who being by
me duly sworn did depose and say that he, the said--------------------------resides at
, and that he is
of said municipal corporation.
the
(title)
Notary Public

·'~~·i%13J,vvi£WiQIQIQI&$1QII

:.:.::
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County

APPENDIX A
ZONE PLAN REIMBURSEMENT RATES
WITH DISTANCE TRAVELED TO AND FROM
WESTCHESTER COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTION
(Effective Term: January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016)

POLICE AGENCY
ZONE #1
(1- 10 Miles)
Reimbursed Rate Per Round Trip:

ROUND TRIP DISTANCE
(1/1115- 12/31/15) $192.96
(1/1/15- 12/31/16) $197.78

Plus mileage reimbursed at $.56 (or the then current IRS mileage rate) times distance.
Elmsford, Village
Sleepy Hollow, Village
Pleasantville, Village
Tarrytown, Village

ZONE #2
(11 - 20 Miles)
Reimbursed Rate Per Round Trip:

6 Miles
8 Miles
8 Miles
10 Miles

(111115- 12/31/15) $202.62
(1/1/16-12/31/16) $207.69

Plus mileage reimbursed at $.56 (or the then current IRS mileage rate) times distance.
Irvington, Village
Briarcliff Manor, Village
New Castle, Town
North Castle, Town
Dobbs Ferry, Village
Ardsley, Village
Scarsdale, Village
Ossining, Village
Hastings-on-Hudson, Village

12 Miles
14 Miles
16 Miles
16 Miles
17 Miles
18 Miles
19 Miles
20 Miles
20 Miles

ZONE #3
(21 - 30 Miles)
Reimbursed Rate Per Round Trip:

(1/1/15- 12/31/15) $212.25
(1/1/16 -12/31/16) $217.55

Plus mileage reimbursed at $.56 (or the then current IRS mileage rate) times distance.

Rye Brook, Village
Rye, City
Tuckahoe, Village
Eastchester, Town
Port Chester, Village
Mamaroneck, Village
Pelham, Town
ZONE #4
(31 -40 Miles)
Reimbursed Rate Per Round Trip:

23 Miles
25 Miles
25 Miles
25 Miles
28 Miles
30 Miles
30 Miles

((1/1/15- 12/31/15) $221.93
(1/1/16- 12/31/16) $227.48

Plus mileage reimbursed at $.56 (or the then current IRS mileage rate) times distance.

Pelham Manor, Village

35 Miles
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SCHEDULE "B"
STANDARD INSURANCE PROVISIONS
(MUNICIPALITY)
1. Prior to commencing work, the Municipality shall obtain at its own cost and expense
the required insurance from insurance companies licensed in the State of New York, carrying a
Best's financial rating of A or better, and shall provide evidence of such insurance to the County of
Westchester, as may be required and approved by the Director of Risk Management of the County.
The policies or certificates thereof shall provide that thirty days prior to cancellation or material
change in the policy, notices of same shall be given to the Director of Risk Management of the
County of Westchester by registered mail, return receipt requested, for all of the following stated
insurance policies. All notices shall name the Municipality and identify the Agreement.
If at any time any of the policies required herein shall be or become unsatisfactory to
the County, as to form or substance, or if a company issuing any such policy shall be or become
unsatisfactory to the County, the Municipality shall upon notice to that effect from the County,
promptly obtain a new policy, submit the same to the Department of Risk Management of the
County of Westchester for approval and submit a certificate thereof. Upon failure of the
Municipality to furnish, deliver and maintain such insurance, the Agreement, at the election of the
County, may be declared suspended, discontinued or terminated. Failure of the Municipality to take
out, maintain, or the taking out or maintenance of any required insurance, shall not relieve the
Municipality from any liability under the Agreement, nor shall the insurance requirements be
construed to conflict with or otherwise limit the contractual obligations of the Municipality
concerning indemnification. All property losses shall be made payable to and adjusted with the
County.
In the event that claims, for which the County may be liable, in excess of the insured
amounts provided herein are filed by reason of any operations under the Agreement, the amount of
excess of such claims or any portion thereof, may be withheld from payment due or to become due
the Municipality until such time as the Municipality shall furnish such additional security covering
such claims in form satisfactory to the County of Westchester.

2. The Municipality shall provide proof of the following coverage (if additional coverage is
required for a specific agreement, those requirements will be described in the "Special Conditions"
of the contract specifications):
(a) Workers' Compensation. Certificate form C-1 05.2 (9/07) or State Fund
Insurance Company form U-26.3 is required for proof of compliance with the New York State
Workers' Compensation Law. State Workers' Compensation Board form DB-120.1 is required for
proof of compliance with the New York State Disability Benefits Law. Location of operation shall
be "All locations in Westchester County, New York."

Where an applicant claims to not be required to cany ei ther a Workers'
Compensation Policy or Disab ility Benefi ts Policy. or boiJ1. the empl oyer must complete NYS fonn
CE-200, avai lable to down load at: W\\w.wcb.state.nv.us (click on Employers/Businesses. then
Business PemlitsiLiccnses/Contracts to see instruction manual).
If the employer is self-insured for Worker's Compensation. he/she should present a
certificate from the New York State Worker's Compensation Board evidencing that fact (Either S l12. Certi fi cate of Workers' Compensatjo n Self-Insurance, or GS I- 105.2, Certi fi cate of Participation
in Workers' Compensation Group Sci f-Insurance).
(b) Employer's Liability with minimum limit of$ 100,000.00.
(c) Comm ercial General Liability Insurance w ith a minimum limit o f li ability per
occurrence o f S I ,000,000.00 for bodily injury and Sl 00,000.00 lo r property damage or a combined
single limit o f $ 1,000,000.00 (c.s.l.), naming the County o f Westchester as an additional insured .
This insurance shall indicate the follow ing coverages:
(i)
(ii )

Premises - Operations.
Broad Fonn Contractual.

(d) Automobile Liabili ty Insurance with a mini mum li mi t o f liabil ity per occuiTCnce
of S I ,000.000.00 per occurren ce fo r bodi ly injUiy and a minimum limit of $ 100,000.00 per
occurrence for property damage or a combin ed single limit o f S 1.000,000.00 unless otherw ise
indicated in the contract specificat ions. Tlus insurance shall include for bodily injury and property
damage the fo llowing coverages:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Owned automobiles.
Hi red automobiles.
Non-owned automobil es.

3. A ll policies of the Municipality shall be endorsed to contain the fo llowing cl auses:
(a)
Insurers s hall have no ri ght to recovery or subrogation against the County of
Westchester (incl ud ing its employees and other agents and agencies), it being the intenti on of the
panies that the insurance po licies so effected s hall protect both parties and be primary coverage fo r
any and all losses covered by the above-described i11surance.
(b)
The cl ause "other insurance provis ions" in a policy in \Vhich the County of
Westchester is nnmed as an ins ured. shall not apply to the County of Westchester.
(c)
T he insurance compani es issui11g the po licy or policies shall ha ve no
recourse against the County of Westchester (incl uding its agents and agencies as aforesaid) for
payment o f any premiums or for assessments under any fo nn of po licy.
(d)
Any and all deductibl es in the above described insurance poli cies shall be
assumed by and be for the account of, and at the sole risk o f, the Municipality.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 17

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Authorization for the City Manager to
enter into an Intermunicipal Agreement with the County of
Westchester for the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan
for the Police Departments of Westchester County.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Mayor and Council authorize the City Manager to enter into
the agreement.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan for the Police Departments of
Westchester County is to formalize operational procedures for Law Enforcement assistance to
participating agencies. Each member agrees to make its police personnel and equipment
available to the others, pursuant to the provisions of the New York State General Municipal Law
Section 209-m, upon the occurrence of a condition beyond the scope of its police resources.
The Agreement is for a five-year period commencing July 31, 2015 through July 30, 2020.
See attached documentation.

Robert P. Astorino
County Executive
Department of Public Safety
George N. Longworth
Commissioner-Sheriff

June 22, 2015
Mayor Joseph A. Sack
City of Rye
1051 Boston Post Road
Rye, New York 10580
Dear Mayor Sack:
The current Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Inter-Municipal Agreement (IMA) between the City of Rye and the
County of Westchester Department of Public Safety will expire on July 30, 2015. If you would like to continue
participating, please sign and notarize the attached IMA. Also included are the Municipality’s Acknowledgement
and Certificate of Authority.
Once the paperwork is completed, please return all to me for processing. A fully executed electronic copy will be
forwarded to you for your files.
If you have any questions, please contact me at (914) 864-7853 or email jkm3@westchestergov.com.
Sincerely,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
Westchester County Police
George N. Longworth
Commissioner-Sheriff
By:
Joy K. Mathai
Joy K. Mathai
Director of Administrative Services

GNL/JKM/cs
Attachment

A New York State Accredited
Law Enforcement Agency
Saw Mill River Parkway
Hawthorne, New York 10532

Telephone: (914) 864-7700

Website: westchestergov.com

AGREEMENT made this
and between:

day of

, 2015 by

THE COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER, a municipal corporation of the
State of New York, having an office and place of business in the
Michaelian Office Building, 148 Martine Avenue, White Plains, New
York, 10601
(hereinafter referred to as the “County”)
and
THE CITY OF RYE, a municipal corporation of
the State of New York having an office and place of business at
1051 Boston Post Road, Rye, New York, 10580
(hereinafter referred to as a “City, Town or Village,” as applicable)

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan for
the Police Departments of Westchester County, New York (the “Plan”) is to
formalize operational procedures for Law enforcement assistance to participating
agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Signatory Municipalities have executed the Plan by which
each member agrees to make available its police personnel and equipment to
the others upon the occurrence of a condition which is beyond the scope of its
police resources; and

WHEREAS, due to prevailing world, national and local security situations,
the ever increasing flow of intelligence, and actual threats directed against once

benign sites and facilities, the parties desire that the Plan be flexible and subject
to review and revision as necessary in a timely manner; and
WHEREAS, the Signatory Municipalities desire, inter alia, to ratify the
Agreement described herein and agree on the procedures for timely review and
revision of the Plan; and
WHEREAS, said Plan is governed by and liabilities and costs are
apportioned pursuant to the provisions of New York State General Municipal Law
(“General Municipal Law”) Section 209-m which provides, inter alia, that absent
agreement to the contrary, the municipality receiving police aid (the “Requesting
Municipality”) shall reimburse the municipality providing such aid (the “Assisting
Municipality”) for any money paid by it for police salaries and other expenses
incurred by it including damage to, or loss of, equipment and supplies.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions herein
contained, the parties agree as follows:
FIRST: Definitions
(1) Chief Executive Officer: The officer within a Signatory Municipality
who is authorized pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 209-m to request
or grant a request for police assistance from another Signatory Municipality.

(2) Department Head: Any police chief, Commissioner or other official in
command or acting command of the police department or police force of a
Signatory Municipality.
(3) Requesting Municipality: Any Signatory Municipality requesting the
assistance of the police force of another Signatory Municipality pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement.
(4) Assisting Municipality: Any Signatory Municipality providing
assistance to a Requesting Municipality pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
(5) Emergency: Shall have its common dictionary definition.
(6) Signatory Municipality: All municipalities that have signed this
Agreement, including the County.
SECOND: The Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan for the Police
Departments of Westchester County, New York and the Westchester County
Arson Zone Plan (collectively the “Plan”), are annexed hereto and incorporated
herein as Schedule “A”. The Parties further agree to the Plan, as same may be
amended from time to time in accordance with the review and revision
procedures set forth in said Plan.
THIRD: This Agreement shall commence on July 31, 2015 (the
”Commencement Date”) and terminate on July 30, 2020, unless terminated
sooner in accordance with the provisions hereof. Any prior agreement signed by

a party for this purpose shall be deemed terminated upon the commencement of
this Agreement.
FOURTH: The Signatory Municipalities hereby agree to render
appropriate police services to any Requesting Municipality whenever the Chief
Executive Officer of that municipality deems the general public interest requires
it. All such requests for assistance shall be made by the Chief Executive Officer
or Department Head of the Requesting Municipality and granted by the Chief
Executive Officer or Department Head of each Assisting Municipality as set forth
in the Plan.
FIFTH: The cost of police services provided pursuant to this Agreement
shall be paid by the Requesting Municipality subject to the following exceptions:
(a) The police services provided by the County shall be without cost to the
Requesting Municipality.
(b) The police services provided by each Assisting Municipality shall be
reimbursed as provided in Section 209-m of the General Municipal Law, as same
may be amended, except as provided above in Paragraph (a).
(c) The Requesting Municipality shall reimburse the County and each
Assisting Municipality for all liability for damages arising out of acts performed by
the Assisting Municipality in rendering aid. In addition, the Requesting
Municipality shall provide defense for and defend, at its sole expense, any and all
claims, demands or causes of action directly or indirectly resulting from the

rendering of aid by the County and each Assisting Municipality. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Requesting Municipality shall not be liable for any damages
resulting from any intentional wrongs or reckless conduct by the police force of
the Assisting Municipality.
(d) The requesting Municipality shall reimburse the County and each
Assisting Municipality for all expenses incurred pursuant to the provisions of
Section 207-c of the General Municipal Law, as same may be amended, and for
any award of compensation made pursuant to the Workers’ Compensation Law
for salaries and expenses paid to officers of the County and each Assisting
Municipality who are injured while rendering assistance to the Requesting
Municipality pursuant to the Agreement.
SIXTH: Any party to this agreement may withdraw at any time, upon thirty
(30) days written notice to each of the other parties, and thereafter such
withdrawing party shall no longer be a party to this Agreement; but this
Agreement shall continue to exist among the remaining parties.

SEVENTH: (a) The Westchester County Chiefs of Police Association
(“WCCOPA”) shall be responsible for the administration and future amendments
or revision of the Plan. Administration shall entail, but not be limited to, the
development of an organized effort, identification of county-wide special
equipment, and interface with auxiliary services and agencies for the
development of protocols and assumed responsibilities.

(b) A sub-committee of the WCCOPA will review the Plan at least once a
year and formulate recommendations for amendments or revisions as necessary.
EIGHTH: The rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement shall be
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of each municipality which has
executed this Agreement with the County.
NINTH: As to any signatory municipality, this Agreement shall not be
enforceable until signed by both parties and all applicable legal approvals have
been obtained.
TENTH: If any term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or void or unenforceable, the remainder of the
terms and provisions of this Agreement shall in no way be affected, impaired, or
invalidated, and to the extent permitted by applicable law, any such term, or
provision shall be restricted in applicability or reformed to the minimum extent
required for such to be enforceable. This provision shall be interpreted and
enforced to give effect to the original written intent of the parties prior to the
determination of such invalidity or unenforceability.
ELEVENTH: In addition to the aforementioned General Municipal Law
Section 209-m, this Agreement shall be subject to any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this
Agreement on the day and year first above written.

THE COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER

By______________________________
George N. Longworth
Commissioner - Sheriff
THE CITY OF RYE

By______________________________
Joseph A. Sack
Mayor
Approved by the Westchester County Board of Legislators on the 11th day of May, 2015.
Approved by the Board of Acquisition and Contract of the County of Westchester on the
18th day of June, 2015.
Approved as to form and
manner of execution:
__________________________
Assistant County Attorney
County of Westchester
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MUNICIPALITY'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW YORK

)
) ss.:

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

On this

day of

, 2015, before me personally came ____________

, to me known, and known to me to be the __________________________ of
___________, the municipal corporation
described in and which executed the within instrument, who being by me duly sworn did depose
and say that he/she, the said

___________________

resides at ______________________ and that he/she is the ____________________________ of
said municipal corporation.

Notary Public

County

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
(Municipality)
I,

, certify that I am the
(Officer other than officer signing contract)
of the _________________________________
(Name of Municipality)

(Title)

(the "Municipality") a corporation duly organized in good standing under the
___________________
(Law under which organized, e.g., the New York Village Law, Town Law, General Municipal Law)
named in the foregoing agreement that

who signed said
(Person executing agreement)

agreement on behalf of the Municipality was, at the time of execution ______
(Title of such person),

of

the Municipality, that said agreement was duly signed for on behalf of said Municipality by
authority of its
(Town Board, Village Board, City Council)

thereunto duly authorized,

and that such authority is in full force and effect at the date hereof.

(Signature)
STATE OF NEW YORK )
ss.:
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER)
On this

day of

, 2015, before me personally came
whose signature appears above, to me known, and know to be the
of

,
(Title)
the municipal corporation described in and which executed the above certificate, who being by
me duly sworn did depose and say that he, the said
resides at
, and that
he/she is the
of said municipal corporation.
(Title)

Notary Public

County

SCHEDULE "A"
SEE ATTACHED

THE MUTUAL AID AND RAPID RESPONSE PLAN
FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENTS OF
WESTCHESTER COUNTY, NEW YORK
PURPOSE
To establish procedures for the Police Departments of Westchester County to
provide the uninterrupted delivery of police service during those situations that
exceed the resources of any individual Department.
BACKGROUND
It is the responsibility of the police to be prepared and guided when dealing with
major incidents whether they are criminal in nature or natural disasters. rapid
response and sound planning can often prevent loss of life, damage to property and
prevent an incident from escalating.
POLICY
It is the policy of the Police Departments of Westchester County to promptly provide
Mutual Aid and Rapid Response in the form of manpower and equipment under the
County Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Plan, (hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”)
upon the request of any participating agency.
DEFINITIONS
1.

Mutual Aid and Rapid Response Incident: An incident requiring activation of
the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response is defined as a major incident or
occurrence which necessitates a Police Department, within Westchester
County, to summons immediate wide scale assistance.

2.

Major Incidents: Means any event, generally of an emergency nature, that
involves actual or potential personal injury or property damage arising from a
natural disaster, manmade disaster, civil disturbance or terrorist action.

3.

Natural Disaster: Means those incidents in which the forces of nature threaten
the lives, safety or property of numerous persons; i.e., floods, hurricanes,
earthquakes, explosions, tornadoes, landslides, drought, infestation or
significant snowfall/blizzard.

4.

Manmade Disaster: Means incidents in which the forces of man threaten the
lives, safety or property of numerous persons; i.e., nuclear/radiological
accidents, chemical spills, major railroad accidents or aircraft crashes.

5.

Civil Disturbance: Means an action by any group that poses a substantial
threat to peace, life or property or any tumultuous or violent activity that
creates a Grave risk of causing public alarm.
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6.

Terrorist Action: Is defined as a politically motivated, hostile action taken by a
person or group whose intent is the commission of violent acts designed to
instill fear, communicate a message and/or demand some governmental
action.

7.

Requesting Agency: A Police Department located within the geographical
confines of the County of Westchester that is requesting Mutual Aid from other
police agencies, which are signatories to the Mutual Aid and Rapid Response
Plan for the Police Departments of Westchester County, New York.

8.

Responding Agency: A Police Department located within the geographical
confines of the County of Westchester that is responding to a request for
Mutual Aid from other police agencies, which are signatories to the Mutual Aid
and Rapid Response Plan for the Police Departments of Westchester County,
New York.

9.

Zone Coordinator: Each Zone of response will designate a Zone Coordinator,
who shall be responsible for coordinated Zone response; e.g., response to
locations outside of Westchester County as well as coordination of mock
activations of the Plan.

10. Incident Command System: The accepted system to be utilized to coordinate
multi-agency responses to incidents.
11. Incident Commander: Is defined as the highest ranking member of the
requesting Department at the scene, or his/her designee.
12. Inner Perimeter: Is defined as the immediate area of containment around an
incident site.
13. Outer Perimeter: Is defined as the peripheral control area surrounding the
inner perimeter, providing a safe zone for access to or egress from the inter
perimeter as well as defining the limit of access by unauthorized persons.
14. Staging Area: Is defined as a location selected generally within the outer
perimeter to facilitate arriving resources and personnel responding for
assignments.
15. Command Post: Is defined as the post from which the Incident Commander
and his staff coordinate the Department’s response to a major emergency.
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
16. General Municipal Law §209-M. Outside service by local police; civil
disturbance control.
A. (Subdivision 2). Notwithstanding the provisions of any general, special or
local law, or any county, city or village charter, the Chief Executive Officer
of a local government, whenever he deems that the public interest
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B.

C.

D.

requires it, may request the Chief Executive Officer of any other local
government to detail, assign and make available for duty and use in the
local government for which the request is made, any part of the forces,
equipment and supplies of the Police Department, police force or parkway
police force of the local government of which the request is made. The
Chief Executive Officer of the local government of which the request is
made is hereby authorized and empowered to grant the request so made.
(Subdivision 3). A local government may, by local law, delegate to the
Chief of Police of its Police Department or police force, the powers hereby
granted to the Chief Executive Officer to request and grant police
assistance.
(Subdivision 4). If the Chief Executive Officer of any such local
government is absent or disabled, the Chief of Police of the local
government may make any such request or may grant any such request,
as the case may be.
(Subdivision 5). The local government receiving police aid pursuant to this
Section shall assume the liability for all damages arising out of any act
performed in rendering such aid and shall reimburse the assisting local
government of any monies paid by it for salaries or for other expenses
incurred by it including damage to or loss of equipment and supplies. As
assisting local government may assume such loss, damage expenses or
cost for such equipment and supplies and donate such services to the
receiving local government. While engaged in duty and rendering such
services in such local government, the Officers and members of such
Police Department or police force shall have the same powers, duties,
rights, benefits, privileges and immunities as if they were performing their
duties in the local government in and by which they are normally
employed.

ZONES OF RESPONSE
17. County-Wide participants shall consist of the following Departments:
A.
B.
C.
D.

Department
Rapid Response
Metropolitan Transportation
Authority Police Department; Four (4)
New York State Police;
Eight (8)
New York City Department
of Environmental Protection; Three (3)
Westchester County Department
of Public Safety
Eight (8)

TOTALS:

Twenty-Three (23)

Delayed Response
Ten
Twelve

(10)
(12)

Ten

(10)

Twenty

(20)

Fifty-Two (52)

18. When a County-Wide participant requests assistance to this Plan, they will
become a member of any Zone in which they have the need for assistance.
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A.

E.g., assistance for an event at Tibbett’s Brook Park, a County park, the
Westchester County Department of Public Safety will be a member of
Zone “B” for the purpose of requesting aid.

B.

For an event at the Croton/Harmon Train Station, the Metropolitan
Transportation Authority Police Department will be a member of Zone “A”
for the purpose of requesting aid.

19. When a County-Wide participant receives a request for assistance under this
Plan, they will become a member of the Zone from which the request for
assistance is being made and will respond accordingly.
20. Zone “A” (ADAM) shall consist of the following Departments:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
J.
K.
L.
M.
N.
O.
P.
Q.
R.

Department
Rapid Response
Bedford (Town);
One (1)
Briarcliff (Village);
One (1)
Buchanan (Village);
Zero (0)
Croton-on-Hudson (Village);
One (1)
Lewisboro (Town);
Zero (0)
Mt. Kisco (Village);
One (1)
Mount Pleasant (Town);
One (1)
New Castle (Town);
One (1)
North Castle (Town);
One (1)
North Salem (Town);
Zero (0)
Ossining (Town);
Zero (0)
Ossining (Village);
Two (2)
Peekskill (City);
Four (4)
Pleasantville (Village);
One (1)
Pound Ridge (Town);
Zero (0)
Sleepy Hollow (Village);
One (1)
Somers (Town);
Zero (0)
Yorktown (Town).
One (1)

21. TOTALS:

Sixteen (16)
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Delayed Response
Two
(2)
Two
(2)
One
(1)
One
(1)
Zero
(0)
Two
(2)
Three
(3)
Three
(3)
Two
(2)
Zero
(0)
Zero
(0)
Eight
(8)
Seven
(7)
Two
(2)
Four
(4)
Three
(3)
Zero
(0)
Five
(5)
Forty-five (45)

22. Zone “B” (BAKER) shall consist of the following Departments:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
J.

Department
Rapid Response
Ardsley (Village);
One (1)
Dobbs Ferry (Village);
One (1)
Elmsford (Village);
One (1)
Greenburgh (Town);
Three (3)
Hastings-on-Hudson (Village); One (1)
Irvington (Village);
Zero (0)
Scarsdale (Village);
Two (2)
Tarrytown (Village);
One (1)
White Plains (City).
Five (5)
Yonkers (City);
Five (5)

TOTALS:

Twenty (20)

Delayed Response
Three
(3)
Three
(3)
Three
(3)
Twelve (12)
Three
(3)
Three
(3)
Four
(4)
Three
(3)
Ten
(10)
Ten
(10)
Fifty-Four (54)

23. Zone “C” (CHARLIE) shall consist of the following Departments:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.
I.
J.
K.
L.
M.
N.
O.

Department
Bronxville (Village);
Eastchester (Town);
Harrison (Town);
Larchmont (Village);
Mamaroneck (Town);
Mamaroneck (Village);
Mt. Vernon (City);
New Rochelle (City);
Pelham (Village);
Pelham Manor (Village);
Port Chester (Village);
Rye (City);
Rye Brook (Village);
SUNY Purchase
Tuckahoe (Village).
TOTALS:

Rapid Response
One (1)
Two (2)
Two (2)
One (1)
Two (2)
Two (2)
Four (4)
Four (4)
One (1)
One (1)
Three (3)
Two (2)
One (1)
One (1)
One (1)
Twenty-eight (28)
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Delayed Response
Three
(3)
Five
(5)
Eight
(8)
Two
(2)
Two
(2)
Four
(4)
Ten
(10)
Six
(6)
Four
(4)
Three
(3)
Five
(5)
Four
(4)
Three
(3)
Two
(2)
Five
(5)
Sixty-six

(66)

LEVELS OF RESPONSE
24. Alert Notification: A situation exists of serious proportions and
Departments within the Zone of Alert should prepare to send the
minimum pre-arranged manpower (rapid response) to the identified
location. DO NOT RESPOND AT THIS TIME!
25. Pre-Zone Response: (Approximately eight (8) uniformed officers).
A situation exists that requires additional police resources but does not
require a full Zone response. The Westchester County Department of
Public Safety will respond with the minimum pre-arranged manpower for
a rapid response to the identified location.
Note: The Westchester County Department of Public Safety is prepared
to initiate Incident Command System protocols if requested to do so by
the requesting agency.
26. Level One (1) Response: (Approximately forty five (45) uniformed
officers). Departments within the Zone of Alert are requested to
immediately dispatch, the minimum pre-arranged manpower
for a rapid response to the identified location.
27. Level Two (2) Response: (Approximately sixty five (65) uniformed
officers). A second Zone is being requested to dispatch the minimum
pre-arranged manpower for a rapid response to the identified location.
Note: The second Zone of response will be identified by the requesting
agency.
28. Level Three (3) Response: (Approximately ninety (90) uniformed
officers). Departments from all Zones are requested to dispatch the
minimum pre-arranged manpower for a rapid response to the identified
location.
29. Level Four (4) Response: (Approximately two hundred twenty (220)
uniformed officers). Departments from all Zones are requested to
dispatch the maximum number of pre-arranged manpower (delayed
response) to the identified location.
ACTIVATION OF THE PLAN
30. All requests for assistance under the Plan will be made via the
Westchester County Hot Line System (Hot Line).
31. The following are example announcements to be followed when
activating the Plan via the Hot Line:
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Alert Notification [Prepare Only]:
Station (number and jurisdiction) announcing an Alert
Notification. A situation exists that may require a mutual aid
response. Specifically, there is a ______ (nature of the
incident).
Departments in Zone ____ should prepare to
dispatch the pre-arranged rapid response to this jurisdiction.
NO NOT RESPOND AT THIS TIME!
Pre-Zone Response:
Station (number and jurisdiction) to the Westchester County
Department of Public Safety, a situation exists requiring a
mutual aid Pre-Zone Response. Specifically, there is a
______ (nature of incident) we are requesting the
Westchester County Department of Public Safety send its
pre-arranged rapid response. The scene is located at
______ (specific address). The designated staging area is
located at ______ (specific address). At this time ______
(rank & name) is in command and the Command Post is
located at ______ (specific address).
Level One (1) Response [One Zone]:
Station (number and jurisdiction) to all stations on the Hot
Line, a situation exists within this jurisdiction requiring a
mutual aid Level One (1) Response. Specifically, there is a
______ (nature of incident) we are requesting rapid
response from Zone ______.
The scene is located at ______ (specific address).
The designated staging area is located at ______ (specific
address). At this time ______ (rank & name) is in command
and the Command Post is located at ______ (specific
address).
Level Two (2) Response [Two Zones]:
Station (number and jurisdiction) to all stations on the Hot
Line, a situation exists within this jurisdiction requiring a
mutual aid Level 2 Response. Specifically, there is a
______ (nature of incident) we are requesting rapid
response from Zones ____ and _____. The scene is located
at ______ (specific address). The designated staging area
is located at ______ (specific address). At this time ______
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(rank & name) is in command and the Command Post is
located at ______ (specific address).

Level Three (3) Response [All Zones]:
Station (number and jurisdiction) to all stations on the Hot
Line, A situation exists within this jurisdiction requiring a
mutual aid Level 3 Response. Specifically, there is a
______ (nature of incident) we are requesting rapid
response from all Zones. The scene is located at ______
(specific address). The designated staging area is located at
______ (specific address). At this time ______ (rank &
name) is in command and the Command Post is located at
______ (specific address).
Level Four (4) Response [All Zones]:
Station (number and jurisdiction) to all stations on the Hot
Line, A situation exists within this jurisdiction requiring a
mutual aid Level 4 Response. Specifically, there is a
______ (nature of incident) we are requesting all available
uniform personnel amounting to a delayed response from all
Zones. The scene is located at ______ (specific address).
The designated staging area is located at ______ (specific
address). At this time ______ (rank & name) is in command
and the Command Post is located at ______ (specific
address).
DUTIES OF REQUESTING AGENCY
32. Identify the nature and location of the incident.
33. Identify the location of the Command Post.
34. Identify the Staging Area or location of response.
35. Identify the Incident Commander or any change in command.
36. Identify any and all specialized equipment with which responding
officers should be equipped.
37. Memorialize the name, rank and command of responding officers.
38. Commence internal Departmental mobilization.
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DUTIES OF RESPONDING AGENCY
39. Authorize only the designated pre-arranged number of UNIFORMED
officers specific to the level of alert to respond.
40. Proceed directly to the location of requested response or the Staging
Area as directed.
RESPONSIBILITIES AT THE SCENE OF THE INCIDENT
41. The Incident Commander designated by the requesting agency shall be
in charge at the scene of the incident.
42. Uniformed officers detailed to the incident shall follow the direction of the
Incident Commander.
43. However, where the provided assistance involves the loan of a
Specialized Weapons and Tacticals (SWAT), hostage negotiation, bomb
disposal or canine unit, the Commander of that specialized unit shall be
responsible for implementation of the specific mission, as determined by
the Incident Commander of the requesting agency.
44. When taking law enforcement actions at the scene of the incident,
including use of force, uniformed officers from the responding agency
shall at all times adhere to their agency policies and procedures and
utilize only those weapons and tactics that they have been trained and
deemed qualified to use.
45. Uniformed officers on loan from the responding agency at an emergency
site shall regularly apprise the Command Post concerning the continued
status of the emergency, line-of-duty injuries or their need for relief.
DEPLOYMENT OF RADIO INTREROPERABLITY SYSTEM (RIOS) VEHICLES:
46. A Radio Interoperability System (RIOS) vehicle shall be deployed to the
scene of all formal mutual aid requests:
Zone A: Westchester County DPS RIOS vehicle
Zone B: Greenburgh PD RIOS vehicle
Zone C: Mt. Vernon PD RIOS vehicle
47. Should the assigned RIOS vehicle be unavailable, the Westchester
County DPS RIOS vehicle shall be requested. Should the Westchester
County DPS RIOS be unavailable, the nearest available RIOS vehicle
shall be requested.
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RELEASE OF PERSONNEL
48. The Incident Commander or his/her designee shall authorize release of
personnel from all responding agencies.
POST OCCURRENCE REPORTINGS
49. Within thirty (30) days of any activation of the Plan, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Requesting Agency shall prepare or cause to be prepared,
a memorandum including a summary of the facts and circumstances
surrounding the Incident, comments related to the effectiveness of the
Plan and recommendations for modification of the Plan and submit
same for the review of the Executive Board of the Westchester County
Chiefs of Police Association.
50. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the aforementioned memorandum,
the Executive Board of the Westchester County Chiefs of Police
Association will make a determination if modification to the Plan is
necessary.
ANNUAL TRAINING
51. In order to maintain an appropriate level of readiness, annual training
will be conducted.
ANNUAL REVIEW AND REVISION
52. A sub-committee of the Westchester County Chiefs of Police
Association will review the Plan at least once a year and formulate
recommendations for revisions as the need arises.
Updated October 29, 2013

10

WESTCHESTER COUNTY
ARSON ZONE PLAN

FIRE INVESTIGATION PROTOCOLS
Revised: April 2010

Introduction
Westchester County, through the Arson Task Force, is restructuring and updating the
Arson Zone Plan. The original Arson Zone Plan, begun in 1981, has worked very
well in some areas of the county. This program has countywide application and
serves as a comprehensive system for the investigation of all suspicious fires in
Westchester County. The implementation of standardized call-out procedures and
report writing is necessary.
The primary goal of the revised Arson Zone Plan remains the same as originally written
some twenty-nine years ago – to provide local Fire and Police Chiefs, upon request,
trained experts to assist in the determination of the cause and origin of suspicious
fires. Additional goals are to bring together, into teams, police and fire professionals
who are trained in fire investigation in order to realize the benefits of skills in cause
and origin matters, as well as to assist in the subsequent criminal investigations.
The primary objectives of the Arson Zone Protocols are:
Establish a quality service to assist chiefs in the determination of cause and origin
of suspicious fires throughout the county.
Establish requirements of police and fire professionals engaged as Cause and
Origin Team members.
Establish call-out procedures and dispatches for Cause and Origin Teams.
Establish forms and report writing procedures for Cause and Origin Teams.
Team Structure
The Arson Zone Plan will be 5 Zones (see attached list). This will enhance the
determination of Cause and Origin of suspicious fires and assist in the successful
arrest and prosecution of arson cases in Westchester County.
The Cause and Origin Teams, one in each zone, will consist of at least four (4) fire
investigators and no more than six (6) fire investigators appointed by the Executive
Board of the Arson Task Force. The Executive Board may also appoint no more than
two (2) adjunct members to each Zone Team.
Administration
Area Deputy Fire Coordinators:
Two (2) Area Deputy Fire Coordinators will be responsible for the administration
of Fire Investigation services in the Northern and Southern sections of the county.
These Area Deputy Fire Coordinators will be responsible for the provision and the
coordination of Fire Investigation services on scene, securing and coordinating
additional or special resources to assist in the work of the Cause and Origin
Teams, interagency relationships, education programs to the emergency services
and other groups, coordination among the teams, recruitment of team members
and other functions as assigned by the Fire Coordinator and Executive Board of
the Arson Task Force to support the efforts of this program.
2

Zone Directors:
The Police and Fire agencies will nominate Arson Zone Directors, who will be
appointed with the approval of the Executive Board of the Arson Task Force.
There will be two directors for each regional Zone, one from a law enforcement
agency and one from a fire agency.
Cause and Origin Team Members
Qualifications
All Cause and Origin Team Members (Fire Investigators) shall hold certification
for the Fire Behavior/Arson Awareness, Principles of Fire Investigation, and
the 80-hour Fire-Arson Investigation Course. Each of these programs are
prepared and presented through instructors qualified by the New York State
Office of Fire Prevention and Control. If New York State certifications are
not held, the individual will satisfactorily document and demonstrate
competence to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinators in accordance with the
standards reflected in the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 921
Guidelines.
All Cause and Origin Team Members (Adjunct Fire Investigators) shall hold
certification for the Fire Behavior/Arson Awareness and Principles of Fire
Investigation courses. The Adjunct Investigator will abide by the guidelines
as set forth in these protocols. In addition, Adjunct Investigators will be
required to complete the 80-hour Fire-Arson Investigation Course within 18
months of their conditional appointment as a Fire Investigator when filling a
vacancy to the Zone Team. If New York State certifications are not held, the
individual will satisfactorily document and demonstrate competence to the
Area Deputy Fire Coordinators in accordance with the standards reflected in
the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 921 Guidelines.
All Cause and Origin Team members must attend at least one Fire Investigation
Seminar annually. This may be on a local, state or national level.
Additional course work should include, and not be limited to: Fire/Arson
Investigation Seminar, Fire Investigative Photography, Interviewing
Techniques for the Fire Investigator, Fire Scene Evidence Collection,
Electrical Fire Cause Determination I, Electrical Fire Cause Determination II,
and Juvenile Firesetter Intervention Program Seminar. Each of these
programs are prepared and presented through instructors qualified by the New
York State Office of Fire Prevention and Control.
All Cause and Origin Team members will attend quarterly team meetings with the
Area Deputy Fire Coordinator and Arson Zone Directors.
All candidates for Cause and Origin Team membership will be required to submit
to the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Board a
recommendation from the Chief Officer of his/her law enforcement or fire
agency for appointment to the Cause and Origin Team (see attached form).
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All candidates must be active members of police or fire departments who have
been recommended for participation in this program by the chief of their
department.
Members of the Cause and Origin Teams will adhere to the Code of Ethics which
is appended to this document. Members whose actions deviate from this Code
of Ethics or who do not follow the performance and participation standards
will be subject to removal as a team member. Concerns about a member’s
actions will be brought to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator who will, in turn,
discuss the issue with the Fire Coordinator. If it is felt that further action is
warranted, the matter will be discussed with and referred to the Executive
Board of the Arson Task Force for further action.
Requirements
Be at least 21 years of age, a career or volunteer firefighter and/or police officer
and physically capable of performing the tasks and responsibilities associated
with the Cause and Origin Teams.
Have a working knowledge of current Fire Service practices, tools and
procedures, and have a basic understanding of the New York State Fire
Reporting System.
Must have a valid New York State driver’s license and have transportation in
order to fulfill the responsibilities as a Cause and Origin Team member.
Must submit proof to the Arson Task Force Executive Board that a criminal
background check by the New York State Division of Criminal Justice
Services was conducted through the Westchester County Department of
Public Safety.
Notification and Response of Cause & Origin Team Members
All requests for services by a Cause and Origin Team from fire services and/or law
enforcement agencies will be requested through the Westchester County Department
of Emergency Services (60 Control). This does not dispense or eliminate a
responding investigator’s obligation to notify their department that they have been
requested by “60 Control” to respond as a member of the Cause and Origin Team.
The “60 Control” dispatcher will identify the location of the incident, and ascertain from
the Incident Commander, or their designee, if the C&O Team is to respond directly to
the scene or if the Team should respond to a nearby staging area. The dispatcher will
also try to obtain additional details relative to the incident that will be pertinent to the
Cause and Origin Team.
After a request for fire investigation assistance has been received, the Cause and Origin
Team will be activated by “60 Control”. The dispatchers will notify all Members of
the applicable Cause and Origin Team and the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator
responsible for the area where the incident is located. Team activation will follow the
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guidelines enumerated in DES Communication Division Policy & Procedure titled
“C&O Team Paging/Notification Policy”. When receiving notification, the Zone
Cause and Origin Team members will call “60 Control” to advise the dispatcher of
their availability and gather details concerning the situation. All members will phone
“60 Control” at (914) 231-1905.
In the event that there is insufficient response by members of the local Cause and Origin
Team to a request for assistance within ten (10) minutes, a second request will be
transmitted as per (C) above.
In the event that there is insufficient response by the members of the local Cause and
Origin Team to a request for services within this second ten (10) minutes, the
dispatcher will then contact the respective Area Deputy Fire Coordinator and follow
his instructions. If the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator cannot be contacted, then the
dispatcher will contact the second Area Deputy Fire Coordinator. If both
Coordinators cannot be reached within 10 minutes, the dispatcher will implement the
Communicator ™ notification procedure as enumerated in “C&O Team
Paging/Notification Policy”. If the respective Zone Team is unavailable, the
dispatcher will then transmit a page-out request for services of another adjacent Cause
and Origin Team in accordance with a pre-established “move-up” protocol as
monitored by “60 Control”. Also, if circumstances warrant, the Fire Incident
Commander, who according to state law is in charge of the fire scene, may always
request through “60 Control” the additional services of another team.
Cause and Origin Team members will respond to the investigation following notification
of their superiors. If equipment vans (Zone vehicle) are established to support the
field operations of the Cause and Origin Team in the county, at least one member will
be detailed to the van as a driver. The Team will respond directly to the scene unless
a staging area has been indicated by the I.C., as per B above.
Upon arrival at the scene, the Cause and Origin Team members will meet in order to
designate a Team Leader.
Notification of the District Attorney
The Area Deputy Fire Coordinator will, as soon as possible, notify the Duty Assistant in
the District Attorney’s Office through the Westchester County Department of Public
Safety Services at (914) 864-7700 in the following instances: (1) cases involving
casualty loss in excess of $1 million; (2) cases involving death; (3) explosion(s); and
(4) acts of terrorism. In the event that the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator is not on
scene, then the Cause and Origin Team Leader will ensure this notification is made.
Responsibilities of Team Leader
In the absence of the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator, the Cause and Origin Team Leader
will be responsible for directing the investigation/determination of cause and origin of
fires when the team is requested. In directing the investigation, the Cause and Origin
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Team Leader will ensure the preservation of evidence at the scene for the subsequent
collection by the investigating police agency or laboratory.
The Cause and Origin Team Leader will also be responsible for the coordination and
production of the Cause and Origin Team reports, and the timely submission of these
reports and all addenda, photographs, notes, etc., to the Area Deputy Fire
Coordinator.
The Cause and Origin Team, in consultation with the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator, the
Cause and Origin Team Leader or Fire Incident Commander may utilize a New York
State certified K-9 arson/accelerant dog as a resource. The responsibility and the
liability of the dog’s actions at a fire investigation scene will be held to the dog
handler and the sponsoring agency.
Investigations
The Area Deputy Fire Coordinator has the overall responsibility for the coordination of
the fire investigation when on scene. In the Coordinator’s absence, the Cause and
Origin Team Leader will assume these responsibilities.
The Area Deputy Fire Coordinator, or the Cause and Origin Team Leader for each
investigation, will delegate responsibilities to the participating Cause and Origin
Team members in order to make the best use of the talents of the team members and
resources. The following shall be required:
An Investigation Summary Report will be completed in all instances.
An Investigation Field Notes Form will be completed for all structural fires.
An Investigation Narrative Report will be completed for all structural fires. This
report, in addition to the Investigation Field Notes Form, will allow the
investigators to explain their findings and conclusions. This form will be filed
within 72 hours of the completion of the incident.
Preservation of a video and/or photographic record of the scene, including a Photo
Log.
Evidence collection and maintenance of records concerning the chain of evidence
custody.
A master log will be kept at the Department of Emergency Services for Fire Investigation
incident numbers. When the Cause and Origin Team is activated, the dispatcher will
issue the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator or the Cause and Origin Team Leader an
incident number for the report.
Cause and Origin Team folders will be given to each member with all required
paperwork for an investigation.
Upon completion of the investigation, the Team Leader is responsible to forward all
investigative reports, photographs, addendums, notes, and other relevant reports to the
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Area Deputy Fire Coordinator. This shall be done within 72 hours of the completion
of the investigation.
The Area Deputy Fire Coordinator is responsible to review all reports for completeness
and accuracy and effect any corrections necessary with the Team Leader and
Investigators that responded to the call. These reports will then be placed into a case
folder for retention in the designated filing location at the Department of Emergency
Services.
All reports and materials generated during the course of the investigation are done so on
behalf of the Department of Emergency Services and will be retained in the normal
course of business as required.
Reports
Forms for Report Writing
Each investigation folder will contain the following reports:
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Summary Report (1
page, 5 carbon copies)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Narrative Report (1
to multiple pages, as needed, depending on incident)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Field Notes Form
(6 pages)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Interview Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Fire Scene Sketch (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Vehicle Sheet (Short Form) (1
page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Vehicle Sheet (Detail) (3 pages)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Photo Log Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Evidence Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Body Sketch Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Consent to Search Form (1 page)
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Report Filing
Non-Incendiary Fires
The Investigation Summary Report is to be filed in all incident investigations,
even when the cause and origin of the fire is determined to be non-incendiary.
The distribution of the Investigation Summary Report will be as follows:
The original (white sheet) will be submitted by the Team Leader to the
F.D. Incident Commander.
The Team Leader will give the blue sheet to the Local Police Agency.
The Team Leader will forward the remaining sheets (yellow, green, pink
and gold) to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator for dissemination, as
noted below.
The yellow sheet of the report is retained in a binder at the
Department of Emergency Services.
The green sheet of the report will be retained in the case folder at
the Department of Emergency Services.
The pink sheet of the report will be forwarded to the Office of the
District Attorney, Attention: Arson Coordinator, Richard J.
Daronco Courthouse, 111 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.,
White Plains, NY 10601.
The gold sheet of the report will be retained by the Area Deputy
Fire Coordinator (C&O) who covers that Zone, in which the
incident occurred.
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The Investigation Field Notes Form will be filed for all structural fires. This form
will be forwarded to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator for inclusion in the
case folder.
The Investigation Narrative Report will be filed for all structural fires. This will
assist to note the circumstances of the incident that may require additional
explanation of actions and facts found during the scene exam that lead the
investigation team to its final conclusion.
In all instances the appropriate additional reports and forms utilized by the Team
will be completed when necessary.
All reports and forms generated during the course of the investigation will be
forwarded to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator for inclusion in the case
folder. Copies of any reports or forms will only be disseminated by WCDES
staff pursuant to their protocols, and with the approval of the Area Deputy
Fire Coordinator.
Incendiary Fires
The Investigation Summary Report, the Investigation Field Notes Form, and the
Investigation Narrative Report, along with the all other appropriate reports
and forms used by the Team, will be submitted in all cases where there is a
determination that the cause and origin of the fire is incendiary.
The distribution of the Investigation Summary Report will be the same as in IX,
A, 1, above.
All reports and forms generated during the course of the investigation will be
forwarded to the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator for inclusion in the case
folder.
Because the fire has been determined to be incendiary in nature, a crime of
suspected arson has allegedly been committed and the information in all
reports and addenda is confidential and now part of a criminal investigation.
A single copy of all generated reports, photographs, etc., will be forwarded by the
Area Deputy Fire Coordinator, or his designee, to both the Local Police
Agency and the Westchester County District Attorney’s Office. The FD
Incident Commander will only receive the original (white sheet) of the
Investigation Summary Report for the department’s records. No other copies
are to be disseminated without the consent of the Area Deputy Fire
Coordinator and the District Attorney’s Office.
Should the FD Incident Commander want to review the other reports generated in
the investigation, they will need to contact the Area Deputy Fire Coordinator
to arrange a time to do so.
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Cause and Origin Zone Listing
Fire Dept. # F.D. Name

Zone #

Police Dept.

229

Mount Vernon

1

Mount Vernon

230

New Rochelle

1

New Rochelle

251

White Plains

1

White Plains

252

Yonkers

1

Yonkers

210

Eastchester

2

Eastchester, Bronxville, Tuckahoe

216

Harrison

2

Harrison

222

Larchmont

2

Larchmont

223

Mamaroneck Twn

2

Mamaroneck Town

224

Mamaroneck Vill

2

Mamaroneck Village

239

Port Chester

2

Port Chester, Rye Brook

241

Purchase

2

Harrison

235

Pelham

2

Pelham

236

Pelham Manor

2

Pelham Manor

242

Rye

2

Rye City

250

West Harrison

2

Harrison

266

Rye Brook

2

Rye Brook

263

Archville

3

Mount Pleasant

201

Ardsley

3

Ardsley

205

Briarcliff

3

Briarcliff, Mt. Pleasant, Ossining Town
New Castle

209

Dobbs Ferry

3

Dobbs Ferry

211

Elmsford

3

Elmsford, Greenburgh

212

Fairview

3

Greenburgh

215

Greenville

3

Greenburgh

217

Hartsdale

3

Greenburgh

218

Hastings

3

Greenburgh
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Fire Dept. #

F.D. Name

Zone #

Police Dept.

219

Hawthorne

3

Mount Pleasant

220

Irvington

3

Irvington, Greenburgh

231

Sleepy Hollow

3

Sleepy Hollow, Mount Pleasant

233

Ossining

3

Ossining Village, Ossining Town

237

Pleasantville

3

Pleasantville, Mount Pleasant

238

Pocantico Hills

3

Mount Pleasant

243

Scarsdale

3

Scarsdale

246

Tarrytown

3

Tarrytown, Greenburgh

247

Thornwood

3

Mount Pleasant

248

Valhalla

3

Mount Pleasant

255

Buchanan

4

Buchanan

213

Continental Vill

4

Cortlandt NYSP, Peekskill

208

Croton

4

Croton, Cortlandt NYSP

226

Mohegan

4

Cortlandt NYSP, Peekskill, Yorktown

227

Montrose

4

Cortlandt NYSP, Peekskill

234

Peekskill

4

Peekskill

244

Somers

4

Somers NYSP

249

Verplanck

4

Cortlandt NYSP, Peekskill

253

Yorktown

4

Yorktown

202

Armonk

5

North Castle

258

Banksville

5

North Castle

203

Bedford Hills

5

Bedford

204

Bedford Village

5

Bedford

206

Chappaqua

5

New Castle, Mt. Pleasant

207

Croton Falls

5

Somers NYSP

214

Goldens Bridge

5

Somers NYSP

221

Katonah

5

Bedford

225

Millwood

5

Ossining Town, New Castle
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Fire Dept. #

F.D. Name

Zone #

Police Dept.

228

Mount Kisco

5

Mount Kisco, New Castle, Bedford

232

North White Plains

5

North Castle

240

Pound Ridge

5

Somers NYSP

245

South Salem

5

Somers NYSP

256

Vista

5

Somers NYSP

12

Westchester County Cause & Origin Zone Map
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CODE OF ETHICS
I will, as an arson investigator, regard myself as a member of an important and honorable profession.
I will conduct both my personal and official life so as to inspire the confidence of the public.
I will regard my fellow investigators with the same standards as I hold for myself. I will never betray a
confidence nor otherwise jeopardize their investigation.
I will regard it my duty to know my work thoroughly. It is my further duty to avail myself of every
opportunity to learn more about my profession.
I will avoid alliances with those whose goals are inconsistent with an honest and unbiased investigation. I
will make no claim to professional qualifications, which I do not possess.
I will share all publicity equally with my fellow investigators, whether such publicity is favorable or
unfavorable.
I will be loyal to my superiors, to my subordinates and to the organization I represent.
I will bear in mind always that I am a truth-seeker, not a case-maker; that it is more important to protect
the innocent than to convict the guilty.
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Westchester County Arson Zone Plan, Police / Fire Directors

Zone #1
Police Zone Director:
Fire Zone Director:

Mount Vernon – Chief Barbara Duncan
Yonkers

Zone #2
Police Zone Director:
Fire Zone Director:

Port Chester – Chief Joseph Krzeminski

Zone #3
Police Zone Director:
Fire Zone Director:

Mount Pleasant – Chief Lou Alagno
Fairview – Chief Robert Mauro

Zone #4
Police Zone Director:
Fire Zone Director:

Peekskill – Chief Eugene Tumolo
Buchanan – Robert Outhouse, Ex-Chief

Zone #5
Police Zone Director:
Fire Zone Director:

Mount Kisco – Chief Steven Anderson
Chappaqua – Frank Nestro, Ex-Chief
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Westchester County Arson Zone Plan – Adjunct Investigator Guidelines
This is a probationary position.

All your actions are subject to evaluation.

The position is for learning only.

You are to work under the supervision and direction of the on scene investigators.

Unless directed by the scene Team Leader you are not to enter a crime scene for any
reason.

You are required to meet the same response standards set for Fire Investigators.
The Area Deputy Fire Coordinator may recommend the termination of your position as
an adjunct investigator.

You will work within the guidelines set in the WESTCHESTER COUNTY ARSON ZONE
PLAN - FIRE INVESTIGATION PROTOCOLS.

I have read the above and both understand and agree to abide by these guidelines.

Adjunct Name:
Adjunct Signature:

Date:

Adjunct’s Department(s):
Area Deputy Coordinator Signature:
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Westchester County Cause and Origin Team – Member Data Sheet
Name: __________________________

Zone # __________

Social Security #: ____________________
Police/Fire Dept. ____________________
Work Address:

____________________
____________________

Work Phone #:

Zip: _____________

____________________

Home Address: ____________________
____________________

Zip: ______________

Home Phone #: ____________________
E-mail address

____________________

Cell Phone #:

____________________

Pager #:

____________________

Attached is proof of the referenced applicant’s completion of the following programs:
Fire Behavior/Arson Awareness

___________________________

Principals in Fire Investigation

___________________________

80-Hour Fire/Arson Investigation ___________________________

Date Information Obtained:
Area Deputy Fire Coordinator:
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Westchester County Cause and Origin Team
Appointment Form – Zone #1
To:

Westchester County Arson Task Force
Executive Committee
C/O Department of Emergency Services
4 Dana Road
Valhalla, New York 10595

From:

Police Zone Director – Zone #1:

_______________________________
(Signature)

AND
Fire Zone Director – Zone #1:

Re:

_______________________________
(Signature)

CAUSE AND ORIGIN TEAM MEMBER – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT TO THE CAUSE
AND ORIGIN TEAM

Attached please find the resume of Police/Fire Officer ________________________________ to be considered for
approval by the Executive Committee of the Westchester County Arson Task Force. Approval is sought to add this
individual to the Cause and Origin Team operating in Zone #1. This Police/Fire officer has all of the required
training set forth in the Westchester County Arson Plan Fire Investigation Protocols and proof of such (copies of
training certificates) is attached. A completed Data Sheet must be attached to this form for each Cause and Origin
Team Member submitted for consideration by the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Committee.
A.

B.

This is an original appointment to the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #1, the total number of team
members shall not exceed six.
This is a replacement appointment. The addition of Police/Fire Officer _____________________
Serves as a replacement for Police/Fire Officer ___________________________ operating as a member of
the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #1.

C.

The new configuration of the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #1 is as follows:

1511 _______________________________

1514 _______________________________

1512 _______________________________

1515 _______________________________

1513 _______________________________

1516 _______________________________

The approval of the Police/Fire Chief of the agency to which this Cause and Origin Team Member belongs is
indicated below:
___________________________________________,
(Chief of Department)

______________________________
Police/Fire Department

Written approval for the above referenced individual to serve as a member of the Cause and Origin Team will be issued by the Arson Task Force
Executive Committee and sent to the Police and Fire Zone Directors. Applicants who do not meet the minimum criteria, as set forth in the Arson
Zone Plan Fire Investigation Protocols will not be considered for appointment to the Cause and Origin Teams.
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Westchester County Cause and Origin Team
Appointment Form – Zone #2
To:

Westchester County Arson Task Force
Executive Committee
C/O Department of Emergency Services
4 Dana Road
Valhalla, New York 10595

From:

Police Zone Director – Zone #2:

_______________________________
(Signature)

AND
Fire Zone Director – Zone #2:

Re:

_______________________________
(Signature)

CAUSE AND ORIGIN TEAM MEMBER – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT TO THE CAUSE
AND ORIGIN TEAM

Attached please find the resume of Police/Fire Officer ________________________________ to be considered for
approval by the Executive Committee of the Westchester County Arson Task Force. Approval is sought to add this
individual to the Cause and Origin Team operating in Zone #2. This Police/Fire officer has all of the required
training set forth in the Westchester County Arson Plan Fire Investigation Protocols and proof of such (copies of
training certificates) is attached. A completed Data Sheet must be attached to this form for each Cause and Origin
Team Member submitted for consideration by the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Committee.
A. This is an original appointment to the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #2, the total number of team members
shall not exceed six.
B. This is a replacement appointment. The addition of Police/Fire Officer _____________________
Serves as a replacement for Police/Fire Officer ___________________________ operating as a member of
the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #2.
C. The new configuration of the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #2 is as follows:
1521 _______________________________

1524 _______________________________

1522 _______________________________

1525 _______________________________

1523 _______________________________

1526 _______________________________

The approval of the Police/Fire Chief of the agency to which this Cause and Origin Team Member belongs is
indicated below:
___________________________________________,
(Chief of Department)

______________________________
Police/Fire Department

Written approval for the above referenced individual to serve as a member of the Cause and Origin Team will be issued by the Arson Task Force
Executive Committee and sent to the Police and Fire Zone Directors. Applicants who do not meet the minimum criteria, as set forth in the Arson
Zone Plan Fire Investigation Protocols will not be considered for appointment to the Cause and Origin Teams.

Westchester County Cause and Origin Team
Appointment Form – Zone #3
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To:

Westchester County Arson Task Force
Executive Committee
C/O Department of Emergency Services
4 Dana Road
Valhalla, New York 10595

From:

Police Zone Director – Zone #3:

_______________________________
(Signature)

AND
Fire Zone Director – Zone #3:

Re:

_______________________________
(Signature)

CAUSE AND ORIGIN TEAM MEMBER – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT TO THE CAUSE
AND ORIGIN TEAM

Attached please find the resume of Police/Fire Officer ________________________________ to be considered for
approval by the Executive Committee of the Westchester County Arson Task Force. Approval is sought to add this
individual to the Cause and Origin Team operating in Zone #3. This Police/Fire officer has all of the required
training set forth in the Westchester County Arson Plan Fire Investigation Protocols and proof of such (copies of
training certificates) is attached. A completed Data Sheet must be attached to this form for each Cause and Origin
Team Member submitted for consideration by the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Committee.
A. This is an original appointment to the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #3, the total number of team members
shall not exceed six.
B. This is a replacement appointment. The addition of Police/Fire Officer _____________________
Serves as a replacement for Police/Fire Officer ___________________________ operating as a member of
the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #3.
C. The new configuration of the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #3 is as follows:
1531 _______________________________

1534 _______________________________

1532 _______________________________

1535 _______________________________

1533 _______________________________

1536 _______________________________

The approval of the Police/Fire Chief of the agency to which this Cause and Origin Team Member belongs is
indicated below:
___________________________________________,
(Chief of Department)

______________________________
Police/Fire Department

Written approval for the above referenced individual to serve as a member of the Cause and Origin Team will be issued by the Arson Task Force
Executive Committee and sent to the Police and Fire Zone Directors. Applicants who do not meet the minimum criteria, as set forth in the Arson
Zone Plan Fire Investigation Protocols will not be considered for appointment to the Cause and Origin Teams.
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Westchester County Cause and Origin Team
Appointment Form – Zone #4
To:

Westchester County Arson Task Force
Executive Committee
C/O Department of Emergency Services
4 Dana Road
Valhalla, New York 10595

From:

Police Zone Director – Zone #4:

_______________________________
(Signature)

AND
Fire Zone Director – Zone #4:

Re:

_______________________________
(Signature)

CAUSE AND ORIGIN TEAM MEMBER – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT TO THE CAUSE
AND ORIGIN TEAM

Attached please find the resume of Police/Fire Officer ________________________________ to be considered for
approval by the Executive Committee of the Westchester County Arson Task Force. Approval is sought to add this
individual to the Cause and Origin Team operating in Zone #4. This Police/Fire officer has all of the required
training set forth in the Westchester County Arson Plan Fire Investigation Protocols and proof of such (copies of
training certificates) is attached. A completed Data Sheet must be attached to this form for each Cause and Origin
Team Member submitted for consideration by the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Committee.
A. This is an original appointment to the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #4, the total number of team members
shall not exceed six.
B. This is a replacement appointment. The addition of Police/Fire Officer _____________________
Serves as a replacement for Police/Fire Officer ___________________________ operating as a member of
the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #4.
C. The new configuration of the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #4 is as follows:
1441 _______________________________

1444 _______________________________

1442 _______________________________

1445 _______________________________

1443 _______________________________

1446 _______________________________

The approval of the Police/Fire Chief of the agency to which this Cause and Origin Team Member belongs is
indicated below:
___________________________________________,
(Chief of Department)

______________________________
Police/Fire Department

Written approval for the above referenced individual to serve as a member of the Cause and Origin Team will be issued by the Arson Task Force
Executive Committee and sent to the Police and Fire Zone Directors. Applicants who do not meet the minimum criteria, as set forth in the Arson
Zone Plan Fire Investigation Protocols will not be considered for appointment to the Cause and Origin Teams.
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Westchester County Cause and Origin Team
Appointment Form – Zone #5
To:

Westchester County Arson Task Force
Executive Committee
C/O Department of Emergency Services
4 Dana Road
Valhalla, New York 10595

From:

Police Zone Director – Zone #5:

_______________________________
(Signature)

AND
Fire Zone Director – Zone #5:

Re:

_______________________________
(Signature)

CAUSE AND ORIGIN TEAM MEMBER – APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT TO THE CAUSE
AND ORIGIN TEAM

Attached please find the resume of Police/Fire Officer ________________________________ to be considered for
approval by the Executive Committee of the Westchester County Arson Task Force. Approval is sought to add this
individual to the Cause and Origin Team operating in Zone #5. This Police/Fire officer has all of the required
training set forth in the Westchester County Arson Plan Fire Investigation Protocols and proof of such (copies of
training certificates) is attached. A completed Data Sheet must be attached to this form for each Cause and Origin
Team Member submitted for consideration by the Westchester County Arson Task Force Executive Committee.
A. This is an original appointment to the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #5, the total number of team members
shall not exceed six.
B. This is a replacement appointment. The addition of Police/Fire Officer _____________________
Serves as a replacement for Police/Fire Officer ___________________________ operating as a member of
the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #5.
C. The new configuration of the Cause and Origin Team in Zone #5 is as follows:
1451 _______________________________

1454 _______________________________

1452 _______________________________

1455 _______________________________

1453 _______________________________

1456 _______________________________

The approval of the Police/Fire Chief of the agency to which this Cause and Origin Team Member belongs is
indicated below:
___________________________________________,
(Chief of Department)

______________________________
Police/Fire Department

Written approval for the above referenced individual to serve as a member of the Cause and Origin Team will be issued by the Arson Task Force
Executive Committee and sent to the Police and Fire Zone Directors. Applicants who do not meet the minimum criteria, as set forth in the Arson
Zone Plan Fire Investigation Protocols will not be considered for appointment to the Cause and Origin Teams.
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Addenda
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Summary Report (1 page, 5 carbon copies).
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Field Notes Form (6 pages)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Investigation Narrative Report (1 page to multiple pages, as needed,
depending upon the incident)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Interview Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Fire Scene Sketch (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Vehicle Sheet (Short Form) (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Vehicle Sheet (Detail) (3 pages)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Photo Log Sheet (1 Page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Evidence Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Body Sketch Sheet (1 page)
Westchester County Arson Task Force – Consent to Search Sheet (1 page)
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO.

18

DEPT.: Boat Basin
CONTACT: Peter T. Fox, Boat Basin Supervisor

ACTION: Designation of one member to the Boat Basin
Nominating Committee.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council designate the individual elected to serve on the Boat
Basin Nominating Committee.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND:

See attached memorandum of Boat Basin Supervisor dated June 30, 2015.

City of Rye Marina
Memorandum

Memo To:

Eleanor Militana, Acting City Manager
Rye City Council

From:

Peter T. Fox, Boat Basin Supervisor

Subject:

2015 Nominating Committee

Date:

June 30, 2015

The Following names have been appointed for th e Boat Basin Nominating
Committee for the 2015 Boat Basin Commission Elections:
1.

Benjamin Poole,-- Commiss ion Member not standing for reelection.

2.

Alan Caminitti, - Permit holder elected to Nominating
Committee in last election August 2014.

Please submit to the City Council for approval.
Thank you for your consideration.

Yt.--~e-\2... "\.<J;--f .

Peter T . Fox, Supervisor
City of Rye Marina

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO.

19

DEPT.: City Council
CONTACT: Mayor Joseph A. Sack
AGENDA ITEM: Two appointments to the Rye Senior
Advocacy Committee for a three-year term expiring
January 1, 2018, by the Mayor with Council approval.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council approve the appointments of Edward Matthews and
Jane O'Sullivan.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Current Committee Members
Joseph Murphy, Chair
Philip Cicchiello
Ellen D'Angelo
Josephine DelMonte
Esther Martensen

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Expiration Date
1-1-18
1-1-18
1-1-18
1-1-18
1-1-18

Other:

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 20

DEPT.: City Manager’s Office
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of request to close a
section of Purchase Street on Sunday, October 18, 2015
(rain date October 25), for events to be held in
conjunction with the 63nd Annual Halloween Window
Painting Contest.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council approve the request.

Environmental
Fiscal
Neighborhood
Other:
IMPACT:
Closing a section of Purchase Street for activities related to the Halloween Window Painting
Contest will have minimal effect on the area.

BACKGROUND: The City Manager’s Office received a request from the Recreation
Department asking that Purchase Street, from the Square House (Boston Post Road) to Purdy
Avenue, be closed from 8:00 am to 3:00 pm for the Annual Halloween Window Painting
Contest. Special activities, including street entertainment from 10:00 am to 2:30 pm have been
planned on Purchase Street during the day.

See attached.

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO:

MARCUS SERRANO, CITY MANAGER

FROM:

IKE KUZIO

SUBJECT:

HALLOWEEN WINDOW PAINTING 2015

DATE:

JUNE 29, 2015

CC:

SALLY ROGOL, SUPERINTENDENT

Rye Recreation would like to request closing of Purchase Street for the 63nd
Annual Celebration of the Halloween Window Painting Event. This year’s event
will take place on Sunday, October 18, 2015 with a rain date of Sunday,
October 25, 2015.


Closing of Purchase Street from the Square House (Boston Post Road) to
Purdy Ave from 8:00 – 3:00 p.m. This will provide a safe place for the more
than 1,200 youngsters and their families who participate in this event
throughout the day.



The closing of the street will be coordinated with the Rye Police Department
so that all safety issues are taken into account. Rye/Port Chester EMS will
be on stand-by during the day as well.



On street entertainment will be performed between 10:00 – 2:30 p.m.

If you have any questions or concerns, please let me know.
Ike Kuzio
281 Midland Ave.
Rye, NY 10580
(914)967-2535
ikuzio@ryeny.gov

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 21

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of a request by the
Leukemia and Lymphoma Society for use of city streets
on Saturday, November 1, 2014 from 5:00 p.m. to 9:00
p.m. for their annual Light the Night Walk event.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council consider granting the request.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND:
John DeDomenici is requesting the use of City streets for the annual Leukemia and Lymphoma
Light the Night Walk to be held at Rye Playland on Saturday November 7th beginning at 5:00
p.m. The walk starts at 7:00 p.m. and ends around 9:00 p.m.

See attached letter and map of event.

From: JOHN DEDOMENICI
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2015 1:09 PM
To: Moore, Diane C.
Subject: LLS light the night walk November 7th

Diane,
Hope this finds you well.
We are beginning to plan our annual Leukemia and Lymphoma Light the Night Walk at
Rye Playland and I wanted to touch base with you about walking through the city streets
around Rye Town Park again like we did last year.
The event is Saturday November 7th starting at 5pm, walking at 7pm and ending around
9pm.
I have attached a map of what we would like our route to be.
Please let me know what we need to send you on our end in order to be approved again
this year to use the streets.
Thank you,

John DeDomenici
Proteus Productions
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
NO. 22

DEPT.: City Manager
CONTACT: Marcus Serrano, City Manager
AGENDA ITEM:
Consideration of a request by
Longford’s Ice Cream for the use of City streets for their
20th Anniversary celebration to be held on Sunday,
August 16, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

DATE: July 8, 2015
FOR THE MEETING OF:
July 8, 2015
RYE CITY CODE,
CHAPTER
SECTION

RECOMMENDATION: That the Council consider granting the request.

IMPACT:

Environmental

Fiscal

Neighborhood

Other:

BACKGROUND:
The owners of Longford’s Ice Cream are requesting permission to close a portion of Elm Place
on Sunday, August 16, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. to celebrate the 20th Anniversary of
the Longford’s Brand. The event has been held successfully in the past. The Rye Merchants
Association has approved the event. Insurance will be supplied to the City and the owners will
coordinate with the Rye Police Department.
See attached.

From: Christine
Sent: Wednesday, July 01, 2015 2:25 PM
To: Militana, Eleanor M.
Subject: Longfords block party

Good afternoon,
Longford's Ice Cream is celebrating 20yrs in Rye on Elm Place. We are very excited. We are seeking
permission to close our 1/2 of the block to have our annual street party on August 16,2015. I am
familiar with certain guidlines, insurance, officers needed, asking neighbor merchants, etc. Please follow
up to confirm so we can start to advertise the event. Thank you! Enjoy the 4th!

Thanks
Christine Vita

